“ SHENZHOU INTERNATIONAL

~—~2, GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
e BNEREERRERAT

Stock Code %D %R : 2313

2018

Annual Report

FI

-
A 5
* For Identification only & #4531 %







H £% Contents

12

18

40

57

124
133
147
1565
156
157
159
160
163
276

RAE

MHEmE

NEER

ERHE
EIEE T W S AT
EEERME

RE- g RkERRE
E=ZeMEREREREE
EEews

B EBIHE
RAEBRER
meazmliER

RE MBI R
RERmREPR
HARERER
B RRM T
MBEERBE

Corporate Profile

Financial Highlights

Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis

Corporate Governance Report

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
Biographical Details of Directors and Members of Senior Management
Report of the Directors

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to Financial Statements

Financial Information Summary

Annual Report 2018 £



2

A RIS
Corporate Profile

RMEREEZERARAR ([FMNEER]) &
HIMB AR (58 [AEE ) RER&EAMNME
A — RGN 2 — T2 AT (OEM)
KREFERTODMBHEATAR/TPEEEL
ELRMHBR -RETEREXAHB R
BRERRBSNTESBIRELINE SR
S AKERFEEOSENSHBRELE
CENPERELOCEHEPEIIAF -

2N 58 [ A AE R B AT R BE R T A B A
BRFIME WRE M ERBREMNHEETE
M HEAEATHIREESETRBREKX
IR LR BERAREOEZBHEMNEE
SRR - AR AEEE Ti#H82,700A © H&E
EWEERARIE —_THEEF K BEAE
B—AE=tTZBFEIRK SFLEESEITH
AR #E #AB 1 -

AEBXBEENBEDEAR KB RE
RAKRSE  EE2FF BENKE - UNIQLO -
ADIDASKEPUMAZ BB A& SR F o Efm
MEEAEFEAE AR - DAREEES

35

RERHBRERIE2REARFHEXE
F BMERER ST RF+-AKDESR
BHMAERXZMARABER L™ - ANQ A
MR AE2313 TR =—T—FTF=A\A
ERABESRRER BEGAITERE R
o) REEGEPHBREHEKNK -B=F
—Z=F XA B #MEEREAAMSCIH
REH R R_T-—AFNLANEEAA
BARKBEROEERERY - BE ~&HE
R-E-N\F==ALBREREANAXRIE
ARBECEREIXMB XREFNLATHE
HREXAEMAXBBERBII R -R_-F
—N\FOA AEERESHEIFREERRD
Al ([PEXGRBE])ERTEIZIRE—F
—HEEHORMBRARZ — WERKHAEE
S —REFELER -2 RZF—N
FARZ T HEEXEKAXRER P EH
5048 #LR 7 A%

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (“Shenzhou
International”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) is one of
the largest vertically integrated knitwear manufacturer in the world.
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing of high-end
knitwear for the customers by the method of combining OEN and
ODM. The Group was also the knitwear garment manufacturing
enterprise with one of the largest exporting amount of knitwear and
ranked among the top PRC garment exporting enterprises according
to the report on the development of China’s home textile trade in the
garment industry and the report on China’s foreign trade in textiles
and garment.

The Group’s production base is located in Ningbo Economic &
Technical Development Zone and Vietnam, and the Group has
strategically set up garment factories in Quzhou and Anging of
China, Ho Chi Minh City of Vietnam and Phnom Penh of Cambodia.
The Group also established sales offices or representative offices
in Shanghai, Hong Kong and Osaka. The Group currently has over
82,700 employees. The area of the factories is over 5,250,000 sqg.m.
and floor area covers over 3,320,000 sg.m., which can produce
various knitwear of about 400 million pieces every year.

The Group focuses on producing sports wear, casual wear and
lingerie wear for major international renowned clients including
NIKE, UNIQLO, ADIDAS and PUMA. The products’ markets are
widely spread in the PRC, Japan, Asia Pacific, Europe and the US.

Shenzhou International was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in November 2005 with an aim to
be the most competitive knitwear manufacturer in the world. The
stock code of the Company is 2313. Shenzhou International was
included in Hang Seng Composite Index, Hang Seng Composite
Industry Index (Consumer Goods) and Hang Seng Composite
MiddleCap Index, all effective from 8 March 2010. Shenzhou
International has also been included in MSCI Index since June 1
2013. Meanwhile, Shenzhou International has been included in
Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Index Series since September
2015. Furthermore, the Group has become a constituent stock of
Hang Seng China Enterprises Index (‘HSCEI”) from 5 March 2018
and a constituent stock of Hang Seng Index from 10 September
in the same year. In April 2018, the Group was selected by China
Exchanges Services Company Limited (“CES”) as a constituent
stock of the CES Belt and Road Index, in recognition of the Group’s
contribution to the Belt and Road Initiative. In addition, the Group
has become a constituent stock of FTSE China 50 index from 21
September 2018.

ER ) B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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From the year of 2010 to the year of 2018, Shenzhou International
has been named in the “Top 1000 Asian Companies” List of
Yazhou Zhoukan and during the year of 2010, it was recognised
by Forbes Asia as one of the “Best Under A Billion” Companies.
Shenzhou International was selected by Finet and QQ.COM as one
of the “Top 100 HK Listed Companies” in 2012, 2015 and 2016.
In addition, Shenzhou International was recognized as one of the
“2015 Best Listed Company in Corporate Governance” by Ta Kung
Pao in November 2015, and was awarded “Best Investor Relations
Listed Company 2017” prize by Ta Kung Pao in 2017. Meanwhile,
Shenzhou International was awarded “The Largest Capitalization
Private Company Award” in Mainland Enterprises Listed in Hong
Kong Ranking in 2014-2015 by Yazhou Zhoukan in 2015. Shenzhou
International was awarded “ENTERPRISE AWARD 2016” in the
DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business Awards 2016. In 2017, Shenzhou
International won “Best IR Company” (Large-cap) at the third Hong
Kong Investor Relations Awards organised by Hong Kong Investor
Relations Association (HKIRA). Shenzhou International was selected
as one of the “China’s 500 Largest Listed Companies 2018” and
“China’s Top 50 Boards of Directors 2018” by Fortune China in
August 2018.

In addition, Shenzhou International was named as one of the “Asia’s
50 Top Listed Companies 2018” by Forbes Asia in September 2018.
Meanwhile, Shenzhou International was awarded “Listed Companies
Awards 2018 (Apparel)” by Hong Kong Business Magazine in
September 2018.

Furthermore, Shenzhou International was awarded “ListCo
Excellence Awards 2018” by AM730, PR Asia and Roadshow in
October 2018.

Shenzhou International was awarded “The Hong Kong Corporate
Governance Excellence Awards 2018: Award for Sustainability
Excellence” by The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies in
December this year, awarded “2018 Golden Lion Award: The Best
Listed Company” by Sina Finance, and awarded “The 8th China
Securities Golden Bauhinia Awards: Best Investment Value Award for
Listed Companies” by Ta Kung Pao.
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MBRE
Financial Highlights

BELFTEBRKER KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE LAST

FIVE YEARS

BE+-A=t-ALEE/W+=-A=t-A

For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December

—E-N\E —E—tF ZE-RE —T-hf —E-mF
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
TERKER Key Financial Information
(AR¥Fx) (RMB’000)
HER Sales 20,950,205 18,085,247 15,099,076 12,639,332 11,131,532
B BT 455 A1 A1 Profit before income tax 5,090,346 4,288,231 3,642,947 2,886,901 2,543,347
FEME Profit for the year 4,492,543 3,759,951 2,947,680 2,354,842 2,066,630
AAAE=EEA Profit attributable to equity
JE & 7 owners of the Company 4,540,487 3,762,721 2,947,673 2,354,664 2,065,867
ERBEE Non-current assets 9,411,627 8,886,726 8,980,567 7,450,113 5,633,884
MBEE Current assets 18,140,427 15,206,479 12,835,495 10,911,501 10,309,144
MBAR Current liabilities 4,919,626 4,265,355 3,094,482 2,154,769 1,265,177
MBEETE Net current assets 13,220,801 10,941,124 9,741,013 8,756,732 9,043,967
BEE Total assets 27,552,054 24,093,205 21,816,062 18,361,614 15,943,028
BEERTDAR Total assets less current liabilities 22,632,428 19,827,850 18,721,580 16,206,845 14,677,851
B Total equity 22,454,279 19,824,653 15,309,602 13,089,836 11,811,326
ReRkBeSED Cash and cash equivalents 3,565,916 2,471,401 2,105,184 1,815,678 1,428,074
TEHKLE Key Financial ratios
EFIE(%) Gross profit margin (%) 31.6 31.4 325 305 29.0
F R (%) Net profit margin (%) 21.4 20.8 19.5 18.6 18.6
FEARBLE %) Net gearing ratio (%) TEA N/A TEA N/A 16.6 15.0 126
mEN L & Current ratio 3.7 3.6 4.1 5.1 8.1
EREESR BB (A) Accounts receivable
turnover period (days) 56 55 56 53 49
FEZEEH(A) Inventory turnover period (days) 124 120 124 121 116
B 5 Note:
1. Net gearing ratio represents the ratio between total borrowings (bank

FERBBHERZAERBER GRITER 1.
MABRBRER) HIGERE MRS FEYER
&R

loans plus convertible bonds), less cash and cash equivalents and total
equity.

ER ) B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



MBRE
Financial Highlights

REMBRIMNAREEER

ANALYSIS OF SALES OF THE GROUP BY
PRODUCTS

BE+-B=t-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
ZB-N\fF “T-tf E-RE ZZ-R%F —E-mE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ARBTR % ARETRL % ARETFR % ARETR % ARETR %
RMB’000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
REM By products
EHE Sports wear 14,275,643 68.1 12,048,896 66.6 9,815,537 65.0 8,028,054 63.5 6,830,432 61.4
REE Casual wear 5,167,355 24.7 4,600,534 254 3,886,024 25.7 3,476,499 275 2,724,394 24.5
NKE Lingerie wear 1,328,006 6.3 1,302,580 7.2 1,293,111 8.6 1,022,233 8.1 1,452,274 13.0
Hih st e Other knitting 179,201 0.9 133,237 0.8 104,404 0.7 112,546 0.9 124,432 11
HEREG Total sales 20,950,205  100.0 18,085,247 100.0 15,099,076 100.0 12,639,332 100.0 11,131,532 100.0
0.9% 0.8% 0.7%
6.3% 7.2% 8.6%
24.7% 25.4%
68.1% 66.6% 65.0%
8.1% 0.9% 1.1%
24.5%

63.5%

. {KEIE Casual

‘ EE) 48 Sports

61.4%

O A1<4E Lingerie . HAh$t 8 m Other knitting
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BTSN AEBENEE ANALYSIS OF SALES OF THE GROUP BY

REGIONAL DISTRIBUTION OF MARKET

BZt-A=t-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
ZE-N\E ZE-t% E-RE —Z-nf —E-mE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ARETR % ARBEFIL % ARBFIL % ARBFL % ARBFL %
RMB'0O0 %  RMBOOD % RVBO0D % RVBO0D % RMBO0D %
biedik By market regions
il S International sales
BN Europe 3,795,982 18.1 4,031,077 22.3 3,355,516 22.2 2,319,860 18.4 1,929,613 17.3
E¥] us 3,252,725 15.5 2,337,903 12.9 1,548,387 10.3 1,588,689 12.6 1,300,040 11.7
B Japan 3,236,002 15.5 3,129,042 17.3 3,003,735 19.9 2,869,692 22.6 3,081,139 21.7
HBR Others 4,353,084 20.8 3,742,637 20.7 3,501,563 23.2 2,875,548 22.7 2,333,311 21.0
RHE Domestic sales 6,312,412 30.1 4,844,588 26.8 3,689,875 24.4 2,995,543 28.7 2,487,429 22.3
HERE Total sales 20,950,205 100.0 18,085,247 100.0 15,099,076 100.0 12,639,332 100.0 11,131,632 100.0
15.5% 30.1% 19.9%
18.1%

15.5%

20.8%

22.3%
22.2%

12.9% 10.3%

22.3%

21.0%

12.6% 11.7%

. Bl R85 Domestic Sales . H{h ™15 Others . %E US . &M Europe . B Japan

ER M BB 58 @142 R A BR /A A Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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(as at 25 March 2019 (the “Latest Practicable Date”))

REGISTERED NAME

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

CHINESE NAME
FRMNERR EEIZER AR A A

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Ma Jianrong (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Guanlin

Mr. Ma Renhe

Mr. Wang Cunbo

Ms. Chen Zhifen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chen Xu
Mr. Jiang Xianpin
Mr. Qiu Weiguo
Mr. Zhang Bingsheng
(appointed on 1 September 2018)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chan Tak Hing Keniji

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Wang Cunbo
Mr. Chan Tak Hing Kenji
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(RZZE-NAF=ZA-TAH([RREBTTHHA]))

EXEITEZET

ENEAY

BERLE (EF)

FRIB 5

REE KL

RIS
(R=T—N\FNA—AEEE)

YFMEES

BRIBSEE (L)

JLEMEL

BEmEL

SRR S
(RZZB-NFNLA-BEZE)

REZEE

BREEE (LE)

BEmTE

RKIEEEE

RMAESRLE
(R=ZF—-\FNLA-BEZE)

AfMERE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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(as at 25 March 2019 (the “Latest Practicable Date”))

KEY BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee
Mr. Jiang Xianpin (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Xu
Mr. Qiu Weiguo
Mr. Zhang Bingsheng
(appointed on 1 September 2018)

Remuneration Committee
Mr. Chen Xu (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Renhe
Mr. Jiang Xianpin
Mr. Zhang Bingsheng
(appointed on 1 September 2018)

Nomination Committee
Mr. Ma Jianrong (Chairman)
Mr. Jiang Xianpin
Mr. Qiu Weiguo
Mr. Zhang Bingsheng
(appointed on 1 September 2018)

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 2708, 27th Floor

Billion Plaza

No. 8 Cheung Yue Street

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISERS

Lennon & Lawyers
Morrison & Foerster

ER M BB 58 @142 R A BR /A A Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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(RZZE—NF=ZA=-+HB ([ZEERAI{TEHE]) ) (as at 25 March 2019 (the “Latest Practicable Date"))

RPBEBEETHEAE PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE
Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681  Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

ROEBEETLETEBDTE HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

EETABEERARAT
T

EREREFR183%R
A e
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FRERRT
FERTT (BEB)BRRA
RERITRD AR AR
BRI AR A A
ERRITIRID AR R A
FERZRRITRODAR AR
RERITERODAR AR

B RIRITIRD AR A A
ERRTT(BB)AERATA
BERTERAA
FETERITROER QA

FEBRRERRITBROBRERAA

BEITIRTT (BE)BRQA
BB LBESRTARLDA
RERTERRAA]

REENRBRBERER

iPREE = A [

NGIE B

www.shenzhouintl.com

R 43 #m 5%

2313

AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China Limited

Bank of Communications Company Limited

Bank of Ningbo Company Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

China Everbright Bank Corporation Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Company Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
United Overseas Bank Limited

INVESTOR AND PRESS RELATIONS ADVISER
iPR Ogilvy Limited

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.shenzhouintl.com

STOCK CODE
2313

Annual Report 2018 4F

9



B & K R4t [[) — R b
AR ER

The Largest vertically-integrated
knitwear manufacturer in China







12

ERRE

Chairman’s Statement

# £ g ¥ ¥ Chairman of the Board
B # % Ma Jianrong
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Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
| am pleased to announce the annual results of the Company and

its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year of 2018 for
shareholders’ review.

In 2018, the price of raw materials and labour costs of the textile
and apparel industry continued to increase. With the impact of the
changing global trading environment and the supply and prices of
essential materials, the layout of the industry’s capacity shifted its
focus more to overseas countries. The major operating pressure
of the textile and apparel industry in China mainly came from
market demand, increasing costs and tightened regulations on
environmental protection. During the year under review, the business
demand of the Group was satisfactory but pressure still came from
capacity supply. In order to protect our clients’ interests, certain
products were delivered by air freight during the year. Given the
expanding scale of our overseas production bases, pressure arising
from the Group’s capacity supply was relieved. During the year, the
Group continued to upgrade the level of production automation, thus
further improving our production efficiency. Substantially all the fabric

ER ) B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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BEIRERBER1.758 T

factories in China had almost completed the upgrade and conversion
of their facilities, thereby continuously lowering the consumption level
of resources, including water and electricity. Sales recorded in the
market of China exceeded 30% of our total sales for the first time,
making China become the Group’s largest single market. As a result,
the impact of volatile exchange rates and of changes in trading
policies on the operation of the Group was alleviated. Since our
effort spent during the year has enhanced the Group’s sustainability
development, | would like to express my gratitude to all of our
employees for their hard work. | hereby hope that investors will
appreciate the achievement of the Group and continue to support
the business development strategies of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s revenue and
results continued to maintain satisfactory growth. The annual sales
amount were approximately RMB20,950,205,000, representing an
increase of 15.8% as compared to 2017. The profit attributable to
owners of the parent increased from RMB3,762,721,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to RMB4,540,487,000 for the year ended
31 December 2018, representing an increase of 20.7%. Earnings per
share was RMB3.02. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash
and cash equivalents totalled RMB3,565,916,000.

Given the promising business performance and the strong financial
position of the Group, the Board of the Company proposes to
declare a final dividend of HK$0.90 per share. Together with the paid
interim dividend of HK$0.85 per share, the total dividend payment
was HK$1.75 per share for the year.

Annual Report 2018 £
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Chairman’s Statement
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In 2018, the global economy continued to recover in general, of
which the U.S. delivered remarkable economic growth but the
growth drive was weakened. The trade conflict between China and
the U.S. as well as the policy uncertainties exposed enterprises
engaged in exporting industry under operating risks. The economy
in China ran smoothly in general, and with an economic structure
optimized on an ongoing basis, the contribution of domestic
consumption to the economic growth increased continuously. During
the year, the export amount of apparel products from China was
basically stable while that of textile products managed to maintain
an upward trend. However, the growth prospect of overseas market
was not as positive. The consumption demand for apparel products
in China reported stable growth, boasting its top ranking in terms of
growth potential market across the globe. In order to alleviate the
operating pressure of the real economy, the government of China
introduced a series of tax and fee reduction policies and required
financial institutions to provide private enterprises with funding
support. Also, for the sake of coping with the slowed growth of
demand and the pressure of rising costs, the textile and apparel
industry should shift its focus to the aspects of green environment
protection, automation and digitalization, and enhance the
corporation competitiveness by improved production efficiency and
product quality.

Benefitting from a favourable trading environment and the lowered
essential cost, Vietnam has been successful in attracting industrial
investment from many overseas textile and apparel enterprises. In
2018, Vietnam recorded a high growth rate for export originated
from apparel industry, and is expected to continue to maintain
a relatively high growth rate. The national congress of Vietnam
passed a resolution approving the “Comprehensive and Progressive
Agreement for Trans-Pacific Partnership” (the “CPTPP”), which
became effective officially on 14 January 2019 in Vietnam. The
apparel industry of Vietnam will be offered with opportunities
to enlarge its share in the domestic market of CPTPP member
countries. In addition, the “EU-Vietnam Free Trade Agreement” (the
“EVFTA”) has been executed, but is still subject to the approval of
the European Commission and the national congress of Vietnam.
Both of CPTPP and EVFTA have stipulated stringent regulations
on origin production, posting limitations on the short term growth
of Vietnam’s apparel export. However, in the long run, CPTPP and
EVFTA will facilitate the completion of the industrial chain of the
textile and apparel industry of Vietnam.
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During the year, the Company continued to unsure each of its
professional committees has adequate and necessary resources to
perform the duties of their own. The Board also cooperated closely
and maintained effective communication with each professional
committee, thus achieving impressive results on various projects that
we worked on. All members of the Company have been in pursuit of
excellent corporate governance and a fair and just decision-making
process to ensure maintenance of a highly transparent administration
to provide all shareholders and investors with an open channel for
communication.

I would like to express my sincerest gratitude to each of our directors
for their relentless efforts over the past year, and all members of
the management team and all staff members for their dedicated
contribution during the year. With their joint efforts, the Group will be
able to achieve the planned annual target. | am pleased to dedicate
myself to work hand in hand with all of our staff members to focus
on our core businesses and to pursuit excellence. Currently, the
operating environment is difficult, and only those enterprises with a
top ranking in the industry can achieve to maintain business growth.
It should be noted that past performance is no guarantee of future
results. | hope that all of our staff members can stay humble to make
every endeavour to strive for optimization, and can adhere to the
principle of “Customer always comes first” to provide our customers
with products and services of the best quality. | would like to thank
each of our shareholders, customers and suppliers for their lasting
trust in the Company. | hope their ongoing support will continue in
our development in the future.

In connection with our strategy for future development, the Group
will insist on the concurrent development of domestic and overseas
bases, with domestic bases serving the purpose of guaranteeing
operations for overseas business expansion. Focus will be
especially placed on the advancement of new product research and
development, application of automation and digitalized management.
The Group will continue to expand the production scale of overseas
factories, step up the effort on training local management and
technological personnel and strengthen the independent operating
capacity of overseas companies. Meanwhile, domestic and overseas
corporations shall enhance the internal exchange of digital data and
the interchanging capability of business management.

In a world with ever-changing technologies, corporations are obliged
to focus on the progress of their core businesses on one hand, and
need to capitalize on cross-industry technologies to enhance their
operation and management abilities on the other hand. Earnings
come from efficiency whereas market comes from quality. That is,
the Group is committed to achieve the better development and
creating higher returns for shareholders.

Ma Jianrong
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 25 March 2019
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BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

In 2018, the global economy continued its recovery in general.
Among all the developed economies, the economic growth in the
US was much stronger, the momentum of economic growth in
the Euro Zone remained sluggish, the volatility of the economy in
Japan became stronger and the consumption demand in overseas
markets was stable and rising. The global economic environment
became more complicated, especially with the uncertainty in global
trade and economic growth caused by the conflict between the
two big economies of China and the US. The investment layout
of apparel industry was affected by the trade environment, with
more enterprises turning to invest overseas or increase the scale
in overseas investment. The Chinese government continued to
increase supervision on environmental protection. With many
environmentally sub-standard textiles enterprises being ordered to
rectify or shut down, other enterprises were more aware of investing
in environmental protection. Within the year, the exchange rate
between the Renminbi and the US dollar fluctuated greatly with the
overall rates dropped after appreciation, thus increased the foreign
exchange risk to the export enterprise. The supply in labour force for
the Chinese manufacturing industry was inelastic, and labour cost
continued to rise. Using machine to replace human has become the
way of change of the industry.
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According to statistical data from the China Customs, the total
export value of Chinese textile and garment products (including
textile yarns, fabrics and finished products as well as garments
and apparel accessories, referred the same as below) in 2018
was approximately USD276.73 billion, representing a growth of
approximately 3.5% over last year. Out of the total export value,
the export value of textile products amounted to approximately
USD119.10 billion, representing a growth of approximately 8.1%
over the same period last year which is 3.6% more than the
previous year. The garment export value amounted to approximately
USD157.63 billion, representing an increase of approximately 0.3%
over the same period last year. For the past three years, the garment
export value turned stabled after decreasing at first, but the prospect
for growth remained less optimistic. For the first two months of
2019, the export value of Chinese garments and apparel accessories
was approximately USD20.77 billion, representing a significant
decrease of 14.6% over the same period in 2018. As for the
domestic apparels consumption market’s aspect, according to data
released by the National Bureau of Statistics, the amount of retalil
sales of products manufactured by enterprises above designated
size in 2018, total retail sales of apparels, footwear and headwear,
and knitted products was approximately RMB1,370.65 billion,
representing a year-on-year growth of 8.0% (year-on-year growth
of apparels was 8.5%). In addition, the amount of sales of national
online retail products in the wearing segment has seen a year-on-
year increase of approximately 22.0%. The increase in apparels
consumption from domestic market was on par with last year, and
significantly better than the overseas market.
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According to statistics released by China’s General Administration
of Customs, total import and export value of China’s foreign trade
in 2018 was approximately USD4,623.04 billion with an increase
of 12.6% than in 2017. Among which, the total export value was
approximately USD2,487.40 billion and total import value was
approximately USD2,135.64 billion, representing an increase of
9.9% and 15.8%, respectively, than in 2017. The increase in import
and export value is basically on par with last year. Within the year,
China’s import and export surplus amount was approximately
USD351.76 billion with a decrease of approximately USD70.75
billion as compared to approximately USD422.51 billion in 2017,
which declined 16.7%. The amount of import and export surplus
has been decreasing for the past three years, the contribution rate
of export to the economic growth has been significantly decreasing.
According to statistical materials of China’s State Administration of
Foreign Exchange, the amount of state foreign exchange reserves
was approximately USD3,072.71 billion as of 31 December 2018,
which decreased approximately USD67.24 billion than in the end
of the previous year. According to information of China’s Ministry
of Commerce, the amount of China’s non-financial outward foreign
direct investment in 2018 was approximately USD120.5 billion
with an increase of 0.3% than in the previous year, in which the
investment flowing to manufacturing industry amounted to 15.6%.
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According to preliminary statistical materials of Vietnam National
Customs, in 2018, the export amount of Vietnam’s textile industry
was approximately USD34.51 billion with an increase of 16.2% than
in the previous year, which is 5.5 percentage points more than the
previous year. Of which, the export amount of textile and garment
was approximately USD30.49 billion with an increase of 16.7% from
the previous year and the export amount of yarn was approximately
USD4.03 billion with an increase of 12.0% from the previous year.
Textile and garment was mainly exported to the United States,
Japan and South Korea, whose export amount was approximately
USD13.70 billion, USD3.81 billion and USD3.30 billion, respectively,
representing an increase of 11.6%, 22.6% and 24.9%, respectively,
than the export amount in 2017, yarn was mainly exported to China,
whose export amount was approximately USD2.22 billion with an
increase of 8.5% from the previous year. In 2018, Vietnam’s total
import value of fabrics from foreign countries was approximately
USD12.77 billion, representing a growth of 12.2% over the same
period last year. The amount of fabrics imported from Mainland
China was approximately USD7.10 billion with an increase of 16.8%
from the previous year, which accounting for approximately 55.6%
of the total amount of fabric imported to Vietnam. In addition, the
amount of fabrics imported from South Korea and Taiwan were
approximately USD2.16 billion and USD1.61 billion respectively,
accounting for 16.9% and 12.6% of total amount of imported
fabrics of Vietnam, respectively. On 12 November 2018, the
Vietnamese parliament passed to approve the resolution of CPTPP
(Comprehensive Progressive Trans-Pacific Partnership), and this
resolution came into effect in Vietnam on 14 January 2019.The
textile and apparel industry in Vietham may have an opportunity
expand its market share in countries such as Canada, New Zealand
and Australia. In addition, an agreement has been made on the
EVFTA and is waiting for approval from the European Commission
and the Vietnamese parliament. Both the CPTPP and EVFTA
contained stringent origin place of manufacture rules, of which
CPTPP adopts the yarn forward rule and EVFTA adopts the fabric
forward rule; the mode of origin place of manufacture rule gave many
barriers to the Vietnamese textile and apparel industry. A favourable
trade environment and the advantage in cost attracted many
garment enterprises to establish layouts in Vietnam. It is expected
that the garment business in Vietnam will grow continuously, but
the speed of growth will be constrained by the lack of production of
fabric in Vietnam. Although some fabric enterprises will be attracted
to invest in new factories in Vietnam, the stringent requirement on
environmental protection from the Vietnamese government and
the shortage of local skilled technicians will pose a big challenge.
Meanwhile, the labour use in Vietnam is inelastic, resulting in the
increase in production cost continuing.
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Mainly benefiting from the tax incentives for garment importers
and lower labour cost, garment industry has become the state
pillar industry of Cambodia, but the low work efficiency of local
workers has weakened the advantage in labour cost. The European
Commission, citing “have seen the deterioration of democracy,
respect for human rights and the rule of law in Cambodia”,
announced to officially initiate the process of suspension of
Cambodia’s preferential access under the Everything But Arms
(EBA) trade scheme on 11 February 2019. According to the relevant
rule in the European Commission, after the official initiation of the
suspension procedure, the European Commission will start a six-
month period of intensive monitoring and engagement with the
Cambodian authorities. After that the European Commission will
compile a report in the following six months and make a final
decision. There will be a grace period of six months before the
initiation of the suspension, if the final decision was to initiate
suspension procedures. If the European Commission decided to
suspend the preferential access in tax in Cambodia, it would have an
adverse effect to the garment industry in Cambodia.

During the year, exchange rate of RMB to USD had a depreciation
of approximately 4.8% at middle rate. The exchange rate of RMB
against USD dropped after appreciation with greater volatility,
and has posed greater exchange rate risk to the enterprises. The
exchange rate of RMB to Euro had a depreciation of approximately
0.6% at middle rate, and the exchange rate of RMB to Yen had
a depreciation of approximately 6.5% at middle rate. Since RMB
exchange rate forming mechanism reform in 2005 until the end of
2018, exchange rate of RMB to USD had a cumulative appreciation
of approximately 20.6% at middle rate; exchange rate of RMB to
Euro had a cumulative appreciation of approximately 27.61%; and
exchange rate of RMB to Yen had a cumulative appreciation of
approximately 18.05%. As the US Federal Reserve raised the rate by
25 basis points the four times consecutively, the saving and leading
rates of the USD increased significantly. In 2018, the People’s Bank
of China increased the intensity of granting medium-term and long-
term liquidity by lowering the reserve requirement ratio (RRR) four
times and opening the operation of Medium-term Lending Facility
(MLF) stable and rising, thus the market financing cost of Renminbi
was stable and dropping. Affected by the trade conflict and changes
in the global exchange rates, the People’s Bank of China decided
to adjust the foreign exchange risk reserve ratio in forward foreign
exchange sale business from zero to 20%, and alleviate the pressure
from the depreciation of Renminbi by increasing the transaction cost.
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In 2018, the total gross domestic product (GDP) of Mainland China
was approximately RMB90.0 trillion with an increase of 6.6%
than in the previous year at comparable prices, and reached the
predicted growth target. The continuous increase in resident income
facilitated the increase in consumption expenditure. The growth
and contribution rate of consumption expenditure to the GDP for
the year was 76.2%, an increase of approximately 17% over the
previous year. Consumption has become the main driving force for
economic growth. According to statistical data of National Bureau
of Statistics, the total population between 16 years old to 59 years
old in Mainland China was 897.29 million at the end of 2018 with
a decrease of 4.70 million people than in 2017, while the total
population above 60 years old was 249.49 million with an increase
of 8.59 million than in the previous year. The aging phenomenon of
population in Mainland China was further aggravated, and imposed
further pressure on the social economic growth. The prolonged
lack or shortage of labour force further imposed burden on social
endowment. The development in the labor intensive industry
(such as garments) will be more dependent on the increase in
technological innovation and productivity. Enterprises with favourable
conditions should establish transnational enterprise layout to utilize
the manpower advantage in other countries.

During the year, the Chinese government put forward more policy
to lower taxes and fees, so as to alleviate the operating pressure
in the real economy, such as allowing one-off pre-tax deduction
for the new purchase of equipment and appliances by enterprises
under specific condition, expansion of the increased and weighted
pre-tax deduction ratio of the research and development expenses
of enterprises to all enterprises, implement to reform on personal
income tax and increase the earnings after personal income tax
via tax cut. After lowering the VAT tax rate of each enterprise by
1 percentage point from 1 May 2018, on 5 March 2019 Premier
Li Kegiang announced in the government work report that the
benchmark of value-added tax rate for the manufacturing industry
will be reduced from original 16% to 13%, and benchmark of the
value-added tax rate for industries such as transport, construction,
real estate will be reduced from original 10% to 9%. However, the
cuts in value-added tax will increase the cost for the export-oriented
manufacturing industry.
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During the year. the Chinese government continued to improve
environmental protection legislation, and many environmental
protection regulations were introduced and amended, including “Soil
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, “Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the

» o«

People’s Republic of China”, “Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Environmental Impact Assessment” and “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”,
etc. Such laws highlighted the regulations in the supervision and
management in environmental protection, prevention of pollution,
the relevant responsibilities of local governments and pollutant
discharging entity. As the government increased the effect of the
environment protection supervision and enforcement, some textile
and dyeing enterprises did not meet the standard in discharging
pollutants, and were ordered to rectify or shut down. The textile
industry will focus more on environmental protection and increase
the investment gradually. Constrained by the pressure in cost and
environmental protection capability, some enterprises will leave the
industry accordingly.
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According to materials released by National Bureau of Statistics,
in the middle of 2018, China’s cotton plantation area was 3.35
million hectares with an increase of 0.16 million hectares than in
the previous year. The annual cotton output was 6.10 million tons
with an increase of 7.8% than in the previous year. China’s cotton
plantation area increased slightly after six consecutive years of
decrease, with yield per unit increased slightly comparing with the
previous year. According to information released by United States
Department of Agriculture (USDA in February 2019), it is estimated
that global cotton output is about 25.79 million tons in 2018/19
with a decrease production of approximately 1.14 million tons in
2017/18 and declining rate of approximately 4.2%. The global cotton
consumption volume in 2018/19 will be approximately 26.92 million
tons with an increase of 0.23 million tons than approximately 26.69
million tons in 2017/18 and growing rate of approximately 0.9%.
The global cotton carry-over stock will be 16.44 million tons with
an decrease of approximately 7% compared with the previous year
and ratio of inventory to consumption is about 61%. It is estimated
that Chinese cotton inventory volume is about 7.05 million tons,
accounting for approximately 43% of global inventory volume;
Chinese cotton consumption volume accounts for about 33% of
total global consumption volume and the import amount accounts
for about 18% of total global import amount. At present, due to
the effect of declining cotton production from the main cotton-
production countries of US and India decline, the global cotton
inventory volume change to decline, and the cotton inventory volume
in China declined significantly. China’s No.1 Central Document in
2019 mentioned that “the re-launch of a Xinjiang quality cotton
production base initiative” will be beneficial to the increase in the
Xinjiang cotton plantation area and improve production of cotton.
However, there is still a big gap in the overall domestic demand and
supply of cotton, especially after many rounds in sales, the national
inventory volume of cotton has declined significantly. With the effect
of China-US trade conflict, after China imposed a 25% additional tax
on US cotton, the import amount of US cotton to China appeared
to decline. In the future, the cotton price will not only be affected by
size of plantation area and weather condition, but the changes in
global trade policy will also impose a larger effect to cotton price.
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In 2018, the global trade environment was more complicated, and it
greatly affected the textile and apparel industry. The China-US trade
conflict is currently in a negotiation stage filled with uncertainty. More
than 30% of US imports of apparels were from Mainland China.
In addition, countries like Vietnam and Bangladesh mainly export
apparels to the US, but these countries import fabric, production
mostly from China; it a relatively difficult to change the current
situation in the short-term. Cotton is the main raw material in textile
and apparel, with US being the major producer and exporter of
cotton in the world, and China being the major export market for US
cotton. As China and US are benefit each other in the textile and
apparel industry, the upgrade in trade conflict brings no economic
benefits to both countries in the textile and apparel industry.

Currently, the growth in global economy has slowed down, and the
overall consumption demand for apparel products is stable. Changes
in trade environment, increase in production costs and stringent
environment protection supervision posed great challenges to the
development of Chinese textile and apparel industry. Domestic
enterprise with favourable condition has to integrate the advantage
in industry resources in different countries, and proactively engage in
the transformation of business (especially on environmentally friendly
in production, increase investment in automation and digitalisation),
and increase the continuous innovative capability of enterprise in
products.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Within the year, the raw material price and staff cost continued to
increase in the textile and apparel industry, and the exchange rate
of RMB to USD further fluctuated. Although the business operating
pressure has not improved, the business of the Group continued to
maintain exciting growth, with sales revenue and operating results hit
a record high once again. The sales revenue and profit attributable
to owners of the parent in 2018 increased by 15.8% and 20.7%
respectively when compared with the year of 2017, realising earnings
per share of RMB3.02. In reviewing the operation of the Group within
the year, the contribution of production capability of overseas bases
has increased significantly, the level in automation in production
has been further raised. The resources consumption level has been
lowered effectively, and the market distribution in sales was more
reasonable.

During the year, production capability of overseas bases of the
Group has further increased, effectively lowering the pressure
of insufficient production capability resulting from the increase
in customer order. The management team of the overseas
factories of the Group has established a better talent reserve,
the business operation capability has matured, and the business
collaboration between headquarters and overseas factories has
become smoother. Although the current production capability of
fabrics factory in Vietnam has reached the expected scale for its
establishment, in consideration of the current good foundation of
the overseas bases, the Group would continue to expand the fabric
production capability in Vietham. In addition, the Group has built
a new garment factory near the fabric factory in Vietnam, and it is
expected to employ workers and start production by batch in the
second quarter of 2019. During the year, the Group entered into
a permanent lease contract for a renewable term of 50 years, the
land parcel of which is located in Phnom Penh city, Cambodia, and
the main construction for a Cambodia downstream garment factory
would start in the first half of 2019. It is expected that the new
garment factory in Cambodia will commence production in mid-
2020. The reasonable layout of the overseas production base has
enabled the Group to better cope with uncertain effects under the
changes in global trade environment and to integrate the industrial
resources advantage in different countries.
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To cope with the operating pressure from recruitment difficulties
and increasing labour cost, the Group focused more on automatic
equipment application to replace human operation. During the
year, the staff salary level continued to increase rapidly, but the
expenditure on staff as a proportion of the total cost decreased.
To adapt to the production automation arrangement, the Group
continued to improve production processes, and communicate
and interact with customers on product design. This resulted in
enhanced production efficiency, shortened delivery period and more
stable product quality. In addition, the Group and the equipment
manufacturers cooperated closely, using demand for innovation to
guide the manufacturers to produce customized equipment. The
Group will continue to increase the production automation level,
especially giving advance consideration for automation during the
layout planning of constructing new factory.

During the year, the upgrade and transformation work of the
production facility in the domestic fabric base of the Group is
largely completed. The resource consumption per product unit
decreased significantly, in particular consumption volume was
significantly saved in water resources, electricity and steam. Boilers
using biomass as basic fuel has been renovated to use natural
gas as basic fuel, thus effectively lessened the negative effect
to the environment, and enhanced the competitive advantage of
the environmental protection aspect of the Group. Meanwhile,
the renovation and transformation work has upgraded the level
of corporate automation and standardization. The accuracy in
production process has been enhanced, and brought advantage to
the stability in fabric quality. The resources consumption level and
pollutant discharge level have lowered, providing an opportunity for
the product capability expansion in the domestic fabric base.

The market distribution in sales for the Group was more reasonable.
Mainland China has become the single sales market with rapid
growth of the Group. With a huge population base and continuously
growing economy, the apparel consumption demand in Mainland
China has an optimistic growth prospect. Although the production
cost continued to increase, the Group did not plan to reduce the
production capacity in Mainland China. The Group would respond to
the cost increase pressure with automation and improved efficiency
in lean manufacture management. The production capacity in
Mainland China would first satisfy the customers from the domestic
market demand, then provide management and technical support
to overseas factory. The sales ratio in the three big markets of
Europe, USA and Japan of the Group were relatively equal. The
Group planned to provide production capacity gradually through its
overseas production base, so that customers of the Group can enjoy
the trade preference policy from different countries.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue had
been approximately RMB20,950,205,000, which increased by
approximately RMB2,864,958,000 than that of approximately
RMB18,085,247,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017, with
a growing rate of approximately 15.8%. Major reasons for increase
of revenue were: (1) the order demands of customers had ideal
growth; (2) the productivity of the overseas production bases
further enhanced; and (3) each production department continues to

increase its efficiency.

UWTAREE -_Z—\FEEE_ZT—+FE The comparison of revenue analyzed as per production classification
HEMER S Tﬁﬁ’]fﬁ’%%ﬁttf between 2018 and 2017 of the Group is as below:
BEt=AZt-ALER
For the year ended 31 December
—E-N\E —E-tF 28
2018 2017 Change
ARBTR % AREFL % AREBFR %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
REM By Products
EHHE Sports wear 14,275,643 68.1 12,048,896 66.6 2,226,747 18.5
ik Casual wear 5,167,355 247 4,600,534 25.4 566,821 123
AXE Lingerie wear 1,328,006 6.3 1,302,580 7.2 25,426 2.0
Hipsthim Other knitwear 179,201 0.9 133,237 0.8 45,964 34.5
HEmE Total revenue 20,950,205 100.0 18,085,247 100.0 2,864,958 15.8
BHE_Z-N\F+_A=1+—BLLFE E#H For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue from sales of

iﬁéuu Zﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ 45 AR 14,275,643,000
T BREE_E—tF+ A=+t —HILFE
ZHHEREL ARE12,048,896,0000T N T
# N R #2226,747,0007T ' 18 A18.5% °
BEYHEEMCHEERIZRGETRERN
PERIAEMSMERMG 2 REFK EH-

KRAEERMZHEBHEEZE -2 —tF+=
H:JrfElJtEJ*WW\E#}MOO 534,000
T EAEHE=ZZ-NF+=ZA=+—H
IEFERNH ARES,167,355,00070 A0 T
4 A R #566,821,0007T * #E 18 A 4912.3% °
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sportswear had been approximately RMB14,275,643,000, which
increased by approximately RMB2,226,747,000 than that of
approximately RMB12,048,896,000 for the year ended 31 December
2017 with a growing rate of 18.5%. The revenue from sales growth
of sportswear mainly came from the increasing clothing demands for
sports brands in Mainland China market and USA market.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue from sales of casual
wear had been approximately RMB5,167,355,000, which increased
by approximately RMB566,821,000 than that of approximately
RMB4,600,534,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017 with a
growing rate of approximately 12.3%. It was mainly attributed to the
increasing procurement demands for casual wear in Mainland China
market and USA market.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue from sales of
lingerie products had been approximately RMB1,328,006,000,
which increased by approximately RMB25,426,000 than that of
approximately RMB1,302,580,000 for the year ended 31 December
2017 with a growing rate of approximately 2.0%. It was mainly
attributed to the increasing procurement demands for lingerie in
Japanese market.

The comparison of revenue analyzed as per market segmentation
between 2018 and 2017 of the Group is as below:

BEt-B=t-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
ZE-N\E “E—+F 28
2018 2017 Change

ARETT % ARETFRL % AREFR %
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 %

ik As per market
B Europe 3,795,982 181 4,031,077 23 (235,095) (5.8)
ES USA 3,252,725 155 2,337,908 12.9 914,822 30.1
=k Japan 3,236,002 155 3,129,042 17.3 106,960 3.4
Lz Others 4,353,084 208  3742,637 207 610,447 163
B E N Sub-total of international sales 14,637,793 699 13,240,659 732 1,397,134 10.6
NEHE Domestic sales 6,312,412 304 4,844,588 268  1467,824 303
HEB Total revenue 20,950,205 1000 18,085,247 1000 2,864,958 15.8

BE-_Z-—NE+-_A=+—BILFE"
AEBERBMNMESNEESENRARE
3,795,982,000t RBEZF—tF+=H
=+ —HBIEFEMH ARKL031,077,000
JL R T #) A R #235,095,0007T 0 iR A
#15.8% - TE ZXBUM T S H BB ERERH
BEKTRBREC

For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue of the Group in
European market had been approximately RMB3,795,982,000,
which decreased by approximately RMB235,095,000 than that of
approximately RMB4,031,077,000 for the year ended 31 December
2017 with a declining rate of approximately 5.8%. It was mainly
attributed to the decreasing consumption demands for sportswear in
European market.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue of the Group
in USA market had been approximately RMB3,252,725,000,
which increased by approximately RMB914,822,000 than that
of approximately RMB2,337,903,000 for the year ended 31
December 2017 with a growing rate of approximately 39.1%. The
sharp increase in revenue of the Group in USA market was mainly
attributed to economic growth of the United States leading to the
increasing consumption demands and the significant increase in
orders for sportswear in USA market.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue of the Group in
Japanese market had been approximately RMB3,236,002,000,
which increased by approximately RMB106,960,000 than that of
approximately RMB3,129,042,000 for the year ended 31 December
2017 with a growing rate of approximately 3.4%. It was mainly
attributed to the increasing procurement demands for sportswear

and lingerie wear in Japanese market.

December 2018,
Group in other overseas markets had been approximately
RMB4,353,084,000, which increased by approximately
RMB610,447,000 than that of approximately RMB3,742,637,000
for the year ended 31 December 2017 with a growing rate of

For the year ended 31 revenue of the

approximately 16.3%. It was mainly attributed to increasing sports
fabric products exported markets in Canada, South Korea and
Taiwan.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue of the
Group from domestic market increase by approximately 30.3%
as compared with last year. Among domestic revenue, revenue
from apparels was approximately RMB6,101,459,000, which
increased by approximately RMB1,408,405,000 from approximately
RMB4,693,054,000 last year, with a growth rate of approximately
30.0%.

and with the fastest growth within the Group. Benefiting from the

Domestic market has become the single largest market
continuous increase of domestic consumption demand, the demand

in domestic orders from most customers of the Group has shown a
significant increase during the year.
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Cost of sales and gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2018, cost of sales of the
Group had been approximately RMB14,336,181,000 (2017:
RMB12,413,947,000).
in 2018 was approximately 31.6%, growing approximately 0.2
percentage points than that of 31.4% in 2017. During the vyear,

The gross profit margin of the Group

factors influencing gross profit margin were mainly attributed
to: 1) the increase of the scale of production capacity in the
overseas production bases of the Group, which further reduced the
amortization of fixed costs of the unit product; 2) the continuous
effective improvement of productivity of the Group; and 3) rising of
labour costs and price of raw materials offsetting the increase in
gross profit margin during the year.

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s equity attributable to owners
of the parent amounted to approximately RMB22,298,738,000
(2017: RMB19,621,181,000), in which non-current assets was
approximately RMB9,411,627,000 (2017: RMB8,886,726,000),
net current assets of approximately RMB13,220,801,000 (2017:
RMB10,941,124,000), non-current liability of approximately
RMB178,149,000 (2017: RMB3,197,000) and equity attributable to
non-controlling interests of approximately RMB155,541,000 (2017:
RMB203,472,000). Increase of equity attributable to owners of the
parent was mainly attributable to the increase of retained earnings
within the year.
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Liquidity and financial resources

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the net cash flow
from operating activities of the Group was approximately
RMB4,118,732,000, while it was approximately RMB3,689,266,000
in 2017. The cash and cash equivalent of the Group as at 31
December 2018 was approximately RMB3,565,916,000, in
which approximately RMB753,020,000 was denominated in
RMB, approximately RMB2,769,983,000 was denominated in
USD, approximately RMB19,575,000 was denominated in HKD,
approximately RMB18,150,000 was denominated in Vietnamese
dong, approximately RMB1,668,000 was denominated in Euro and
the remaining balance was denominated in other currencies (2017:
RMB2,471,401,000, in which approximately RMB352,935,000
was denominated in RMB, approximately RMB2,080,308,000
was denominated in USD, approximately RMB20,220,000
was denominated in Euro, approximately RMB11,793,000
was denominated in HKD, approximately RMB4,451,000 was
denominated in Vietnamese dong and the remaining balance was
denominated in other currencies). The balance of bank borrowings
was approximately RMB2,516,749,000 (2017: RMB2,130,409,000,
all being short-term bank borrowing), of which the short-term bank
borrowing was approximately RMB2,434,391,000, and long-term
bank borrowing was approximately RMB82,358,000. The net cash
of the Group as at 31 December 2018 (cash and cash equivalent
less bank borrowing) was approximately RMB1,049,167,000,
which increased by RMB708,175,000 from approximately
RMB340,992,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Equity attributable to owners of the parent amounted to
approximately RMB22,298,738,000 (2017: RMB19,621,181,000).
The Group had a good cash flow position and debt to equity ratio
was 11.3% (which was calculated as percentage of total outstanding
borrowings to equity attributable to owners of the parent) (2017:
10.9%), whose major reason for the slight growth than the previous
year was the increase in debts in overseas subsidiary of the Group.
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As a part of overall treasury management policies of the Group, the
Group purchased financial products from licensed banks of China
(including pledged deposits, other financial assets, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, structured deposits and fixed
deposits) to maximize the return brought by idle money of the Group
through legal and low-risk channel. The results for applicable size
test about purchasing the financial products was lower than 5%,
thus, this purchase was not subject to the notifiable transaction
requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. The purchase of
such financial products was approved by the investment and lending
committee established by the Board based on implementation of
treasury management policies of the Company. Details of those
financial products can be found in notes 21, 22, 23 and 24 to the
Financial Statements contained in this annual report.

Pledge of assets of the group

As at 31 December 2018, certain time deposits of the Group
amounting to RMB500,000,000 (2017: RMB500,000,000) were
pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group. The time
deposits have initial terms of more than one year and have fixed
annual rates of return at 3.5%. As at 31 December 2018, these
deposits will mature within one year.

Financing costs and tax

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the financing cost had
decreased to approximately RMB61,049,000 from approximately
RMB123,016,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017, which was
mainly attributed to an interest in convertible bonds of approximately
RMB42,074,000 which was included in the financing costs in the
previous year. The annual rate of USD borrowings of the Group
was between 2.6% and 5.2% during the year (2017: USD annual
borrowing rate was between 2.1% and 4.1%).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, the income tax expense of
the Group was approximately RMB597,803,000, which increased by
RMB69,523,000 than that of approximately RMB528,280,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2017, which was mainly attributed to the
increase in the assessable profit in Mainland China’s subsidiary of
the Group within the year.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The exchange rate fluctuation had a certain influence on costs and
operating profits of the group as sales of the Group was mainly
settled in USD and the procurement was mainly settled in RMB. For
the current situation of exchange rate fluctuation of USD to RMB, the
Group adopted related policies to hedge part of related exchange
risk. The hedged amounts depend on USD earnings, procurement
and capital expenditure of the Group, and market prediction of
exchange rate fluctuation of USD to RMB.

In order to avoid decrease in value of future cash flows and volatility
caused by any change of exchange rate of RMB to USD, the Group
had arranged certain amount of loans denominated in USD and
loans denominated in HKD with linked exchange rate with USD.
Amongst total bank loan as at 31 December 2018, the loan of
approximately RMB702,449,000 denominated in USD (calculated
based on original currency of approximately USD102,350,000)
and loan of approximately RMB1,314,300,000 denominated in
HKD (calculated based on original currency of approximately
HKD1,500,000,000) (31 December 2017: loan of approximately
RMB460,149,000 denominated in USD (calculated based on
original currency of approximately USD70,422,000) and loan of
approximately RMB1,170,260,000 denominated in HKD (calculated
based on original currency of approximately HKD1,400,000,000)).
The expansion of overseas production sites of the Group further
reduced the impact of exchange rate fluctuation of RMB to USD on
the Group’s business.
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EMPLOYMENT, TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed approximately
82,700 employees in total. During the year, total labor costs
(including administration and management staff) accounted for
approximately 26.0% of sales of the Group (2017: 27.2%). The total
staff cost as a proportion of the income decreased by approximately
1.2 percentage points as compared with last year, which was mainly
attributable to the improvement in production efficiency of the Group
and increase in overseas staff ratio offsetting the effect of increase in
staff salary. The Group gave remunerations to employees based on
their performance and qualifications as well as industrial convention
and took regular review on remuneration policies. According to
annual performance appraisal, employees would get year-end
bonus and reward. In addition, the Company would give rewards to
employees or encouragement in other forms to promote individual
growth of employees and career development. For example, the
Group continued to provide trainings for employees to improve their
technology and product knowledge and understanding of industrial
quality standards. All new staff of the Group must attend introductory
courses and all staff could also participate in various training
courses.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENT

During the year, total investment in property, plant and equipment
as well as prepaid land lease payment of the Group was
approximately RMB1,896,834,000, in which approximately 43%
was used for purchasing production equipment, approximately
45% for construction and acquisition of new plant buildings as
well as prepayment for land lease, and the remaining balance for
procurement of other fixed assets.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had contracted capital
commitments of approximately RMB789,034,000 for procurement
of land use right, property, plant and equipment, which were mainly
financed with internal resources.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

The Group has determined to build a new garment factory in Phnom
Penh, Cambodia during the year. It is estimated that an investment
of between USD 100 million and USD 150 million will be made for
this project in the coming two years. Apart from this, the Company
did not have significant investments, acquisitions and disposals
during the year ended 31 December 2018. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 17 September 2018 for the
details of the project in Phnom Penh.

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES RATIO

As at 31 December 2018, capital and liability ratio of the Group was
11.3%, which was calculated by percentage of total outstanding
loans to equity attributable to owners of the parent.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no any material contingent
liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events after the reporting period ended 31
December 2018, as at the date of this report which would have any
material effect to the Group.

FUTURE PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES
Affected by the slowdown in economic growth, the global
consumption demand was correspondingly sluggish. With China-
US trade conflicts bringing bigger uncertainty to the export trend
in the future, and the continuing increase in enterprise production
cost, the domestic textile and apparel industry will suffer pressure
from both the market and cost. The promotion in the supply-side
reform, enforcement in the environmental protection and the factor
price increase have promoted the Chinese textile and apparel
industry for internal integration and transnational product capability
layout. Vietnam is benefitting from the current cost advantage,
favourable trade environment and input of industrial technology and
management from other countries, the apparel industry is in a good
position for growth in export. However, as the scale of industrial
investment continues to increase, the textile and garment industry
in Vietnam will face fierce competition from the industry, and the
resource factor price will increase rapidly.
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For future development, the Group will persist in the dual operation
of domestic and overseas bases to match the long-term business
development plan of major customers and to gradually develop
production capacity. The Group will expand the output of its garment
manufacturing in phrases during the next two years in Vietnam and
Cambodia, to keep up with the pace of rapid growth in customer
orders demand. Through innovative products and quality service to
improve the corporate competitiveness, the Group will gain more
market share. Through lean management and automated production
to increase production efficiency, the Group can cope with the
operating pressure from cost increase.

The domestic base of the Group provided vital operating protection
for the expansion of overseas business, especially in supporting
talent training and output, management and technical guidance,
and collaboration of production business. The main function of
transformation and upgrade of enterprise will be performed by the
domestic base, especially in the continuous improvement in research
and development of new products, automation application and
management digitalization, with results transfer to overseas factories
accordingly.

The Group will continue to focus on the main business of textile
and apparel,
development. The Group will enhance its corporate innovation

and increase the input in product research and

ability based on training and motivating internal technological talent,
meanwhile, introducing talents in this industry and increasing the
technical interaction and cooperation with external institutions. The
Group currently set up two academician workstations separately for
environmental protection and new material technology aspects to

obtain more leading information on business development.
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The Group will continue to improve the promotion of automation
application in production process to lower the staff technical
requirement and work intensity, and continuously achieve to increase
the production efficiency. In addition, the Group endeavoured
to promote the construction of intelligent factory to achieve the
integration of the product automation and management digitalization,
especially in improving the instant exchange of data and information
among transnational factories and instant sharing of business
handling, so as to lower the talent demand pressure in overseas
factories.

The Group will continue to increase the production capacity of
overseas bases, to provide better support service to customers
in different sales markets, and to lower the uncertainty risk from
changes in trade environment. Meanwhile, the Group will provide
management and skills training to locals in the overseas factories
and increase the independent corporate operating capability, so
as to consolidate the stable long-term development of overseas
factories.

The future development of the enterprise must depend on the
continuing advancement of technology and management. The Group
is dedicated to pursue for excellence, innovate constantly, strive to
improve on the corporate commercial value and social value, as well
as improve sustainable development ability of the enterprise.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group’s stated objective is to enhance its corporate value,
focusing on the solid growth in net profit and consistently
stable cash flow, to ensure the Group’s long-term, sustainable
development and to achieve sound returns for shareholders. The
Group is committed to raising its corporate governance standards
and increasing the transparency of its operations. Such objective
will be achieved by constantly improving the quality of corporate
governance of the Company through the provision of continuous
training for Directors as well as staff and the appointment of external
professional advisers.

The Board adopted its own Code of Corporate Governance, which
covers all of the code provisions and most of the recommended
best practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 9 October 2005. The Company had
complied with all the code provisions of the CG Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Terms of Reference of Board Committees

In order to comply with the Listing Rules and the CG Code, the
terms of reference of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company are
regularly revised based on amendments to the Listing Rules and the
CG Code. Such terms of reference and the list of Directors and their
roles and functions are published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange, respectively.
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Responsibilities of Directors

All Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 set out in the CG Code. The
Company arranged for continuous professional development on
the update of the Listing Rules and the related legal and regulatory
requirements for the Directors.

Independent Non-executive Directors

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board had complied
with (1) the requirement that the board of a listed issuer must include
at least three independent non-executive directors under Rule
3.10(1) of the Listing Rules; (2) the requirement that at least one
of the independent non-executive directors must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules; and
(8) the requirement that the number of independent non-executive
directors must represent at least one-third of the Board under Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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BEENHE-_ZT-N\F+-_A=+—HIE A summary of training received by the Directors during the year

EREZEINHZOT: ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

= EINER ()
Name of Directors Types of training (Notes)
HITES

Executive Directors

BRREE A&B
Mr. Ma Jianrong

ERAMELE A&B
Mr. Huang Guanlin

BLREE A&B
Mr. Ma Renhe

ITRREE A&B
Mr. Wang Cunbo

REHxt A&B

Ms. Chen Zhifen

BYFBTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
BR B 5t & A&B
Mr. Chen Xu
BEmELE A&B
Mr. Jiang Xianpin
REB KL A&B
Mr. Qiu Weiguo
SRIMAE K HE A&B
Mr. Zhang Bingsheng

(RZE-NFALA-BEZEE)

(appointed on 1 September 2018)

B 3 - Notes:
A HEBARATHZHANE A:  attending seminars organized by the Company
B: MEAMLMBRAILEMEREZLREER B: reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest

TE B T R I AT e MR R R AR development of the Listing Rules and other applicable legal and
regulatory requirements
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Corporate governance functions

The Company adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions on 26 March 2012 in compliance with
the code provision D.3 set out in the CG Code, effective from 1
April 2012. Pursuant to the terms of reference of the corporate
governance functions, the Board shall be responsible for developing
and reviewing and/or monitoring the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Group; training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management and
making recommendations; compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and the Group’s compliance
with the CG Code.

Communications with shareholders

Pursuant to the code provision E.1.2 set out in the CG Code, the
Company invited representatives of the external auditors of the
Company to attend the annual general meeting of the Company to
be convened on 28 May 2019 to answer shareholders’ questions
relating to the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the auditors’ report, the accounting policies and auditor

independence.

The Company adopted a shareholders’ communication policy and
procedures with effect from 26 March 2012 for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a Director. The policy and the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.
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THE BOARD

The Group endeavours to enhance corporate efficiency and
profitability through the Board. The Directors recognise their
collective and individual responsibility to the shareholders and
perform their duties diligently to contribute to positive results for the
Company and maximize returns for shareholders.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Board comprised five
Executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive Directors,
whose biographical details and family relationships among certain
Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors and Members of Senior Management” on pages 124
to 132. There are no other material financial, business or relevant
relationships among the Directors.

The Board is responsible for governing the Company and managing
assets entrusted by the shareholders. The principal responsibilities
of the Board include formulating the Group’s business strategies and
management objectives, supervising the management and evaluating
of the effectiveness of management strategies.

The day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses is delegated
to the Executive Directors or officers in charge of each division. The
functions and power that are so delegated are reviewed periodically
to ensure that they remain appropriate. Matters reserved for the
Board are those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies,
finances and shareholders including financial statements, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policy, material contracts
and major investments. All Board members have separate and
independent access to the Group’s senior management to fulfill their
duties. They also have full and timely access to relevant information
about the Group and are kept abreast of the operating condition,
business activities and development of the Group. Independent
professional advice can be sought at the Group’s expense upon their
request.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their first
appointment of the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organizations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis. A Director should declare
his/her interests and abstain from voting in respect of any proposal
or transaction discussed by the Board in which he/she is deemed by
the Board to have a conflicting interest.
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Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests,
if any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the
Board at Board meetings and withdraw from the meetings as
appropriate. The Company follows guidelines (available at the
“Corporate Governance” section of our website) at each financial
reporting period to seek confirmation from Directors in respect of any
transactions of the Company or its subsidiaries which are related to
Directors or their associates. The identified significant related party
transactions are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements of
this annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND GROUP GENERAL MANGER
The Chairman of the Board and the Group General Manager
have separate and distinctive roles. The Chairman of the Board is
responsible for the significant operational decisions of the Group,
while the Group General Manager is responsible for managing the
day-to-day operations of the Group’s business. Mr. Ma Jianrong
is the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Huang Guanlin is the Group
General Manager.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Independent Non-executive
Directors accounted for approximately 44.4% of the members of the
Board. The Independent Non-executive Directors are outstanding
executives or experts in the textile industry and business sectors
who bring with them expertise in different areas. They provide
adequate control and balances for the Group to protect the overall
interests of the shareholders and the Group. The role of the
Independent Non-executive Directors is to provide independent and
objective opinions to the Board for its consideration and decisions.
All Independent Non-executive Directors have submitted annual
written confirmation of their independence and compliance with the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

Board proceedings

Regular Board meetings are held to discuss the Group’s
operation, financial performance, corporate governance and future
development. At least 14 days prior notice and an agenda with
supporting papers of no less than 3 days of the Board meeting are
given to Directors to ensure timely access to the relevant information
for discharge of their duties.
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Minutes of the Board and Board Committees are taken by the
Company Secretary and, together with any supporting papers, are
open for inspection following reasonable notice by any Directors.
Draft and final versions of minutes are also sent to all Directors for
their comment and records, respectively.

The Company held 4 full Board meetings for the year ended
31 December 2018, with all the existing members of the Board
attended.

Board meetings will be held at least four times a year with additional
meetings convened as and when necessary to determine overall
strategic directions and objectives and approve interim and annual
results and other significant matters.

During the year, the Chairman also held a separate meeting with all
the Independent Non-executive Directors to address business issues
and concerns.

BOARD DIVERSITY

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives among members of
the Board, it is the policy of the Company to consider a number
of factors when deciding on appointments to the Board and the
continuation of those appointments. Such factors include gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to
assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has three
Committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee have been structured to include a majority
of Independent Non-executive Directors as members in order to
reinforce independence, while the Audit Committee only comprises
Independent Non-executive Directors. All of the Committees are
governed by its respective terms of reference, which are available
on the Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com and the Stock
Exchange’s website www.hkexnews.hk.

All Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties. The Committees report to the Board on a regular
basis to discuss significant issues and findings and to make
recommendations to the Board for making decisions.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in
compliance with the CG Code on 9 October 2005. As of the
issuance of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises Mr.
Ma Renhe, an executive director, Mr. Chen Xu, Mr. Jiang Xianpin
and Mr. Zhang Bingsheng, three of them are independent non-
executive directors. On 1 September 2018, Mr. Zhang Bingsheng
was appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr.
Chen Xu is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure for the directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent process for approving
such remuneration policy. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management. No director
will take part in any discussion on his or her own remuneration. The
details of the Directors’ fees are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

The Company’s objective for its remuneration policy is to maintain
fair and competitive packages based on business requirements and
industry practice. In order to determine the level of remuneration and
fees paid to members of the Board, market rates and factors such
as each director’s workload, responsibility, and job complexity are
taken into account.

The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings with full attendance in
2018. At the meetings, it reviewed the remuneration of Directors and
senior management.

Details of the remuneration by band of the 10 members of the
senior management of the Company, whose biographies are set out
on pages 129 to 132 of this annual report, for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out below:

: A8

FER (BET ) Number of

Remuneration band (HK$’000) individual

1,00022,000 1,000 to 2,000 3
2,000A £ Above 2,000 7

Annual Report 2018 £

47



48

TEERRE

Corporate Governance Report

REEEE

ARAER-FEAF+ANARIREE
Bg - HE-T-\F+-A=+—BLF
Y REZEFEHENTEFSRLAER

EXEI

SRBUFNTERREELLE BER
ERERESRE R-E—\FAA—B &
MEXRLERZERIRRZESEE -FEX
EERRBZEGENEE-

REZEENIZEERVECEAESEER
IREEEFHOAL REREZAEALHE
EEhtREETSREEREZS LEB
WA EFEHRE  ABRZHREEK (21
B BN ERITE) - YR EMEREL S
EYPHREZTSRMHEBRS-

ARFCHRMBEZRE (IREBBK]) - RE
RABK RIEEFREAEZSAE RS
ZEEREETNIEARREANEER 25
(ERERR) :

[ ]
i
1

e NREEFENAHMELR FRRHK
.,

s HRARBEREBEHNEAE: &

. THE 2R (ERNRR)ER *
J‘E”ﬁ"@ﬁ%}ﬂi%i) BEER &
ERE e MR ER-

BT ke
— AE

LEBEN T N\FH
%&Eﬁﬁﬁf’h%%%AﬁAﬁ
R R EE S - o SRR
BEAE ([REBFEAE]) Lits-

'
E2
&

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 9 October
2005. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee comprises Mr. Ma Jianrong, an executive director, Mr. Qiu
Weiguo, Mr. Jiang Xianpin and Mr. Zhang Bingsheng, three of them
are independent non-executive directors. On 1 September 2018, Mr.
Zhang Bingsheng was appointed as a member of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Ma Jianrong is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are
to identify candidates with suitable qualifications as directors,
select and nominate such candidates for directorship and provide
recommendations to the Board accordingly; regularly review the
structure, size and diversity composition (including skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board and make recommendations to the
Board for any proposed changes.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”). Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, in assessing the
suitability of a proposed candidate for directorship, the Nomination
Committee will take into account the following factors of the

candidate, including but not limited to:

° reputation for integrity;

° accomplishment and experience in the manufacturing industry,
in particular, in the garment sector;

° commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;
and

° diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,

gender, age (18 years or above), educational background,

professional experience, skills and length of service.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings with full attendance
in 2018. At the meetings,
reappointment of retiring Directors for shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).

it reviewed and recommended the
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at any time
either by the shareholders in general meeting or by the Board upon
recommendation by the Nomination Committee.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, any
Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors or to fill
casual vacancies shall hold office until the next AGM (in the case
of an addition to the Board) or until the next general meeting (in
the case of filling a casual vacancy), and are eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required to retire
by rotation at least once every three years at the AGM, subject to
re-election by the shareholders. All Independent Non-executive
Directors are appointed for specific terms of not more than three
years.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in compliance with
Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the Listing Rules on 9 October 2005. As of
the issuance of this report, the Audit Committee comprises four
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Jiang Xianpin,
Mr. Chen Xu, Mr. Qiu Weiguo and Mr. Zhang Bingsheng. On 1
September 2018, Mr. Zhang Bingsheng was appointed as a member
of the Audit Committee. Mr. Jiang Xianpin is the chairman of the
Audit Committee. His expertise in accounting, auditing and finance
enables him to lead the Audit Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to conduct
critical and objective reviews of the Group’s financial and accounting
practices, risk management and internal controls. These include
determining the nature and scope of statutory audit, reviewing
the Group’s interim and annual financials and assessing the
completeness and effectiveness of the Group’s accounting and
financial controls.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent with
the recommendations as set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the provisions of the CG
Code and are subject to amendments in response to the regulatory
requirements from time to time (including the Listing Rules).
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The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management and
the external auditors of the Company the annual results and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, risk management, internal control and financial
statements matters including the review of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018. During the year, the Audit
Committee also met the external auditors twice without the presence
of the management of the Company to discuss the audit procedures
and accounting issues.

Details of Director’s attendance at the AGM, Board and Board
Committee Meetings held in 2018 are set out in the following table.
The overall attendance rate of Directors at Board meetings was
100.00%.

HE/BTERRE
Meetings Attended/Held
Exeex EREEE FMZzEESE REZEE RREFAS
Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Meeting Committee Committee Committee AGM

HiTES
Executive Directors
SRREE 4/4 - - 2/2 1/1
Mr. Ma Jianrong
BEEMKREE 4/4 - - - 1/1
Mr. Huang Guanlin
BLMESE 4/4 - 2/2 - 1/1
Mr. Ma Renhe
TEREE 4/4 - - - 1/1
Mr. Wang Cunbo
BREHRL 4/4 - - - 1/1
Ms. Chen Zhifen
BIFHITES
Independent Non-executive Directors
BB %% 4/4 2/2 2/2 - 1/1
Mr. Chen Xu
BEREE 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1
Mr. Jiang Xianpin
RERLE 4/4 2/2 - 2/2 1/1
Mr. Qiu Weiguo
FIREFE 1/1 - - 1/1 -

Mr. Zhang Bingsheng
(RZZ-\FNA—-BEZH)
(appointed on 1 September 2018)

REEREANREFHEHLRIT—

REFEEH-

MaE: (1)

Note: (1) One board meeting was held during the period where Mr. Zhang

was a director to the Company.

ER ) B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



AN gy
EREBHRSE

Corporate Governance Report

RS

ESCEHAABEEARREEALN
AERE  WIREBEFASTEHAE QMM EE
HERANTEGHERNRHEERE - AR AR
BEENETBORL E®EM  FIEHE &
BB EERA R -BERRNEVBRE
EHAEENRBERREAMSIELTE RS
RIBEE R FE A -

[ B o TR e B R 4

E=eMAHURAREEMABEESER
BEERBzEXR-BEFSHRAAFHERE
APl M AN A ) R KBRS B AR P RE AR
MEBREERER THEF—EEERAN
B\ e R K A BP B R AT A R EERBE R
FRAKREABALTIHERE AR AN ER
AR ©

AEENRREEMABEZERRTEER
EiEmaBMa M E BREETSWIE
TR R KB AR IE - MR IR E VB RTRDER
BEERQAMMBHRE I F R ERETHE
HARERP - ZERENEEFEE NS
MBS ER  FHABETNRHNET I
SEEMFPERERRB RS HANER -

AARNEERREEAERMNASENA
FEET BEEBERIIRSN HR B
HEMEHEAEEXB I NELFRN
[R\B o IR B RHAE AR A AR R AROKF
AR L0 Il E e AT B FRAK AR TRRI R R
B BEZRBRNECZESERESTERE-F
REZBEENEFERREBEEARREKER
BERRAREEANERRREEREE
I 45 3| 7N 5 H /O B fn e 3 R o

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
accounts which give a true and fair view in accordance with the
accounting standards generally accepted in Hong Kong as published
by the HKICPA. The Company has selected appropriate accounting
policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Directors endeavoured to
make a fair and comprehensible assessment of the Group’s current
conditions and prospects in the financial report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board recognises its responsibility of risk management and
internal control system and reviewing its effectiveness. The Board
acknowledges its responsibility to assess and determine the nature
and degree of risks that it is willing to take in achieving strategic
goals as well as to maintain an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control system and to ensure accurate
reporting of the Company’s state of affairs to shareholders and the
public in a timely manner.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is
designed to manage and enhance operating effectiveness and
efficiency, to safeguard assets against misappropriation and
unauthorized disposition, to maintain appropriate accounting
records and financial reports that are true and fair, and to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The system aims
at providing a reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and managing rather than eliminating
operational risks.

The overall risk management process of the Company is integrated
in the day-to-day operations of the Group and the management
is entrusted with duties to analyze, identify, monitor, evaluate
and respond to risks associated with the business activities and
operations of the Group. The management will evaluate risk levels
acceptable for the Company, set up contingency plans and formulate
contingency plans to minimize impact of unpredictable events and
report its findings to the Audit Committee and the Board, who
ultimately determine the nature and extent of significant risk that the
Company is willing to take in achieving its business objectives and
direct the Group’s risk management strategies.
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The Internal Audit Department is tasked with performing internal
control functions of the Company and plays an important role in
monitoring the internal governance of the Company. The Internal
Auditor reports directly to the Chairman and has direct access to
the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Department has unrestricted
access to information that allows it to review all aspects of the
Company’s risk management, control and governance processes.
On a regular basis, it conducts audits on major activities and
process of the Group’s business and support units. It also conducts
special reviews or investigations of areas of concern identified
by the management or the Audit Committee. All audit reports are
communicated to the Audit Committee, Directors and key senior
management. Audit issues are tracked and followed up for proper
implementation, with progress reported to the Audit Committee,
Directors and senior management directly and periodically.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control system of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2018, which covered controls
over financial reporting, operations and compliance, as well as risk
management functions, and considered that the system of internal
controls in operation in the Group have been in place and functioning
effectively.

Assisted by the Audit Committee, the Board assessed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system
of the Group by reviewing the investigation results of management
report and internal audits, and considered that the risk management
and internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 was effective and adequate.

The Group has formulated procedures on the handling and
disclosure of inside information which provides a general guide
to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior management and
relevant employees in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries. The procedures
help ensure that any material information which comes to the
knowledge of any officer of the Company should be promptly
identified, assessed and reported to the Board if required, and
that inside information of the Company is disclosed promptly in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations when necessary.
To further enhance the internal control of the Company, the
Company has adopted a written inside information disclosure policy
on 27 March 2017 to standardize the responsibility and procedure of
information disclosure.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group’s independent external auditor is Ernst & Young. The
Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of the external
auditors and reviewing the non-audit functions performed by the
external auditors for the Group. In particular, the Audit Committee
will, prior to the execution of contract with the external auditors and
the commencement of their duties, consider whether the non-audit
functions will result in any potential material conflict of interest.

The related remuneration for the audit services and non-audit
services provided by Ernst & Young to the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 amounted to RMB3,119,900 and RMB861,600
respectively.

The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, process and effectiveness
of Ernst & Young and has recommended their appointment as the
Company’s external auditors at the forthcoming AGM.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS
The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in the Listing Rules as
the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions (“Securities Trading Code”). A copy of the Securities
Trading Code is provided to all Directors upon their appointment.
Reminder will be issued twice a year, being 30 days prior to the
Board meeting approving the Company’s interim results and 60
days prior to the Board meeting approving the Company’s annual
results, reminding the Directors that they are not allowed to deal in
the Company’s securities prior to the announcement of its results
(the period during which the directors are prohibited from dealing
in shares) and that all transactions must comply with the Securities
Trading Code. Upon specific enquiries, all Directors confirmed
their strict compliance with the relevant provisions of the Securities
Trading Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

Senior management may be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information or inside information due to their positions
in the Company, and hence, are required to comply with dealing
restrictions under the Securities Trading Code.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Chan Tak Hing Keniji, is responsible for
facilitating the Board process, as well as communications among
Board members, with shareholders and management. Mr. Chan’s
biography is set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and
Members of Senior Management” section on pages 124 to 132 of
this annual report. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook not less than
15 hours of professional training to update his skills and knowledge.
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BREEBREARESR INVESTORS RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION

EEorEREERGAETEE - AR LA The Board recognises the importance of communication with its

HARE AR ERHEIEMNLE LI EIEE  shareholders. Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive

BomBEEREFASBERENEEM@MES  operational and financial performance information to shareholders

SERERENE R - and the AGM provides a forum for shareholders to express their
concerns directly to the Board.

REENKREEBERIFHEHETEHTE KR Our Investor Relations Department communicates with research

WHEISEEBER W HSIBEMEAEBEARER analysts and institutional investors in an on-going manner and

EEELERNGEETEER provides them with up-to-date and comprehensive information about
the Group’s strategies and development.
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The Company also issues press releases from time to time
throughout the year and responds to requests for information and
queries from the investors. Current information on the Company
including interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,
press releases and presentations material can be retrieved through
our Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com. Information on the
website is updated in a timely manner to ensure the speed, fairness
and transparency of our disclosure. We recognize that not all
shareholders and stakeholders have ready access to the internet. If
necessary, hard copies of those website information listed above are
available free of charge upon request to the Company Secretary.

SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has a policy of open communication and fair
disclosure. Disclosure is a key means to enhance our corporate
governance standards, in that it provides our shareholders and
other stakeholders with the information necessary for them to form
their own judgment and to provide feedback to us. We understand
that more disclosure does not necessarily result in increased
transparency. The integrity of the information provided is essential for
building market confidence.
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The Board and Senior Management recognize their responsibility
to represent the interests of all shareholders and to maximize
shareholder value. Therefore, we strongly encourage shareholders
to put forward proposals at an AGM or extraordinary general
meeting (‘EGM”) including a written notice of those proposals that
could be addressed to the Company Secretary at the registered
office. Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the
Company Secretary through our hotline 852-2310-4919, email at
2313ir@shenzhougroup.com or raising questions at an AGM or
EGM. Questions on the procedures for convening or putting forward
proposals at an AGM or EGM may also be put to the Company
Secretary by the same means.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requesting
member(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requesting member(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board to convene such meeting shall be
reimbursed to the requesting member(s) by the Company.

We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve on our
corporate governance practices in light of evolving experience,
regulatory requirements and international developments. Corporate
governance is an evolving process. Good corporate governance is a
journey, rather than a final destination.

Memorandum and Articles of Association

During the period from 1 January 2018 to the date of this annual
report, there was no material change in the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This sustainability report outlines the approaches, commitment
and strategies of the Group’s major subsidiaries in four aspects —
workplace quality, environmental protection, operating practices
and community involvement. The reporting period of this report is
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018. The data disclosed
in this report is provided by the respective human resources,
administration, finance, energy and other relevant departments,
and has been prepared and collected by sustainable development
department.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” set out in
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules. During the reporting period, the
Company has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set
out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”.

VISION

Shenzhou’s position for its future corporate development is to
be committed to becoming the best garment operator in the
worldwide. Shenzhou is Asia’s biggest vertically integrated garment
enterprise, with a complete operation system including research
and development, design, production and logistics. The future
development strategy of Shenzhou is not only to pursue the
continuous growth of the scale of the enterprise, but also to focus on
the comprehensive uplift in the corporate competitiveness, especially
the improvement in innovation, automation, informatisation and
environmental protection.
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MISSION

“Building a green enterprise and offering people a comfortable life” —

Environmental protection is Shenzhou’s primary social responsibility

as well as the basis of long-term viability for any enterprises. The

Group shall always remain devoted to environmental commitments,

from which corporate sustainability can be realized. Comfort is not

merely a tactile sensation from our knitwear, but also a state of living

that we so fervently pursue. By creating a life of comfort, we seek to

make the enterprise one with nature.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

1.

The Profile of Shenzhou’s Environmental Protection:
Environmental protection is one of the key policies of the
government. In recent years, the Chinese government has
strengthened its effort in environmental protection policy
through reform of the supply side, which restricts and
eliminates the outdated production facilities that have negative
impact on the environment. In 2018, the Chinese government
continued to improve environmental protection legislation, and
many environmental protection regulations were introduced
and amended, including “Soil Pollution Prevention and Control
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Atmospheric Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and “Law of the People’s Republic of China on Environmental
Impact Assessment”, “Water Pollution and Control Law of
the People’s Republic of China” etc. Such laws highlighted
the regulations in the supervision and management in
environmental protection, prevention of pollution, the relevant
responsibilities of local governments and pollutant discharging
entity.
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As the government increased the effect of the environment
protection supervision and enforcement, some enterprises in
textile and dyeing did not meet the standard in discharging
pollutants, and were ordered to rectify or shut down. The
textile industry will focus more on environmental protection and
increase the investment gradually. Constrained by the pressure
in cost and environmental protection capability, it is expected
that some enterprises will leave the industry accordingly. More
clear and comprehensive requirements have been made in
monitoring of pollutants in the whole process, optimization
of energy structure, evaluation of the impact on environment
and measures for environmental issues and the environmental
responsibility of relevant entities are also emphasized.

During the reporting period, the Company has complied with
all relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Company relating to environmental protection and
emissions of gas, wastewater and solid waste.

The main resources and energy used in the process of the
Group’s production include water, electricity, coal, natural
gas, biomass fuel and steam. Fabric production is the main
process of energy consumption. The main wastes generated
from production are wastewater and waste gas etc., the former
of which is generated from dyeing process. The Group has
wastewater treatment facility in China and Vietnam respectively
to treat discharged water. Meanwhile, the Group has recycled
facilities in Mainland China, with a capacity of 15,000 tons
of reclaimed water per day. Through sewage spilt-flow in
the production process, lightly polluted water for dyeing is
recycled after treatment with a usage rate of over 40%. Thus,
it effectively lower the consumption in water resources and the
volume of direct wastewater discharge, and dyed polluted water
is discharged after strict treatment.

The air pollutant generated from production process are mainly
smoke and dust, sulphur dioxide and nitrogen oxide. In 2018,
the Group has replaced the biomass boilers with natural gas
boilers in Mainland China, and the emission of nitrogen oxide
has lowered significantly.
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The Group pays attention to the control of pollutants in the
whole process and attaches importance to the environmental
protection performance of raw materials provided by suppliers
in determination of suppliers. Each production department
continues to improve technique and tries to enhance the level
of environmental protection in technique. It optimizes energy
structure and gradually increases the use of clean energy.
It upgrades old equipment promptly through introduction
of advanced and greener equipment with low consumption
to reduce the consumption of resources and emission of
pollutants. In the final treatment of pollutants, it strictly
complies with relevant requirements of government and

ensures compliance with standards in emission.

The emission of hazardous wastes and non-hazardous wastes
in 2018 was counted the statistic in whole Group. In 2018, the
emission of hazardous wastes of the Group was 679 tons in
aggregate,
as compared to that of last year and the major emissions are

representing an increase of approximately 5.90%

wasted fluorescent light and wasted ink. In addition, the Group
also has facilities for emission of non-hazardous wastes and
the emission of non-hazardous wastes was 59,710 tons in
aggregate and the hazard wastes in Vietnam and Cambodia
district like the chemical packaging material was handled by
the factories, but the chemical packaging material in Ningbo
district was handled by the suppliers.

The total consumption of electricity of the Group for the year
was 586,290,671 kwh, representing a year-on-year increase of
15.20%. The main use of electricity was production of fabrics.
In 2018, the fabric output of the Group was 186,099 tons,
representing an increase of 18.68% as compared to that of
last year. The electric consumption of the fabric factory was
431,143,576 kwh,
14.37% as compared to that of last year.

representing an increase of approximately

In 2018, the consumption of steam was 1,646,921 tons,
representing a year-on-year increase of 10.58%. The increase
in steam consumption was attributable to the increase in
production capacity by the Group.
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In 2018, the total consumption of environment-friendly biomass
and coal was 208,423 tons (2017: 251,352 tons), representing
a decrease of 17.08% as compared to that of last year and the
decreasing reason is the biomass gas boilers are replaced by
the natural gas boilers.

In the current year, the Group’s activities had no significant
impact on environmental protection and natural resources. In
terms of the relevant policy in environmental protection and
natural resources, 100% of factories complied with emission
standards on waste water, waste gas and noise, respectively.
In terms of the emission of waste water, the current emission of
waste water of the Group is better than standard. In addition,
the water consumption the Group for the year is 27,482,504
tons, which increased by 10.40% when compared with last
year, which was mainly due to the increase of production
capacity of fabric factory in Vietnam.

Meanwhile, the Group will enhance the efforts to reduce
the discharge of water and the emission of the waste gas.
The discharge of wastewater for 2020 is expected to be
approximately 35% less than that for 2015. In addition, the
Group will increase the use of renewable energy.

Furthermore, raw materials used in the manufacture of each
unit product will be 10% less and the recycling and reuse of
20% of wasted production raw materials are guaranteed, which
reduces carbon dioxide’s emission.

In 2018, packaging materials of the Group’s garment
totalled approximately 28,338 tons, representing an increase
of 13.49% as compared to that of last year, which was
attributable to the increase in packaging materials due to the
growth in production volume.

Annual Report 2018 £

61



62

R - HERERRS
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SO AEBEAFEMENHAS
65,35018 - \ EFEE N T 4974.87% -

M 2=188,571F A KB E [25,070F
FAREL - B RNEBBBEBME
KA AT R E 2 2586,290,671F B4
N B EFE BT #915.20% ¢ AT
) — AL = 462,840 - AN EE 1
REEMAMNEREEESKALZ
8,714,022 F L/ B L FE TR T
#91.35% * M FTHE A — & (L fiR 26,841
WE o LN ANEBAEARFEFRKAEEE
TBREIK KA 22,437,320 F FLAF B

B EFERADL3.97%  mATHERAN =
SR 21,9130 o

In addition, the Group planted 65,350 trees in the current
year, representing an increase of approximately 74.87%
as compared to that of last year and covering a lawn of
138,511 square meters and Radix Ophiopogonis of 5,070
square meters. Furthermore, the electricity consumption of
the Group at the power plant was 586,290,671 kwh for the
year, representing an increase of approximately 15.20% as
compared to that of last year, which resulted in the emission
of carbon dioxide of 462,840 tons. The electricity consumption
of the Group for treatment of waste water in the current year
was approximately 8,714,022 kwh, representing a decrease
of approximately 1.35% as compared to that of last year,
which resulted in the emission of carbon dioxide of 6,841
tons. Moreover, the electricity consumption of the Group
for reclaimed water in the current year was approximately
2,437,320 kwh, representing a decrease of approximately
3.97% as compared to that of last year, which resulted in the
emission of carbon dioxide of 1,913 tons.
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1. EMISSIONS

BN —NFEKERRER 1.1 Shenzhou’s wastewater discharge and smoke
e emission in 2018
—E{e BN E BEKEERE
Volume of sulphur dioxide discharged Volume of waste water discharged
19,971,162
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Note: The increase in sulphur dioxide
and waste water discharged
were attributable to the
increase of the production
capacity in 2018.
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Note: The decrease in nitrogen oxides discharged was
attributable to the replacement of biomass boilers with
natural gas boilers.
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Please refer to the following table for the intensity of
discharged volume of sulphur dioxide, nitrogen oxides,
smoke and dust, waste water, hazardous waste and non-
hazardous waste in 2017 and 2018:

—E—+F —E-N\EF
2017 2018

R ERNRE 0.0001 0.0001
The intensity of discharged volume of sulphur dioxide
RALMBERENRE 0.0001 0.0001
The intensity of discharged volume of nitrogen oxides
R E R RE 0.0001 0.0001
The intensity of discharged volume of smoke and dust
BEKFERER R E 0.0540 0.0501
The intensity of discharged volume of waste water
EREMHERENRE 0.0001 0.0001
The intensity of discharged volume of hazardous waste
FEBEDMHNENRE 0.0001 0.0002

The intensity of discharged volume of non-hazardous waste

MiEE: REZFERBRENE LT
BRENBEEEZL R

Bl BE B 75 1 -

Note: Intensity represents the ratio between total discharged
volume and total production of knitwear each year.

Measures in energy conservation and emission reduction:

ERihEETEERE(MER S BREE)
Energy consumption per ten thousand output value in Ningbo district
(tons of standard coal / ten thousand output value)

0 9 9 g 9

‘ < < < < ~ q | <

20064 20074 20084 200949 20104 20114 20129 2013%F 20144 20159 20164 20174 20184

BRI R A R E P KE
RA&E SERRUAERE 2
BIEBFREETIBNS R EREK
RimpaIE - Bt - A ASE B BT BEF2
FEAK AN K B8 T & E(EBERE

Given that Ningbo district owns large-scale reclaimed
water recycling facilities, energy-saving eco-friendly
production equipment, clean production technique for
the whole process and high-standard wastewater final
treatment. Therefore, it is able to save energy effectively,
lower consumption and significantly bring down the
energy consumption output value.
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In the current year, the garment plant in Vietnam has
installed intelligent management devices on the air-
blowing platform board. Every modified air-blowing
platform board for cropping can save more than 3
degrees of electricity daily. As there are 65 air-blowing
platform boards in the plant in Viethnam now, more than
5,070 degrees of electricity are saved monthly, thus more
than 60,000 degrees of electricity are saved in a year.

In addition, the main focus of the energy-saving
equipment for the fabric plant in Vietnam in the current
year is on the moderation project of condensing water
and cooling water collection pipeline, with the reclaimed
water project in construction. Meanwhile, the equipment
and pipelines are moderated on the calculation of
1.229 tons of standard coal per 10,000 kwh and 1.004
Kcal per one ton of water to increase by one degree in
temperature. Thus, 1,394.5 tons of standard coal can be
saved.

Moreover, some production departments in the plant in
Cambodia are using low energy consumption and non-
polluting electric boilers.

FR N 5= (B8 60 BE P € B

ENERGY SAVING AND CONSUMPTION REDUCTION EFFECTIVENESS OF

SHENZHOU GROUP

MRBREELEERE
Air-blowing platform board

intelligent management device
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1.2 Solid waste separation and treatment

We conduct a classification and treatment process for
all solid waste, part of which will be recycled and reused
to minimize its pollution to the environment. Our Group
classifies all solid waste into four categories according
to the relevant Regulations for Waste Classification and
Management in the factories and the relevant offices
in China, Vietnam and Cambodia. The increase in solid
waste handling volumes was mainly attributable to the
expansion of the production capacity of the Group during
the year. Please refer to the following table for the specific
classification and weight.

“E—tE —E2-N\fF
hl BAl B IR 58 () EE(§)
Weight in Weight in
Category Examples Source of waste 2017 (tons) 2018 (tons)
BRI AR A RR SR BHE BAE BT ER HE - AEREKER 11,935.60 14,919.50
Reusable or recyclable Waste paper boxes, waste Knitting, dyeing and garment
paperboards and papers paper cones, waste paper cores, making process
waste papers
BN AR ERZERY) B ER HE REREXRR 18,171.83 35,212.35
Reusable or recyclable waste Waste fabric, pied hair Knitting, dyeing and garment
fabric making process
BHAZEKZERRED BRET BRE g FEREKER 1,191.38 1,477.88
Reused or recycled Plastic wire cores, plastic bags Knitting, dyeing and garment
non-hazardous waste making process
TEBNALEKZEEREY BELR EERBRE 5,658.63 7,714.81
Non-hazardous waste that cannot  Household garbage Canteen and office
be reused or recycled
. Lt R B EEYYS B e B IRTE ° All above mentioned wastes are collected by different local

HERUE -

service providers.
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1.3 Sewage treatment and testing of smoke emissions

The Group adopted the following facilities in treating
sewage and smoke emissions. Meanwhile, ozone wash
and digital printing were also applied to reduce the usage
of water.

The Group studied the layered treatment for waste water,
and has reached the target of further lowering the waste
water discharge and recycling for reuse. The Group is
getting closer to zero discharge, details of which are as
follows:

The Group has set up integrated sewage treatment
facilities in its Ningbo and Vietnam factories since
construction completed to comply with the emission
standards before discharging. It carries out regular
inspections according to the Environmental Protection
Bureau’s requirements. The respective environmental
protection authorities have installed online detection
devices at the sewage outfalls.

At production district in Ningbo, the frequency of
inspection on wastewater discharge is: realtime
monitoring for on-site inspection; once every three
months for sample inspection.

The Group also conducts online monitoring on smoke
emission to ensure compliance with the emission
standards before discharging. The respective
environmental protection authorities have also installed
online monitoring devices at our smoke outfalls. At our
Ningbo factory, the frequency of inspection on smoke
and gas emission is: real-time monitoring for on-
site inspection; once every three months for sample
inspection.
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2. USE OF RESOURCES

Energy consumption in 2018
Our main energy consumption in the last two years is as
follows:

The data includes the Group’s total energy consumption
in the entire knitting, dyeing and finishing and garment
manufacturing processes and all its operational regions.

BiEEREREE - &R
Indirect energy consumption-Steam

1,800,000 1,646,921

1,489,391
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900,000

L
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600,000
300,000
T tEHRE —T-\FHEE
Consumption in 2017 Consumption in 2018

¢ Note : The significant increase in gas consumption was attributable

to the replacement of biomass boilers with natural gas
boailers in Ningbo region and the Cambodia region is also
using natural gas boilers.

BEREREREE-B
Indirect energy consumption-Electricity
586,290,671
600,000,000

508,706,347
500,000,000
400,000,000
300,000,000

0 d

200,000,000
100,000,000
T LFHEEER —T-N\FHFERE
Consumption in 2017 Consumption in 2018

¢
B (FRE)
Electricity (Kwh) 0

BEZRHEE
Direct energy consumption

300,000 251,352

208,423
L
Y RRRL + )
Biomass fuel + Coal (Tons)

T tFHEEER —T-\EFHFERE
Consumption in 2017 Consumption in 2018
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¢ Note : The decrease in coal and biomass fuel was attributable to
the replacement of biomass boilers with natural gas boilers.

RIS D WFEKE
Water consumption by source
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25,000,000 24,896,845
20,000,000
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4,824,302

5,000,000

0

ST LERERR
Consumption
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27,482,504

¢
HrEok (HE)
Fresh water (Tons)

v
TEIRE A (HE)
Recycled water (Tons)

4,245,184

—T\EERE
Consumption
in 2018
Note: The decrease in recycled water in Ningbo region was
attributable to the decrease in fresh water usage and
waste water discharge after the upgrade of dyeing and

finishing facility and moderation of pipelines in 2018.
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TE—LtENT-NFEE® Please refer to the following table for the intensity of
TFOBREE - BEERERENKE direct energy consumption, indirect energy consumption
EEEMNRER2SETR: and water consumption in 2017 and 2018:

—ET—+tF —E-N\F

2017 2018

MEERHAENRE - MR 0.0001 0.0001
The intensity of indirect energy consumption — Gas
MEERERENRE %R 0.0043 0.0041
The intensity of indirect energy consumption — Steam
M REEENRE—EN 1.4534 1.4729
The intensity of indirect energy consumption — Electricity
BEEEREEENAE 0.0007 0.0005
The intensity of direct energy consumption
FKENRE 0.0849 0.0690

The intensity of water consumption

Wek: BEZAEABHEREEHEESF Note: Intensity represents the ratio between total consumption
HEBRENREES 2K and total production of knitwear each year.
2.2 [E] UK 88 8 E R 2.2 Boiler Heat Recovery
NEBEFZT T BRI RS The Group set up the boiler heat recovery system. In
RZE—+F RIERERKRS 2017, the boiler heat recovery system produced a total
HAFERRI3,250Mi A EF A - of 33,250 tons of steam for the use of production,
B EFEEINTL.60%  BiIEMA representing an increase of 8.60% as compared to that of
755,6813% 0 ° last year, which saved USD755,681.
T ZEWAERERE F The following is the picture of the boiler heat recovery
system:
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In addition, the Group carried out transformation of
production facilities and replaced biomass boilers with
natural gas boilers in 2017. Given that the adoption of
natural gas boilers will reduce concentration of nitrogen
oxides to below 100 mg/m?, it will enhance the efficiency
of the boilers.

The following is the picture of the replacement of biomass
boilers with natural gas boilers:

3. LEAN PRODUCTION AND INNOVATION
In order to expand the globalization layout of the Group, the
Group aggressively explore each category of new technology,

new material and new application of manufacturing technique,
and launch new products development and lean production.

3.1

ER ) B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Establishing Shenzhou International Textile
Research Institute

The Group established Shenzhou International Textile
Research Institute in December 2018, and have the
workshop of academicians, which appointed two
academicians as consultants. One is mainly responsible
for the development and application of new fabrics and
new materials. And the other one is mainly responsible for
research on environment management as well as green
and environment protecting dying technology under the
condition of “reducing” resource occupation, so as to
achieve the “2025 zero emission” plan.
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3.2

3.3
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3.2

3.3

The strengths of the innovation center

The vision to be achieved by the Group through its
innovation center is to increase the added-value and
profitability of products, while developing the Company
into a sustainable operator through introducing our
ideology of environmental design in designing products
with our customers in the innovation centres, reducing
the use of fabrics and the pressure on the environment
caused by production emission.

° Design for Manufacturing and Assembly (DFMA)
and design production-friendly products as well as
increasing productivity

° Product diversification

° Shortening the cycle of product development and
saving the labor and cost deployed by Shenzhou
and its customers in R&D

o Integrating green elements in the design, reducing
the use of chemicals

° Increasing the product quality

o Ensuring a healthy and safe production environment
for the staff

Intelligent hanging system

The Group has always upheld lean manufacture. The
“intelligent hanging system” is controlled by computers
and is a transmission and logistic tool for allocating
production tasks to operators at each workstation. The
system lowers the heavy workload of operating staff and
reduces the transmission time of each working process,
which increases the production efficiency by 2 to 3%.
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3.4

3.5
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3.5
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Digital Print

Through digital print, more accurate and vivid colors
can be achieved and consumption of fiim and water
in traditional printing is eliminated. The consumption
of power and resources can be effectively reduced.
Therefore, a T-shirt with beautifully-designed printing can
also be an environmental-friendly product.

Ozone Wash

G2 Ozone Wash means ozone washing. Ozone is a
strong oxidant which discolour the clothes naturally
and forms vintage style by washing the clothes with
ozone composing of G2. Generally this effect needs
to be completed by chemical agents, however, G2
production replaces the use of chemicals and reduces
water consumption, which minimizes the pressure on
environment caused by this type of products.

As an enterprise keen on sustainable development,
the Group actively supports and maintains its role as a
proper environmental protector, strives to enhance and
raise environmental awareness, and deeply indoctrinated
the low-carbon concept in the whole Group. We firmly
believe that our commitment to environmental protection
will become a part of Shenzhou’s core competitiveness,
leading the Group to greater success in the future.

The process of the garment factory in Vietnam, from
design and construction to completion, fulfils the
standard of LEED GREEN GOAL.
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4. WORKPLACE QUALITY
4.1 Employees’ Basic Information
As at 31 December 2018, there were about 82,700
employees working in the Group. All of them are full-time
employees, and the majority are young and middle-aged
employees. The tables below show the employee details
by age distribution, education level, job locations and
gender ratio.

HEESAH
A Aok
Percentages
of total
REREBEB D By Age Band Numbers employees
20p% S LA 20 or below 20 7,939 9.60%
21E4053% 21 to 40 60,818 73.54%
41E508% 41 to 50 12,843 15.53%
515 M UA E 51 and above 51 1,100 1.33%
#Et Total 82,700 100.00%
EEFRD M

Employees Age Distribution
HEEBAH
A8 Batk
Percentages
of total
5l Gender Numbers employees
= Male 24,645 29.80%
Z Female 58,055 70.20%
BEt Total 82,700 100.00%

PRIt =

Gender Ratio
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HEEHE
A AL
Percentages
of total
EEXRE 2 By Country Numbers employees
P K B Mainland China 51,977 62.85%
g Vietnam 18,483 22.35%
RIEE Cambodia 12,240 14.80%
@t Total 82,700 100.00%
EERMWEDH
Employees by Job Locations
HEEHEE
AE Bk
Percentages
of total
BHEE D By Education Numbers employees
ot 3E 4 Postgraduate 49 0.06%
AN NN Undergraduate and college 4,218 5.10%
FESH Technical secondary school and high school 17,268 20.88%
IR RIAT Middle school and below 61,165 73.96%
aEt Total 82,700 100.00%
EEHBEKF
Employees Education Level
HEEHE
A AL
Percentages
of total
REEEES S By Type of Position Numbers employees
RHEIT Permanent position 8,564 10.36%
4T Contract position 74,136 89.64%
MET Short term position 0 0.00%
BB T Temporary position 0 0.00%
@t Total 82,700 100.00%

BEETIHER

Types of Employees’ Position

74 ER ) B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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82,700 E B ° Hist B~ - A& E
- \FBAFHREERSERA
4.06% B — T —+tF FfR0.211E
BB (ZE—tEF:427%) -
ZE-)N\F ZE—FULEETH
RBEAEB7.06% R E_F
—N\F BHEMNREAEE1.20% "
i 22 R 2 2.11% ©

4.2 Statistical analysis of employee turnover rate

By the end of December 2018, there were 82,700
employees in total. According to the statistics, the
Group’s monthly average employee turnover rate in 2018
was 4.06%, representing a decrease of 0.21 percentage
point when compared with 2017 (2017: 4.27%). The
retention rate of employees who have been employed
for over one year was 67.06% in 2018. Meanwhile, the
turnover rate of male employees was 1.20% while that of
female employees was 2.11% in 2018.

TREBINREFER D R T
g o2 BEFHERAE-

The tables below show the average turnover rate of
employees by age distribution and job locations.

EEF¥15

mE=

Average

turnover

rate of

REREEE D By Age Band employees
205% AR Below 20 and 20 0.82%
21 E405% 21-40 3.05%
4158 Z505% 41-50 0.27%
1B &I £ 51 and above 51 0.05%

EBEFRD M
Age Distribution of Employees

EETY

K=

Average

turnover

rate of

RERE S By Country employees
B K Mainland China 4.33%
i Vietnam 3.65%
R EE Cambodia 3.38%

EERMWEDMH
Employees by Job Locations
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4.3 The management of employee dismissal

If an employee of the Group is dismissed, the Group will
take relevant action or make compensations based on
the applicable local labor contract law and other labor
regulations.

Where an employee is under any of the following
circumstances, the Group may dissolve the labor contract
according to Article 39 of the Labor Contract Law: It is
proved that the employee does not meet the recruitment
conditions during the probation period; The employee
is in serious breach of the rules and procedures set
up by the employer; The employee causes any severe
damage to the employer due to gross negligence of
duties or malpractices for selfish ends; The employee
simultaneously enters an employment relationship with
other employers and thus seriously affects his completion
of the tasks of the employer, or the employee refuses
to make the ratification after the employer points out
the problem; The labor contract is invalidated due to
the circumstance as mentioned in Item (1), paragraph
1, Article 26 of this Law; or the employee is under
investigation for criminal liabilities according to law. In
addition, the Group will not pay relevant compensation to
the employee under such cases.

Furthermore, if the followings have occurred during the
working period of an employee, the Group will make relevant
compensation to the employee. For example: the employee
is sick or is injured for a non-work-related reason and
cannot resume his original position after the expiration of the
prescribed period for medical treatment, nor can he assume
any other position arranged by the employer; the employee
is incompetent to his position or is still so after training or
changing his position; or the objective condition, on which
the labor contract is based, has changed considerably,
rendering the labor contract unenforceable and no agreement
on changing the contents of the labor contract is reached
after negotiations between the employer and the employee;
or if the company is under restructuring according to the
Enterprise Bankruptcy Law; or if the company encounters
serious difficulties in production and business operation;
or if the enterprise changes products, makes important
technological renovation, or adjusts business model, and it is
still necessary to lay off of employees after changing the labor
contract; or the objective economic condition, on which the
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4.4

labor contract is based, has changed considerably, rendering
the labor contract unenforceable. After the dismissal of
employment relationship under the circumstances stipulated
in Article 40 and Article 41 in the Labour Contract Law, the
Group will pay relevant compensation in accordance with
Article 46 of the Labour Contract Law.

The dismissal procedures of the Group are as follow: the
group leaders and department head shall report specific
circumstance and the human resources department in
the headquarter shall determine its nature according to
the above circumstances and take the relevant actions or
make compensations.

The benefit of the employee

Shenzhou Group has successfully maintained a relatively
low staff turnover rate, thanks to the following effective
measures:

1. For nine years in a row, coaches were chartered
during Chinese New Year holidays for staff to go
home: approximately RMB15 million in 2018 were
spent to arrange 240 round-trip chartered coaches
covering 222 locations in 14 provinces such as
Anhui, Sichuan, Shaanxi, Yunnan for approximately
11,054 staff to go home, and return to work after
the Chinese New Year holidays safe and sound.
Refreshment were provided on the coaches for our
staff’s enjoyment. Total expenses amounted to over
RMB120 million in the past nine years.
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The Company places great importance to educational
causes and places great emphasises on team building
of staff and education for their children. In May 2011,
the inauguration ceremony of the Ningbo Shenzhou
Knitting Co., Ltd. Education Development Fund was
held at the administration centre in Beilun region. In
the area of schooling for the children of its staff, the
Company liaises with the staff union each year to
resolve practical difficulties in schooling for children of
management staff as far as possible.

Activities for education sponsorship:

As a labor intensive corporation, Shenzhou Group
places exceptional emphasis on and pays special
attention to the physical and mental wellbeing of
its staff. The Company established a mental health
information centre, “Joyful Community”, in October
2011. With specialists serving as counsellors, “Joyful
Community” is equipped with music facilities for
relaxation and punching facilities for venting emotions.
Through handling cases received, organising group
activities and holding seminars, the centre resolves
psychological distress and relieves emotional pressure
of staff, giving them a peace of mind.

Employees received an average salary raise of
approximately 10% to 12% each year for the past
eight years.
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In 2016, the Group invested approximately RMBO.1
pbillion in Ningbo to build a new central kitchen for
the purpose of providing safer, cleaner and more
delicious food to employees to ensure their health
and reduce turnover rate.

The Group organized some staff benefit cultural
and sports activities during the year to increase the
sense of belonging among the staff towards the
Company, such as the most beautiful staff election,
organizing Spring night activity, Year-end luncheon
activity, the most beautiful staff and excellent group
leaders overseas tour, ball games and sports gala,
etc. Meanwhile, the dormitory in the Vietnam plant
has installed sports equipment for the staff to use
for free, and two free body checks are provided to
the staff in Vietnam plant.
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LTERE &M e The following pictures are some of the staff benefit
BEREER —LLE cultural and sports activities.
REFERFEED

Excellent group leaders election

HRERIED
Organizing Spring night activity

BEARBINREED

Excellent group leaders overseas tour

ER M BB 58 @142 R A BR /A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Other activities
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4.5 Working condition

Due to the needs of continual production and operation,
approved by the labor department, the Group implements
standard working hour system, comprehensive working
hour system and flexible working hour system according
to the job nature of employee.

In addition, the working hour is stipulated by respective
department according to the season, requirement of
production and operation and characteristic of the job.

The working hour of the employees of the Group generally
starts at 8 a.m. and finishes at 5 p.m. and the normal
working hour is less than 8 hours. If overtime work is
needed, the daily overtime will be less than 3 hours and
the monthly overtime will be less than 36 hours.

Time for rest:

Time for rest of the Group’s employees is generally from
11:30 a.m. to 12:30 p.m. There is also time for lunch and
midday rest for employees. The employees have at least
one day off per week.

The employees of the Group are also entitled to the
national statutory holiday, annual leave, marriage leave,
funeral leave, casual leave and sick leave.

Procedures for application of leave:

The employees of the Group must go through the
formalities when they apply for leave and sign the
application form. In the meantime, employees should
state the nature of leave, holiday, time, reason and
handover matters and provide relevant valid certification.
After the approval of leaders, it will be reported to the
human resources office of the department for registration
and filing.
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Health and Safety

The Group distributes labor protection appliances and
tools to employees every year, such as masks, gloves and
uniforms.

The Group cares about the physical health of employees.
It sets up employee health records for every employee
and also organizes routine examination of occupational
diseases.

A total of 60 injuries, which account for 0.07% of total
number of employees. Meanwhile, no significant injuries
were recorded in 2018. Lost work days due to injuries
were approximately 15 days on average. The Group will
strengthen on-the-job trainings to raise awareness of
occupational safety.

The Group supplies free first-aid kits and medicines
to employees, which plays an important role in
emergencies. The Group complies with national labor
laws and regulations and arranges the dayoff and
working timetables stringently in accordance with national
requirements. Employees are also entitled to annual
leave.

During the reporting period, the Company has complied

with all relevant health and safety laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Company.
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Labor Standards

In 2003, the Group formulated some requirements
like the “Strict Prohibition of Engaging Child Labour
Administrative Provisions”, “Underage Worker
Administrative Provisions” and “Strict Prohibition of
Forced Labour Administrative Provisions” in order to
completely eradicate child labor, underage workers and
forced labor.

Strict forbiddance of forced labor and child labor

Over the past 24 years of Shenzhou’s operation, there
has not been a single case of forced labor or child labor.
For the purpose of compliance with the relevant laws of
China, Vietnam and Cambodia, Shenzhou has laid out
comprehensive provisions and accountability procedures
in respect of the recruitment, labor use and dismissal.

The above administrative provisions are implemented
strictly in all departments. The following measures reveal
how the Group eradicates child labor effectively during
the recruitment process:

New employee must provide his/her identity document
when commencing employment, so as to verify his/her
actual age.

In the recruitment interview, interviewers will compare very
carefully the photograph in the identity document and
the genuine face. If there is much difference, or the job
applicant looks significantly younger, then the actual age
shall be verified by identification system or otherwise.

Zero discrimination

We have established anti-discrimination policy and
comply with relevant legal requirements. There has been
no discrimination in Shenzhou against race, region,
gender, nationality, age, pregnancy or disability in respect
of employee recruitment, training, salary and promotion.

During the reporting period, the Company has
complied with all relevant employment and labor laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Company.
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5. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

5.1

Training

The Group attaches great importance to internal and
external studies and trainings to improve employees’
education level and capabilities, and properly nurtures
talents required for the Group’s development. The Group
has established Shenzhou School of Management,
which has become the cradle that nurtures the Group’s
management talents. As at the end of 2018, trainings
were provided to 6,132 attendees.

The number of male employees who attend Shenzhou
School of Management is 2,417, representing 39% of the
total male employees while that of female employees is
3,715, representing 61% of the total female employees. In
2018, the cumulative training time of male employees was
15,416 hours while that of female employees was 24,112
hours.
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In 2018, Shenzhou School of Management and other
relevant training courses held 131 training sessions,
of which, 61 sessions were external and total hours
of training sessions was 20,568 hours; 35 sessions
were internal and total hours of training sessions was
3,176 hours; 35 sessions were specialized development
customized courses and the total hours of training
sessions was 15,784 hours. The total training fees were
RMB3.44 million. The ratio of the training frequency over
ten times was 13.40%.

The table below shows the number of trainees and
training time of employees attending Shenzhou School of
Management and other relevant training courses by job
position:

BFINAR Bl B3 0 7 Bol
Number of Training

REIRN By Job Position trainees  Percentage time  Percentage
BRERE Senior Management 39 0.05% 898 0.26%
hREERE Middle Management 1,241 1.68% 17,635 5.05%
EEERE Junior Management 6,946 9.39% 96,194 27.54%
HMET Other Employees 65,776 88.88% 234,580 67.15%
Bt Total 74,002 100.00% 349,307 100.00%
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Shenzhou School of Management was established on 21
September 2012. The training target included key staff
of the Company, reserve cadres at all levels, technical
talents and junior management officers. The teaching
staff were from external cooperating training institutions,
internal teachers and senior management of the Group.
The school formulates the curriculum according to the
training requirements of the Company and devotes to
build an enterprise university rooted in the Shenzhou
spirit. The school promises to provide an opportunity of
lifelong education for every staff of Shenzhou, to provide
cultural power and talent power for the sustainable
development of Shenzhou and to assist Shenzhou to
become a world class knitwear leading enterprise.
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The Group was successfully selected by Ningbo City
as the third batch of pilot enterprises for self appraisal
of enterprise engineer qualification since December
2014. Self appraisal of enterprise engineer qualification
effectively combines corporate and government
performance appraisal. Qualified persons are recognized
by the enterprise and will be awarded professional
technical qualification certificate by the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security.

5.2 Career prospects for employees

Our employees have fair and adequate access to
learning and trainings as well as promotion opportunities.
Shenzhou’s Performance Committee has set up branches
in every department of the Company, establishing
a standardized system whereby the development
of employees and the enterprise are integrated. We
encourage our employees to engage in trainings with
regard to their own specialized duties and other industrial
technologies, and provide such learning opportunities as
well as the possibilities of promotions and reassignment
to our employees.
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Supply Chain Management
6.1.1 Major Operating Regions

Shenzhou Group currently has operations in the
regions shown in the following picture: the green
color represents the production bases of Shenzhou
in Ningbo; the yellow color represents the sales
offices of Shenzhou; the orange color represents the
production bases located outside Ningbo.

v >

Shenzhou-Shanghai

China

RNz
Shenzhou-Anging

SDIIER:S

B A - Shenzhou-Japan
3 Shenzhou-Quzhou
BRI EER
B Shenzhou-Ningbo
urma

Gl N N
Shenzhou-Vietnam g Shenzhou-Hong Kong

Cambodia
5 South
China
. " Sea
B SRAHER
Shenzhou-Cambodia
|

Indonesia

&
FNEEEELE

Operating Regions of Shenzhou Group
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6.1.2Number of major raw material suppliers

TE- N\FEEERFAOR
HEBHEERR (KER

gn)

Summary of number of yarn suppliers of group
companies in 2018 (by country)

535 HEBHE Bok
Number of
Rank EIXR (EH)®&Z# Name of Country (District) Suppliers Percentage
1 ae China 96 70.07%
2 REAE Taiwan, China 10 7.30%
3 7% B Korea 5 3.65%
4 FEIE Hong Kong, China 4 2.92%
5 ESE USA 4 2.92%
6 =N Japan 4 2.92%
7 BN Italy 3 2.19%
8 A Vietnam 3 2.19%
9 Fh B P Macau, China 3 2.19%
10 =EH Thailand 2 1.46%
11 BEREE Malaysia 1 0.73%
12 B SR Guatemala 1 0.73%
13 s Singapore 1 0.73%
5t Total 137 100.00%
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The working system of the main subsidiary of the
Group, Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. ( 2 &
MET4 AR A F)) , manages the implementation of
key working processes, and controls and affects the
horizontal connection of working processes at the
same time, thereby creating an organic whole with
working processes.

To ensure the smooth operation of the key
processes, the Group adopts systematic
management measures and formulates a series of
management systems to fulfill the requirements of
the processes and provide tactical execution. At
the same time, we utilize various measures such
as goal-oriented management to stipulate key
performance indicators to control and improve the
working processes.
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6.2 Procurement Management

6.2.1 Procurement process

Chart of Procurement Process

Dedicated staff of the designated departments is
responsible for the procurement of materials for the
Group. The materials procured mainly include cotton
yarn, dyestuffs, trims, office supplies, fixed assets,
equipment and spare parts, and canteen supplies.
Procurement cost control is an important measure
to enhance profit on products. The quality of cotton
yarn, dyestuffs and trims procured will directly affect
the product quality and the corporate image of the
Group. Procurement is one of the most important
aspects affecting product competitiveness.

To ensure the efficiency of the procurement process,
the Group formulates management documents such
as “Procurement Control Procedures”. The below
chart shows the procurement process of the Group:

FR512] Demand Plan

PREBHEE
Purchase Requisition

BREE5T 2 Purchasing Plan

A 4
{HFERTEI2 Selection of Suppliers

v

i

as*y\

a
Determination of Purchase Price

FETIEZE

v

AJE Warehousing £

A 4 A 4

v
BRERE  E5%

Financial Control, Accounting etc.

PRES SRR VA

5]

ERARERRE
Management of Supply Process

h 4
BRUK Inspection for Acceptance

s etc.

147X Payment
| Y
v

Post Assessment of Procurement Business

ER N BB 58 @142 R A BR A A Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Topics concerned by our suppliers and the channels
we used to communicate with them are shown in
the following chart:

BEEEE BEAR
Topic Concerned Communication Channel
HERE AT BUR EHIE#H
Supplier evaluation policy Regular meetings
EBEM HEBARE
Green products Supplier summit
mEE SERMTIE R
Product quality Cooperative technology projects
1 fE 7 &% AR E L & Mim 8
. Response to climate changes Workshops and forums
Supplier
RER
Sustainability
6.221L B L EXE 6.2.2Chemicals Management
AEERBIELEREE The Group has established a list of chemicals and

ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁAﬁXBﬁ{bg%ﬁ T

ZHREEBEMEA
Z?f%ﬂ**””“ﬂ‘)ﬁ‘iﬁ il g R
BIRBE- *%&xﬁﬂﬁ KR
Zﬂi%uu RREE
H$%IE?&IFT&Z§%%%U
MIEHERE 5

AEBEEK—E(LERE
BERE RREANMERE
2 REHRE - Eaf S KRR
KEERRE ERE2E 2L
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conducts management and control on dangerous or
restricted chemicals to ensure that the dyes, agents
and detergents used during production are in strict
compliance with the management and control list.
Non-tested and uncertified chemicals are not allowed
to be used in production and a stringent identification
and tracking system is being established.

The Group has developed a set of chemical
management and control process, which covers
dyestuff supplier management, incoming material
inspection, product testing and wastewater discharge
inspection, ensuring the comprehensive management

and control of chemical applications.

HNEE{LB2REERE
Shenzhou Group Chemicals Management Procedure
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ISO 14001 FFZE
ISO 14001 certificate

6.3 Safety and environmental protection management

process
The Group’s major subsidiaries have adopted the ISO
14001 and OHSAS 18001 management systems and clean
production audit and inspection to strengthen environmental
protection and health safety, after considering the large
number of employees and production equipment, extensive
span of control and other facts.

The Group’s ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 and clean
production audit and inspection certificates are shown
below:

OHSAS 18001 &=
OHSAS 18001 certificate

BREEEZBREEE

Clean production audit and inspection certificate
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EoREmEl-
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In terms of safety and environmental protection, the
Group strengthens safety education, establishes safety
operation specifications for related job posts and
enhances equipment maintenance. On the other hand,
considering its large workforce, the Group emphasizes
on food safety and occupational health administration.
Meanwhile, the environment and occupational safety and
health policy of the Group is “conserve energy and reduce
waste, green plant; eliminate harms, avoid sickness; safe
production, persist to improve”.
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With safety, health and environmental protection in
mind, the Group has established a safety department,
an emergency response team and a professional Three
Wastes Treatment System to reduce the use of toxic
and hazardous substances for meeting the standards of
Three Wastes treatment. These ensure the occupational
health of employees, maintain clean production, promote
energy conservation and carbon reduction, and facilitate
the response to and handling of emergencies. For major
areas of focus see the following chart.

In the meantime, the Bureau of Work Safety of Zhejiang
Province awarded Standardized Safe Production
Certificate to the Group in 2016 and recognized it
as Second-Class Enterprise in Production Safety
Standardization (textile and garment). Therefore, based on
checking and controlling of potential hazards, the Group
complied with the principles of “safety first, prevention-
oriented and comprehensive governance” and enhanced
safe production to reduce accidents and ensure personal
safety and health as well as the smooth undertaking of
production and operation activities.

The picture below is the Work Safety Standardization
Certificate:
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6.4 Quality management process
The Group conducts a full range of monitoring measures
in the purchase and manufacture of products based on a
comprehensive quality management system. Please refer
to the following chart for its quality management process.

Z2RhE
Security
Protection

ZRHERR _
Safety and e
A mployee
Environmental Health
Protection

BREE
Clean
Production

L RIRIRTEES
Focuses of Safety and Environmental Protection Work

Quality control is a very important segment in the quality
management process. It mainly embodies the supervision,
inspection and testing of product quality. The Group has
established six focuses of quality control.

The ISO 9001 certificate of the Group is shown as below:

ISO 9001 & &
ISO 9001 certificate

BN B0 5% £ 91428 % 5 FR A 7 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Recall procedure due to the Quality Assurance’s problems:

If the produced apparel do not meet or are not
acceptable by first quality standards, the clients
shall have the right to reject shipments of apparel
from the Group, which do not conform to the
client’s Purchase Order or Quality Assurance
Manual.

Where discrepancies are found, a complete
inspection of the shipment may be made by the
clients.

The clients shall charge back to the Group and if the
Group agrees to pay all costs incurred by the clients
in transporting and handling non-conforming apparel
shipped to the clients or directly to customers.

Factories are to communicate all of the produced
apparel, which do not meet or are not acceptable
by first quality standards, to their clients’ Factory
Merchandise Manager.

It is the Factory Merchandise Managers’
responsibility to deliver all of produced apparel,
which do not meet or are not acceptable by first
quality standards, to the Regional offices for
disposition consideration.

These apparel, which do not meet or are not
acceptable by first quality standards, must be
destroyed and a certification of destruction was sent
to the local clients’ office.
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6.5 Customer Satisfaction

The Group aims to understand all kinds of customer
requirements, expectations and concerns by listening
to them. Through the following methods, the Group has
transformed and satisfied customer requirements and
expectations and promoted its market expansion and
service improvement. Furthermore, when customers visit
the Group, the sales department will gather department
heads and the person-in-charge who are directly relevant
to attend meetings so as to develop a comprehensive
understanding of customers’ expectations. The relevant
departments will convene special meetings to seek
specific solutions for those aspects that fail to meet
customers’ expectations for the time being. The person
directly in charge of the sales, research and development
and production departments will attend regular sales
and operations meetings every week to discuss the
current problems and customers’ requirements, analyze
the causes and find solutions to meet customers’
requirements.

In 2018, the Group did not recall any products sold
or shipped due to safety and health reasons, which
demonstrated customers’ confidence about the products
of the Group. During the year, the Group also received
567 complaints on products or services. If the Group
receives any complaints on products or services, the
complained department of the relevant products and
services will convene special meetings to seek solutions
for the relevant complaints at that time, and the handling
method is replacing the defective products or deducting
the fees by customers.



BiE -

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ATEXREEPRIMNZABEME

Topics concerned by our customers and the channels

BRBBHNAN: we used to communicate with them are shown in the
following charts:
BrEE BEAR
Topic Concerned Communication Channel
AREERE SERFET AW
Sustainability Regular meetings with senior and
middle-manager
BEIREZE
Employees’ health and safety EFPmEERE
Client satisfaction survey
= ,5 EE
SOCIal responsibility 2B T
Factory visits
o A ERRE m
=P Comfortable eco-products EFEPELBE
Customer Visits to clients’ operation
R headquarters
Operating performance
HEFEESEPRL
HrEsEE® Co-establishing cooperative centres

BRETEEFPERING ARF

Supply chain development

with clients

To prevent the leak of customers’ information, the
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Company enters into confidential agreements with
specific customers and also protects the patents of
specific customers. The Group exercises strict control
over customers’ information. All information must be filed
and stored for two years and it is forbidden to take away
information outside the factory. Moreover, only senior staff
is allowed access to relevant customers’ information,
and safeguard client’s personal information which avoid
leakage.

In terms of the policy of protecting the personal
information (privacy) of customers, the Group
establishes relevant documents of procedures, namely
the Management System of Customer Relationship,
to protect the customer information from leakage.
In addition, in terms of policy of implementing and
monitoring the personal information (privacy) of
customers, every business department has its relevant
procedural documents, such as “Customer Asset Control
Procedure” and “Process Related to Customers Control
Procedure”, and the person-in-charge of respective
department conducts regular maintenance and review
of the information of customers to prevent the leak of
personal and private information of customers.
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In 2018, the Group was awarded the “People Award”
and the “Open Source Award” of the “Best Supplier
Award 2018” by Adidas in the Cambodia LO town hall
meeting 2018 of Adidas. Meanwhile, the Group was also
awarded the “People Award”, the “Leadership Award”,
the “ME Award” and the “3C & GFX Innovation Team
Award” by North Asia 2018 of Adidas. In addition, the
Group was awarded the “People Award” and “Lean
Production Award” at the Adidas annual brand leader
summit. Moreover, Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd, a
subsidiary of the Group, was awarded the “Sustainable
Development Award” 2018 by Puma and awarded the
“Uniglo Supplier Quality Award” by Uniglo at the Uniglo
Supplier Conference during the year.

The following pictures are the trophies awarded to our
Group by the customers.
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To further enhance the development of foreign trade
brand and expedite the forming of the new advantage in
foreign trade, the Department of Commerce of Zhejiang
Province worked with provincial departments and bureaux
to start the selection for the “Zhejiang Export Famous
Brand” of 2018. It has been told that the award was
selected annually, and the effective period was three
years. The Department of Commerce of Zhejiang Province
announced 292 brands for the “Zhejiang Export Famous
Brand” of 2018. The Group was awarded the “Zhejiang
Export Famous Brand” of 2018 in 2018.

The certificate of “Zhejiang Export Famous Brand” of
2018 for the Group is shown below:

In the meantime, the Group was awarded the Certificate
of Zhejiang Name by the Zhejiang Bureau of Quality and
Technical Supervision in 2016. According to the Zhejiang
Bureau of Quality and Technical Supervision, a total of
879 applications for Zhejiang Name Brand have passed
the re-assessment in the current year, which will expire on
31 December 2019.
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TERAERE T —EMM The picture below is the Certificate of Zhejiang Name
TERBEMRES: Brand in 2016:

S EZE-RFE AEEE In addition, the Group was awarded “2016 Ningbo Brand
ey R A S N = ] o Top 100” by China Brand Center, Ningbo Entrepreneur
EEEERMAEELENESER Brand Research Institute, Ningbo Businessmen Sodality
E(2016E R Mg ER]  MER in 2016 and the value of the brand amounted to
REEAARBES.4MET KK RMB6.54 billion. In 2016, there were 64 brands from the
CE-RNELIENREXDERE manufacturing industry made it to the list, among which
2E6AE BAMMEDEE T E— was a brand of the Company.

JENL -

TEEAEBEE-ZT— K The picture below is the Certificate of Ningbo Brand Top
2016 N MR B8 MEE - 100 in 2016:

100 BN B0 5% £ 19143 i 5 FR 2 7 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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In the meantime, the Group was awarded Top 100
Technical Innovation Enterprises in Zhejiang Province
in 2014 and 2016, which recognizes the technical
innovation ability of the Group. The Top 100 Technical
Innovation Enterprises are granted to select the
model pioneers for the in-depth implementation of the
innovation-driven development strategy, speeding up
the building of innovative province and encouraging
technical innovation of enterprises in Zhejiang Province.
The assessment was based on innovation investment
and innovation output, and involved 7 aspects including
proportion of research and development expenses and
staff, average research and development expenses
for research and development staff, the amount of
intellectual property rights owned per 1,000 research
and development staff, revenue rate of sales of new
products, labor productivity of all staff and profit-taxation
rate. The Group plays a model role in upgrading the
industry and promoting local economic development in its
advantageous industry of textile.

The picture below is the certificate of the Top 100
Technical Innovation Enterprises in Zhejiang Province in
2014:

Since January 2015, the registered trademark of
Shenzhou Knitting (registered number: 7226707), a
subsidiary of the Group, was recognized as a “Famous
Brand of Zhejiang Province” by Zhejiang Provincial
Administration of Industry and Commerce, signifying the
recognition of the Group’s development over the past few
years and reflecting the influence and reputation of the
Shenzhou brand in the industry.
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The Group actively encourages patent applications by
research and development staff, introduces reward
policies for the grant of patents for inventions, steadily
promotes patent commercialization and endeavors to
create its own brand products.

At the same time, the Group establishes a comprehensive
relevant intellectual property management system, persist
in autonomy innovation, apply for intellectual property
protection aggressively, prior to complete the layout for
intellectual property development, avoid infringement of
others intellectual property and safeguard its own rights.

In 2018, the Group has applied for 55 utility patents and
21 patents for inventions. Currently, the Group has 308
authorized patents, including 104 patents of new materials
and fabrics and 204 patents for transformation and
innovation of equipment and technique for production and
the modeling categories of garment. In addition, it also
had 32 self-developed projects with an annual average of
33 series of patents turning into products. Each of such
series comprises 25 products on average, hence there are
approximately 825 new products.
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In addition, the Group has made participated in
the amendments of three national standards and
seven corporate standards, the Group formulates 80
corporate standards with others. The Group introduced
policies to encourage technological innovation,
including the Incentive Administration for on Scientific
and Technological Achievements and established a
scientific and comprehensive incentive mechanism on
technological innovation.

During the reporting period, the Company has complied
with all relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company in respect of health
and safety and other matters relating to product
responsibility.

ANTI-CORRUPTION:

In over two decades of Shenzhou Group’s history, the founder
and former chairman of the Group, Mr. Ma Baoxing, and each
senior management member have always been focusing on
“integrity” in establishing the corporate culture. Integrity is the
code of conduct and moral standard of the Group.

Back in early 2000, Mr. Ma wrote the two Chinese characters
“St{Z (integrity)” and hung them in the centre of the lobby,
reminding all employees that it is the principle and requirement
of the Group. All employees must abide by it and the Group
also welcomes close monitoring by related authorities and
customers.
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In 2018, the Group had no law suit of corruption and bribery.
Meanwhile, the Group also did not receive complaints on
products or services due to the corruption during the year. If
the Group receives any complaints on products or services due
to the corruption, the complained department of the relevant
products and services will convene special meetings to seek
solutions for the relevant complaints.

The Group has set up an internal audit department and
engaged Ernst & Young as external auditor to improve its anti-
corruption standard in preventing corruption.

The Group’s employee guidelines clearly states the obligations
of staff in anti-corruption, anti-bribery and conflict of interest.
Accordingly, employees should follow the requirements.

The anti-corruption procedures of the Group according to the
guidelines for the staff are as follows:

(1)  We offer anti-corruption and anti-bribery education for key
staff and major positions;

(2) Suppliers and service providers which have business
relationship with the Company should sign integrity
undertakings and anti-commercial bribery agreement;

(3)  We have special email and phone line for the report
against corruption behavior from people in and outside
the Company;

(4) Internal auditor and competent department analyze
data from time to time, conduct investigation and visits,
study features and pattern of corruption behavior and
implement and improve the prevention measures and
systems for anti-corruption;

(5)  We deal with workplace corruption in a timely manner
and report to competent authorities. People who are
suspected of committing the crime are transferred to the
public security organ;

(6) We introduce relevant anti-corruption mechanism and
policy to the rules and procedures and business process,
such as explicit business process, approval authority,
establish accounts, etc;

[ £ W42 % 4 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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(7)  We have diversified expedients for supervision and
establish complain and report mechanism to provide
reporting channel for internal staff and external parties;

(8) We engage in supervision by conducting regular
stocktaking and audit, price research and off-office audit.

The Group takes relevant measures in implementation and
monitoring of corruption prevention practices. For example,
when we sign contract with new suppliers for the first time,
suppliers must sign integrity undertakings and anti-commercial
bribery agreement as well. In addition, internal auditor and
competent department check email and receive reporting calls
at any time and record and investigate reporting matters. The
investigation results will be reported to relevant leaders and
departments and relevant employees undertake that they will
keep the personal information of the informant confidential.
Furthermore, relevant departments including internal audit and
legal affairs departments monitor and review daily course of
business, track and investigate the abnormal information and
circumstances identified.

If the staff of the Group notices corruption behavior, the staff
can report by ways of telephone, email or letter. The relevant
department of the Group will investigate or audit the related
department or staff according to the reporting information and
will punish the irregularities. If the case is of serious nature
such as constituting an criminal act, the Group will transfer the
relevant person to the public security organ for legal sanction.
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INTERACTION IN COMMUNITY

8.1

Community involvement

Since 2014, the Group joined Ningbo Charity Federation
(Beilun). In 2018, the Group was awarded the 5th Top
Ten Caring Companies in Ningbo by Ningbo Charity
Federation.

The following picture is the certificates of merit awarded
to the Group by Ningbo (Beilun) Charity Association:

The Group considers that supporting the community is
one of the driving forces for corporate development, as
well as an important motivation for building a “Harmonious
Shenzhou”. The Group places great emphasis on cultivating
social responsibility awareness of its staff and encourages
employees to participate in charitable community activities.
The Group contributed approximately RMB7.14 million in
2018 towards participating in community activities and
making various donations for charitable causes, which
included sponsoring the education of University students
in order to complete their university’s degress, caring for
employees in distress, helping those with critical illnesses
and sending warm greeting in Chinese New Year.
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Charitable donations are applied mainly to various charity
activities. For example, the Group has established an
environmental protection fund for environmental protection.
In addition, in the aspect of education, the Group sets
up kindergarten and Shenzhou School of Management.
In addition, the Group sponsors in summer tutorial class,
which is “Speak Love Loud”, and this activity hope that
children can have a happy summer vacation. Further, it
also contributed approximately RMB120,000 to about
10 university students who have financial difficulties by
paying tuition fees, so that they have the opportunities to
enter universities. Meanwhile, it establishes scholarship
for Minshan School so that more students with financial
difficulties can receive educational sponsorship.

Caring for employees in distress:

The activity of “Speak Love Loud”:
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The Group established an environmental protection
fund in 2016 with enterprises nearby and reinvested
approximately RMB3.2 million to this fund in 2018 for the
purpose of protecting the local environment of Beilun.

In 2017, the Group was awarded “Outstanding Social
Caring Organization Award” by Social Enterprise
Research Academy, The award aims to recognise the
relevant industry leaders for their efforts in promoting
social development based on the principle of achieving
shared growth through discussion and collaboration.
While pursuing investment and development, the
enterprises take into consideration environmental
protection and labour rights in making investment
decisions, thereby achieving social sustainability without
compromising investment return.

The picture below shows the Outstanding Social Caring
Organization Award received by the Group in 2017:
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In terms of health, the Group sets up Shenzhou medical
room to conduct annual and regular body checks for staff.

The Group has devoted to blood donation over the years.
Since 2008, we have organized over 40 blood donation
events, 540 people made donations in 2018, and
149,530 ml of blood were donated. We have obtained
various honors including Outstanding Unit in Blood
Donation in Zhejiang Province and Promotion Award for
Blood Donation of the city.

Blood donation activities for charity:

In 2018, the Group was awarded the “Donation

Enterprise in Ningbo Award” by the Ningbo Red

Cross. The activities of Red Cross embody the spirit of

dedication and care, share positive energy and love,
which spreads the spirit of Red Cross across
the community and aims to build a harmonious
community.

The picture below is Donation Enterprise in Ningbo
Award received by the Group in 2018:
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8.2 Participation in non-profit organizations

Shenzhou has become a member of Textile Exchange
since October 2011. Textile Exchange is a non-profit
organization based in the USA, the mission of which is
to promote the sustainable development of the entire
textile value chain. Shenzhou has all along been actively
participating in industry conferences, seminars and other
activities, sharing best practices with relevant parties and
discussing the future development of the textile industry.

Since 2012, guided by PUMA, our Group’s major
subsidiary, Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. has
participated in the development of PUMA C2C (Cradle
to Cradle) closed-loop ecological environmentally friendly
products. From its selection of original yarns to dyeing
materials, printing materials and agents, this category
complies with the C2C environmentally-friendly product
requirements and passed the C2C product certification.
For more relevant information about C2C, please refer to
the C2C website: www.c2c-world.com.

The Group has been a member of BCI (in full “better
cotton initiative”) since 2013. The keynote of BCI is to
ensure the cultivation of cotton to be more beneficial
to cotton farmers, the cultivation environment and the
future development of the industry. Nike and Adidas,
being the major customers of Shenzhou, are both
members of BCIl. The six major principles (quality
assurance, water resources, the health of soil for cotton
cultivation, protection of the ecological environment of the
surrounding areas of cotton cultivation, quality of cotton
and decent work) of BCI are increasingly recognized
by the community. These are in line with Shenzhou's
philosophy that emphasizes on social responsibilities and
promotion of conscious business, which are therefore
well-received by the management of Shenzhou.
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The Group also concerns the protection of wild life. The
Group became a silver member of WWF since 2013.

The following pictures are the trophies awarded to our
roup by WWF from 2013 to 2018.
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8.3 Cooperate with Chinese Academy of Sciences in the

research and development

Shenzhou Group is committed to creating economic
benefits while it should undertakes its social responsibility
in the governance of environmental protection. Thus,
it cooperated with the Ningbo Urban Environment
Observation and Research Station of Chinese Academy
of Sciences in technology development for the treatment
of exhaust gas and recycling of heat from dyeing and
finishing processes in the textile industry. The research
and development initiative focused on the treatment
technology and process for exhaust gas treatment and
recycling of residual heat, which is expected to solve
difficulties in treating exhaust gas from the production
process in the dyeing industry. This will realizes enterprise
to govern environmental issues while achieving the aims
of saving energy and reducing emission.

On 28 March 2017, the Group appointed an academician
of Chinese Academy of Engineering, as the consultant
of the Group in environmental protection. He provides
consultation services on environmental assessment
policy, professional environmental protection technology
and compliance with environmental laws to the Group.
He also makes reasonable plans and arrangements for
emission of pollution under operation and carries out
professional evaluation, optimisation and planning for
previous projects.
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9. OTHER AWARDS:

9.1

Sustainability:

Starting from September 2015, Shenzhou International
was included in the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability
Index Series, which includes Hong Kong listed companies
with the most outstanding performance in terms of
corporate sustainability. The index is a cross-market
index covering leaders of corporate sustainability in
Hong Kong and Mainland. The constituent stocks are
carefully selected with reference to the rating results of
sustainability by Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency,
an independent professional accreditation body, in
accordance to the framework it designed for sustainability
rating. This enables the Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Index Series to achieve objectivity, reliability
and of high investment significance, offering a series of
quality benchmark for the index funds under the theme of
corporate sustainability.

Below is the logo of membership of the Hang Seng
Corporate Sustainability Index Series of Shenzhou
International in 2018:

In 2017 and 2018, the Group was granted with an A
Sustainability accreditation of CSR Index Plus Mark by
the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency (HKQAA). To
facilitate organisations to translate these good intentions
into good actions, in 2008 HKQAA launched the HKQAA
CSR Index, with the initial support of The Hong Kong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (HSBC). Now run
by HKQAA, the Index provides quantitative metrics to
measure organisations’ maturity level in practicing their
social responsibilities.

The index is designed with reference to the ISO 26000
Guidance on Social Responsibility. The index will measure
an organisation’s maturity level in practicing its social
responsibilities from four different perspectives, namely
Corporate Governance, Social Well-being, Economic
Performance and Environmental Conservation. More
specifically, the quantitative metrics will contain seven
core elements and 40 recommended practices.
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In addition, the Group joined the activity of BOCHK
Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards 2017 in
2017, and was awarded the“EcoPartner’in the “BOCHK
Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards 2017”, jointly
launched by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries (FHKI)
and Bank of China (Hong Kong) (BOCHK), in recognition of
the Group’s dedication and contribution to environmental
protection over the years. The“BOCHK Corporate
Environmental Leadership Awards” are jointly organized
by FHKI and BOCHK to recognize the environmental
achievements and contributions of manufacturing and
services enterprises, thereby encouraging enterprises to
incorporate environmental protection strategies into their
business development plans and daily operations.

The certificate of “BOCHK Corporate Environmental
Leadership Awards 2017” awarded by the FHKI and
BOCHK to the Group in 2017 is shown below:
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Shenzhou International garnered the “Best IR by CFO”
award at the 4th Hong Kong Investor Relations Awards
organised by Hong Kong Investor Relations Association.
This award acknowledges the excellent performance of
the Company’s management in investor relations, which is
widely recognised by the investor community.

The Hong Kong Investor Relations Award is organised
by Hong Kong Investor Relations Association, with the
aim of celebrating excellence in IR relations aspect and
corporates and talents which adopt sound IR principles. A
total of 184 listed companies entered the competition this
year and 48 listed companies received awards in different
categories. The winning enterprises were selected
by buy-side and sell-side investors online. Over 600
qualified voters casted for the best IR talents and listed
companies.

Best IR by CFO - Large Cap

The Group was also elected as one of the 2017 All-Asia
Executive Team (the group of consumer sector) by the
international magazine “Institutional Investor”.
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In December 2018, Shenzhou International obtained the
“Best Investment Value Award for Listed Companies”
award from Hong Kong Ta Kung Wen Wei Media Group
Limited at the ceremony for China Securities Golden
Bauhinia Award.

In September 2018, Shenzhou International was named
as one of the “Asia’s 50 Top Listed Companies 2018” by
Forbes Asia, a proof that investors recognize the Group
as a substantial listed company.

Forbes Asia first selected 1,744 companies with
operating incomes of at least US$2 billion and were listed
at least one year. We crossed out the companies with
losses or those with operating incomes lower than five
years ago. Those with long-term debts more than half of
the total capital or enterprises with more than 50% held
by the government or the listed parent companies were
not included. Finally, after applying more than 10 financial
standards, we analyzed the remaining companies.
Thus, a list of the blue-chip enterprises with excellent
performance was selected, and all the enterprises on the
list are the best in the local area.
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Furthermore, Shenzhou International was awarded
“ListCo Excellence Awards 2018” by AM730, PR Asia
and Roadshow in October 2018, a proof that the Group
strives for good performance returns, excellent corporate
governance, contribute to the economy and enhance
people’s quality of life on different levels.

The following picture is the trophy of “ListCo Excellence
Awards 2018” awarded to the Group by AM730, PR Asia
and Roadshow in 2018:

Shenzhou International was awarded “ListCo Excellence
Awards 2018” by AM730, PR Asia and Roadshow in
December 2018. As an award given by a cross-platform
financial media in China and Hong Kong, it is selected by
the ListCO award organizing committee, Deloitte, Futu
Securities, Yunfeng Financial, and many professional
equity analysts and fund managers to acknowledge 29
excellent listed companies. The winners are one of the
indicators as reference for investors.
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Shenzhou International was awarded “2018 Golden Lion
Award: The Best Listed Company” by Sina Finance in
December 2018, a proof that the market recognizes
Shenzhou International. It is also a proof that Shenzhou
International has keep an original mind in the process of
stable development, bear the responsibility, and made
achievements in many aspects including investment
value, brand value, shareholders’ return and social
responsibility.

The following picture is the trophy of “2018 Golden Lion
Award: The Best Listed Company” awarded to the Group
by Sina Finance in 2018:

The Golden Lion Award by Sina Finance is to
acknowledge the participants with excellent performance
and active contributions in Hong Kong stock market in
2018. Nine companies from other businesses awarded
with the “Best Listed Company Award” included China
Mobile, Sinopec and China Railway Construction.
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In August 2018, Shenzhou International was selected
as one of the “China’s 500 Largest Listed Companies
2018” and “China’s Top 50 Boards of Directors 2018” by
Fortune China.

The following picture is the trophy of “China’s Top 50
Boards of Directors 2018” awarded to the Group by
Fortune China in 2018:

For the “China’s 500 Largest Listed Companies 2018,
the total operating income of the 500 China listed
companies in 2018 reached RMB39.65 trillion, with an
increase of 18.22% and doubled in growth rate than in
the previous year. The net profit was RMB3.48 trillion,
with an increase of 24.24% (as comparison, the growth
rate was a merely 2.2% comparing with last year). After
breaking the RMB10 billion threshold last year, the
company on the list this year must have an operating
income of RMB13.864 billion, which is increased by
22.44% from last year.

Meanwhile, the selection for the “China’s Top 50 Boards of
Directors 2018” list is to allow the market and more enterprises
understand the high efficiency management model of the
Board, as well as a Board’s value in the enhancement of
production efficiency, survival and development of the company
and a good commercial system.
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9.3 Corporate Governance:

In 2015, Shenzhou International was recognised for its
corporate governance practices. It was named as one of
the 2015 Best Corporate Governance Awards for Listed
Companies by Ta Kung Pao, and was selected as one of the
Private Companies with the Largest Market Capitalization on
the Hong Kong Stocks Ranking, the Mainland Enterprises
Category in 2014-2015 (2014-2015%4F [& Fp B A f 1> 2 45 A
BEBBRMEITENSEATERD) by Yazhou Zhoukan.

Furthermore, during 2016, Shenzhou International was
awarded “Enterprise Award” in 2016 DHL/SCMP Hong
Kong Business Awards 2016. This greatly encourages
Shenzhou International and proves that the community
is confident in the corporate governance of Shenzhou
International. Therefore, the Group will continue its
efforts to raise the level of corporate governance, so as
to meet the rising international standards of corporate
governance.

Below is the Group’s trophy of “Enterprise Award”
awarded by DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business Awards in
2016:

Shenzhou International was awarded “The Hong Kong
Corporate Governance Excellence Awards 2018: Award
for Sustainability Excellence” by The Chamber of Hong
Kong Listed Companies in December 2018; a proof of
the Company’s excellence in many aspects, especially in
Board diversity, the active participation of Independent
Non-executive Directors, persistence on optimizing risk
management and internal monitoring and control, aa well
as the excellence in deepening corporate governance
culture internally and externally.
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The following picture is the trophy of “The Hong Kong
Corporate Governance Excellence Awards 2018: Award
for Sustainability Excellence” awarded to the Group by
The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies in 2018:

“The Hong Kong Corporate Governance Excellence
Awards” was an annual award organized by The Chamber
of Hong Kong Listed Companies and the Centre for
Corporate Governance and Financial Play of the Baptist
University since 2007. “The Hong Kong Corporate
Governance Excellence Awards” aims at promoting the
highest standards in corporate governance in Hong Kong,
business morality and Board leadership; acknowledging
companies with excellent management; promoting for
best practices and results, so as to promote the strong
development in company governance culture. “The Hong
Kong Corporate Governance Excellence Awards” is to
acknowledge and recommend the excellent performance
of listed companies in terms of shareholders’ rights,
compliance, integrity, fairness, responsibility, reliability,
transparency, Board independence and leadership, and
social responsibility.

The Group was awarded “Zhejiang May 1st Labour
Certificate” in 2016, which is one of the highest
provincial honor for labor groups. It is also a major honor
that Zhejiang Federation of Trade Unions awards to
entrepreneurial labor groups for significant contributions
to the society. The recommendation standards and the
selection procedures are strict. After over 2 months of
recommendation and selection, the honor was awarded
officially following recommendation, preliminary review,
publication, re-examination and final review.
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The picture below is “Zhejiang May 1st Labour
Certificate” received by the Group in 2016:

9.4 Energy conservation and emission reduction:

To boost the production capacity of the Group and
minimize the environmental impact of the production
process effectively, the Group has been committed
to environmental protection, energy conservation and
emission reduction in production. Since 2009, the Group
was awarded “Advanced Enterprise in Energy Saving
and Emission Reduction in 2009”, “2011 Advanced Unit
in Pollution and Emission Reduction in Ningbo”, “2012
Circular Economy Demonstration Industrial Enterprise
in Ningbo”, “2013 Advanced Enterprise in Water Saving
in Ningbo”, “Advanced Unit in Energy Conservation
and Consumption Reduction in the 11th Five-year Plan
in Ningbo”, “Advanced Unit in Pollution and Emission
Reduction in the 11th Five-year Plan in Ningbo”,
“Circular Economy Demonstration Industrial Enterprise in
Ningbo”, “2014 Water-saving Enterprise (Unit) in Zhejiang
Province”, “2017 Zhejiang Province Green Enterprise”
and “2018 Water-saving Enterprise in Ningbo” in the
area of energy conservation and emission reduction. The
awards of the Group in energy conservation and emission
reduction are as below:
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BRI+ — R SRR BE T e EEN
Advanced Unit in Pollution and Emission Reduction in
Ningbo in the 11th Five-year Plan

BERW [+ — T EheeE R TR
Advanced Unit in Energy Conservation and Consumption
Reduction in the 11th Five-year Plan in Ningbo

oISt A5 1T 3 Bl B R BE2012
2012 Energy Conservation and Emission
Reduction in Knitting Industry in China

2011 TS AR BE TE it S 72
2011 Advanced Unit in Pollution and Emission
Reduction in Ningbo

012FERMIERBREBERSBEE
2012 Circular Economy Demonstration Industrial
Enterprise in Ningbo

201B3F R MEIKEHE LR
2013 Advanced Enterprise in
Water Saving in Ningbo

20145 TR BB 5 (1)
2014 Water-saving Enterprise (Unit) in Zhejiang Province
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ma Jianrong ( E#% ), aged 55, is an Executive Director,
the Chairman of the Group and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. He is a senior economist. He is responsible for the
overall business development strategy of the Group and has over
38 years of experience in the textile industry. Prior to joining the
Group in 1989, he worked for Shaoxing Cotton Mill ( 43 S 4% %7 & )
and Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant (47 M §& 3 &1 4%
AREEH) . After joining the Group, Mr. Ma served as the manager
of the knitting and weaving department, a deputy general manager
and the general manager of Ningbo Shenzhou Weaving Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Ningbo Weaving”), the earliest operating entity of the Group.
He has been the chairman of Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhou Knitting”) since April 2005. He was appointed as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee on 1 April 2012. Mr. Ma was
the vice-chairman of China Knitting Industrial Association ( # Bl &1 4%
T %1% &) and was awarded “Charity Model of Ningbo ( ZE i 25 &
MR ) ”, “Charity Prize of Zhejiang — Individual” (37 L 252 8 — {8 A
#%) and “Prize for Outstanding Charity Contribution in China”( /
#EREEE ) . M. Ma is the brother-in-law of Mr. Huang Guanlin
and is a cousin of Mr. Ma Renhe (his father and Mr. Ma Renhe’s
father are brothers).

Mr. Huang Guanlin (ZEM) , aged 54, is an Executive Director
and the general manager of the Group. He is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group such as production, sales and marketing
and has over 31 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr.
Huang graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (#15T T %
X&), majoring in chemical industry management and engineering.
Prior to joining the Group in 1989, he worked for a silk knitting mill
in Yuhang County, Zhejiang Province. After joining the Group, Mr.
Huang worked as the manager and a deputy general manager of the
production and operation department of Ningbo Weaving. He has
been the general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April 2005. Mr.
Huang was the chairman of the Nomination Committee during the
period from October 2005 to March 2012. He is the brother-in-law of
Mr. Ma Jianrong.

ER ) B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Mr. Ma Renhe (F{=#), aged 59,
a deputy general manager of the Group and a member of the

is an Executive Director,

Remuneration Committee. He is responsible for administration,
dyeing and finishing affairs of the Group and has over 42 years of
experience in textile industry. Prior to joining the Group in 1989,
he worked for Shaoxing Cotton Mill and Hangzhou Linping Knitting
and Garment Plant. After joining the Group, Mr. Ma worked as the
manager and a deputy general manager of the dyeing and finishing
department of Ningbo Weaving. He has been a deputy general
manager of Shenzhou Knitting since May 2002. From October 2005
to March 2012, Mr. Ma was also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and subsequently redesignated as a member of the
Remuneration Committee. He is a cousin of Mr. Ma Jianrong (his
father and Mr. Ma Jianrong’s father are brothers).

Mr. Wang Cunbo ( £7Fi]) , aged 47, is an Executive Director and
a deputy general manager of the Group. He joined the Group as the
department head of the finance department of the Group, promoted
as the financial controller of Shenzhou Knitting in May 2004 and
became deputy general manager of the group since 16 December
2016. He was appointed as a Director of the Group in 2011. He
graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (1T T ¥ K& )
majoring in biology and chemical engineering, with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering in 1995. In the same year, Mr. Wang
studied at Zhejiang University of Technology where he obtained a
master’s degree in management in 1998. In addition, he obtained
the certificates of the PRC certified public accountant, the PRC
registered tax agent and the PRC certified public valuer and senior
accountant and the operating permit of the PRC public certified
accountant engaged in securities and futures-related business. Prior
to joining the Group, he was a partner of Ningbo Tianjian Yongde
United Accounting Firm ( 2% X{#K S-S 25BN EH5FT) , a deputy
general manager of Ningbo Yongde Corporate Management and
Consulting Firm (ZRKEBGEBTIRZRNEBA) ,

years of experience as certified accountant.

and has over 6
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Ms. Chen Zhifen (R %), aged 50, was appointed as an
Executive Director on 1 December 2013. She is a deputy general
manager of the Group, responsible for all garment manufacturing
departments, and has over 29 years of experience in the textile
industry. After joining the Group in April 1990, she worked as
the section chief, the manager of the garment manufacturing
department, the manager of the No. 2 and No. 6 garment
manufacturing departments, an assistant to the general manager
of Ningbo Weaving and an assistant to the general manager of the
Group. During the period from September 2000 to June 2003, Ms.
Chen studied at Naval University of Engineering (JEE T2 K&),
majoring in management engineering. She also graduated from TBM
LeanSigma Institute with a certificate for completion of the Kaizen
Promotion Office Toward World-Class Manufacturing Excellence in
2007 and the College of Economics of Zhejiang University (/T A £
OB ) with a certificate for the senior seminar class for modern
entrepreneur managers in 2012.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Jiang Xianpin (¥ 8 &), aged 54, studied accounting in
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics, the PRC (7
m BT &K E) from 1982 to 1986 and obtained a bachelor’s degree
in Economics majoring in accounting. Mr. Jiang started teaching
at Zhejiang University of Technology CH)T T% X&) in 1986 and
is currently a professor in the School of Accounting, Trade and
Management (48 & & 2 8t ) of Zhejiang University of Technology.
Mr. Jiang is also a key teaching staff in the University’s MBA
Education Centre and has been engaged by the Science Technology
Department of Zhejiang Province (7T & 2 ) as its special
finance expert. Mr. Jiang is the vice president of the Association of
Credit Assessment and Management of Hangzhou, PRC (A1 T {5
&R &), adirector of Institute of Finance Engineering, Zhejiang
Province, PRC (#T) T & @& Ti22 &), and the chief financial
adviser to FMBEEIREEHAF]. Mr. Jiang was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee on 1 April 2012.

ER ) B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Mr. Qiu Weiguo (E/&H) , aged 67, joined the Group on 1 April
2013 as an Independent Non-executive Director, and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Qiu
graduated from Party School of Ningbo Municipal Committee of the
Communist Party of China, holding a bachelor’s degree and the
qualification of practicing as an economist in Ningbo (Intermediate
level). He served as a factory manager of Ningbo Chemical Fibre
Plant (Z &L 28 #F) , the chairman and chief executive of %
HEFIE B, a manager of BR W44 T 3 2 7], the chairman
and chief executive of B 45 4% 5 B 15 %2 7], the party secretary
of the Communist Party Committee of the city of Fenghua. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Qiu served as the chief of Ningbo Bureau of
Quality and Technical Supervision (Z T E ERKMTEE B ) and the
secretary to the Party Committee and retired from these positions in
April 2012.

Mr. Chen Xu (BR/8) , aged 70, joined the Group on 1 December
2013 as an Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Audit Committee and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Chen graduated from Hangzhou Chemistry and Industry Institute
(ML 2 T 228 ) with a diploma in chemical machinery and the
Leadership Training Class of the Party School of Zhejiang Municipal
Committee of the Communist Party I/ T A Z ER &85 3131) .
Between July 1970 and September 1983, Mr. Chen held various
positions at Zhenhai Fertiliser Plant ($8)8 8 {t JE ¥ ) including
coordinator, deputy section chief of production and technology,
workshop director, deputy secretary of the party committee as well
as factory director. Mr. Chen also served as deputy head of the
organisation department of Zhenhai County Party Committee ($8/&
LM ED) from June 1985 to October 1985. He was a member
of the standing committee and the secretary of the Commission
for Discipline Inspection of Binhai (Beilun) District of Ningbo ( 2
W HEE (b ) & ) between October 1985 and March 1992. He
was also a member of the standing committee of the Commission
for Discipline Inspection of Ningbo ( %) M 42 % ) between August
1989 and March 1992, the vice secretary and the secretary of the
commission and the chairman of the standing committee of the
Local People’s Congress of Binhai (Beilun) District ( Z2 )% i 4t @ & A
KEEE) between March 1992 and January 2003. From February
2002 to March 2011, Mr. Chen served as the vice chairman of the
standing committee of the Local People’s Congress of Ningbo ( 2
WM AANEZE). He was appointed as the deputy director of the
advisory committee to the People’s Government of Ningbo ( 2 )% i
ARB#AZES
September 2013.

in August 2011 and retired from this position in
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Mr. Zhang Bingsheng (GRE4 5£4) , aged 56, joined the Group
on 1 September 2018 as an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Zhang graduated from
the Department of History of Fudan University (78 B X2 ) in July
1984. From July 1984 to March 1996, Mr. Zhang served as a lecturer
of the Department of Politics and History and the Department of
Politics and Economics of Ningbo Teachers’ College ( Z& i A & £
BT) . From March 1996 to October 1998, Mr. Zhang served as a
lecturer of the Department of Politics and Economics of the Faculty
of Teachers and Education of Ningbo University ( 285 X £ A £ £
Bt) . Mr. Zhang served in Ningbo University as Deputy Officer of
the Faculty of Social Science from October 1998 to April 2000, as
Deputy Director of Science and Research Administration Office from
July 2005 to January 2006, as Associate Dean of the Law School
from April 2000 to July 2005 and from January 2006 to November
2010. Mr. Zhang was promoted to Professor in December 2006
and has served as the Dean of the Law School of Ningbo University
since November 2010 till now. Mr. Zhang’s main academic part-
time positions include Standing Director of Chinese Society of
International Economic and Trade Law Research (R EIBIR & EE 5
JAE /138 ) |, Standing Director of China Intellectual Property Research
Society (P EI AN ERE M 72 ) , Standing Director of Zhejiang Law
Society ;T & A2 &), Vice President of Zhejiang Intellectual
Property Research Society i) T & Az ZE# I L ) , Vice President
of Zhejiang Association for Legal Education (/T & AEHR B3
&), Vice President of Ningbo Law Society and Supervisor of the
Academic Committee of Ningbo Law Society, president of Ningbo
Intellectual Property Law Research Society ( %% /1 %0 i &= # 5%
B E ), the responsible person of the National Characteristic
Professional (Law) (BIZXH# & H % (JA2) ) of Ningbo University,
the responsible person of the National Undergraduate Education
Comprehensive Reform Pilot Professional (Law) (BIRARIZE 47
AWEABHEE (JK2) ) of Ningbo University, and the responsible
person of Zhejiang First Class Discipline (A, Law) (#7)T4& —m &%
(AfEA2) ) of Ningbo University. Mr. Zhang’s main social part-
time positions include an arbitrator of Ningbo Arbitration Commission
ERHERZEZEE) | an arbitrator of Shaoxing Arbitration Commission
(BEMEFHZEE)and a lawyer of Zhejiang Shiguang Law Firm
CHIRS Y 2B EF A7) . Prior to joining the company, Mr. Zhang
had served as an independent director of Ningbo Thermal Power
Co., Ltd. (E)FAERM AR AF) and an independent director of
Zhejiang Tengtou Landscape Co., Ltd CHT R SEEMAZ D HR A A]) .
Both terms of office have expired now.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Tak Hing, Kenji (BR#E8) , aged 48, joined the Group
in September 2008. He is currently the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Chan has over 23 years of
experience in auditing, financial controlling, company secretarial
and accounting. Mr. Chan holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration and a Master of Science Degree in China Business
Management. Mr. Chan is also a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a Certified Tax Adviser
in Hong Kong and an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Lan (FR/&) , aged 53, is a deputy general manager of
the Group, responsible for the procurement of raw materials, such
as cotton yarn, and information management, and has over 30 years
of experience in textile industry. After joining the Group in July 1989,
he served as the manager of the weaving department, the deputy
manager of the production and operation department, the manager
of the raw materials procurement department and an assistant to the
general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an assistant to the general
manager of the Group.

Mr. Gu Chaoquan (EEEI#) , aged 57, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, responsible for the Group’s garment factory in Anhui,
and has over 31 years of experience in textile industry. Prior to
joining the Group in 1989, he worked for the government of Beilun
District, Ningbo City, China. Mr. Gu served as the deputy head of
the office, the manager of the garment manufacturing department,
the manager of the No. 1 garment manufacturing department ( &7
—#B) , assistant to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an
assistant to the general manager of the Group.
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Mr. Yan Delin (&%), aged 64, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, in charge of the operations of the Group’s garment
factory in Cambodia and has over 31 years of experience in textile
industry. He has obtained the certificate of assistant economist. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Yan worked as the head of the equipment
division of Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant, the
head of its office, and a deputy general manager of joint venture
companies under Yuhang Cooperative Office (FRMBIERAE) ,
during which, he served as the general manager of a Cambodian
company under the Yuhang Cooperative Office. After joining the
Group in October 1999, Mr. Yan worked as the deputy head of the
office of Ningbo Weaving and has been an assistant to the general
manager of Shenzhou Knitting since May 2005. He graduated from
the Correspondence College at the Party School of the Central
Committee of CCP, majoring in economic management.

Mr. Jiang Tao (3I3), aged 52, is an assistant to the general
manager and the manager of the Uniglo Business Department of
the Group. He has 23 years of experience in knitting and weaving
industry. Mr. Jiang graduated from the Faculty of English at Shanghai
University ( _E/&AX2) | majoring in English for international trade.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked at Shanghai Dongfang Rimian
Company Limited (_ /83 75 B4 BR 2 al) . After joining the Group
in October 1998, Mr. Jiang served as an assistant to the general
manager of Ningbo Weaving and was responsible for the sales to
Uniglo.

Mr. Cui Jifeng (E## ), aged 55, is an assistant to the general
manager of the Group, responsible for the Group’s technology
and quantity affairs, and has over 30 years of experience in textile
industry. Prior to joining the Group in 1990, he worked as the deputy
factory manager of Ningbo Beilun Garments Plant ( 28 4t f AR
) , in charge of technology. Mr. Cui served as the deputy manager
of the production and operation department and an assistant to the
general manager of Ningbo Weaving.

Mr. Hu Yonghai (#k#8), aged 53, is an assistant to the
general manager of the Group, responsible for the affairs of
fabric technology, and has over 30 years of experience in textile
industry. He obtained the certificate of assistant economist. Mr. Hu
graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (#7/T T 3 X&)
with a bachelor’s degree in industrial management engineering. He
joined the Group immediately after graduation and worked as an
assistant manager, deputy manager of the production and operation
department and an assistant to the general manager of Ningbo
Weaving, responsible for the affairs of fabrics and technology.
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Mr. Ma Bin ( E#2) , aged 48, joined the Group in 2001. Currently,
he is an assistant to the general manager and the manager of the
NIKE Business Department of the Group. He is fully in charge of
the operation and project management and customer relationship
maintenance of the NIKE business department. Mr. Ma has 19
years of experience in the textile industry. After joining the Group,
he participated in the formation of the Shenzhou Department of
European and U.S. Business and was responsible for targeting
potential customers. He has been responsible for the NIKE business
since early 2005. In January 2009, he was appointed as an assistant
to the Group’s general manager. He graduated from the Department
of Electronic Engineering of the Fudan University and later obtained
his SUFE-Webster joint MBA from the MBA School of Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Ma served as the business development manager of the Sealand
Securities.

Mr. Song Qing (RE), aged 49,
manager and the manager of the ADIDAS Business Department

is an assistant to the general

of the Group. He is fully in charge of the general management
and system construction of the ADIDAS Business Department of
the Group. He assists the general manager with other aspects of
operations and has 21 years of experience in the textile industry.
In 1994, Mr. Song graduated from the Department of Computer
Science and Technology of the Northwestern Polytechnical
University. He obtained a Master of Technology from the National
University of Singapore in 2005 and graduated from the NTU-SJTU
Joint Executive MBA (EMBA) Programme in 2008. Having joined the
Group in January 2007, Mr. Song has 10 years of work experience
in Singapore. Beginning in 1997, he worked as a senior software
development engineer for a software development firm for a year.
In 1998, he joined KETLHFLABRAF of the textile industry
and served as its IT Manager and Chief Information Officer CIO
successively.
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Mr. Xu Huiguo (2 [El) , aged 66, joined the Group in 2011. He
is currently a deputy general manager of the Group in charge of
the administrative affairs of the Group. Mr. Xu has over 47 years
of experience in administration and management. Mr. Xu obtained
an undergraduate qualification in economic management from the
Party School of the Central Committee of C.P.C. and is a qualified
engineer. Prior to joining the Group, he was the team leader of the
wiring team (4R & B ) of Ningbo Electricity Bureau (2 E%F) , a
manager and the secretary of the party branch of Z} ERBE L
25 N 7], the general manager of %) & % A 7], the chief of Beilun
District Electricity Bureau (1t #t%E /&) and the general manager of
Ningbo Mingyao Environmental Thermal Power Co., Ltd.

Mr. Yang Honghui (54 #) , aged 50,
manager of the Group and is responsible for the production planning

is a deputy general

of the Group. He has accumulated over 29 years of management
experience in textile industry. He joined in Shenzhou Weaving in
February 1990. He once served as the manager of trims office of
the production and operation department and accessory department
of Ningbo Weaving, vice head of production planning department,
head of production planning department, and was responsible for
the procurement and management of auxiliary materials as well
as production planning and management of the Group. He was
appointed as the vice general manager of the Group in January
2018. His main duties are included: assisting the general manager
to work, executing the guidance, direction, supervision and
management on daily production and operation of the Company.
This includes improving the production management system,
participating in the formulation and planning of the plan of the Group
yearly, allocating the orders from each of the clients of the Group,
preparing the production plan, tracking production progress, to
ensure the completion of production task.
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The Directors of Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
garment trading. The primary activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 1 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements and the Management Discussion and Analysis section of
this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position and principal risks
and uncertainties facing the group are provided in the Chairman’
s Statement, Financial Review and Business Review sections
respectively from pages 12 to 15, pages 29 to 37 and pages 27
to 28 of this annual report. The future development of the Group’
s business is discussed throughout this annual report including
in the Chairman’s Statement and Future Prospect and Strategies
from pages 12 to 15 and 37 to 39 of this annual report. In addition,
more details regarding the Group’s performance by reference to
environmental and social-related key performance indicators and
policies, as well as relationships with its employees, customers and
suppliers, are provided in this annual report in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report. The discussion above forms part of
this Report of the Directors.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 155 to 275.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.90
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 10 June 2019. However, the proposed payment
of the dividend shall be subject to approval by shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on 28
May 2019 and subject to such approval having been obtained, the
payment of such dividend is expected to be on or around 20 June
2019.

Interim dividend of HK$0.85 (equivalent to approximately RMBO0.72)
per share was declared for the six months ended 30 June 2018 (for
the six months ended 30 June 2017: HK$0.70 per Share) to the
shareholders whose names appeared on the register of members of
the Company at the close of business on 13 September 2018. The
interim dividend was paid on 27 September 2018.

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the
Company had waived or agreed to waive any dividend during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”).
In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board will take into account the Group’s
earnings performance, financial position, investment requirements
and future prospects.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the
applicable laws and the Company’s Articles of Association.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the year are set out in note 40 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately RMB7,140,000.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the authorised or issued share capital of
the Company are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2018,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to RMB18,890,865,000, of which RMB1,185,411,000 has
been proposed as final dividend for the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction under the laws
of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer such
rights on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders during new shares
issue.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 276.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

No share option scheme was operated by the Company as at 31
December 2018.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the Latest Practicable Date
were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Ma Jianrong

Mr. Huang Guanlin
Mr. Ma Renhe

Mr. Wang Cunbo

Ms. Chen Zhifen

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Xu

Mr. Jiang Xianpin

Mr. Qiu Weiguo

Mr. Zhang Bingsheng (appointed on 1 September 2018)

In accordance with Article 86(3) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Zhang Bingsheng will retire at the forthcoming AGM
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Ma Jianrong, Ms. Chen Zhifen and Mr. Jiang
Xianpin shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election thereat.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a term
of three years. The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Chen Xu, Mr. Jiang Xianpin, Mr. Qiu Weiguo
and Mr. Zhang Bingsheng pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers that they are all independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years which will be automatically
renewed for another term of three years subject to compliance with
the Articles of Association of the Company and the Listing Rules
until it is terminated pursuant to the terms of the respective service
contract. According to the respective service contract, it may be
terminated at any time by either party giving the other party not less
than three months’ prior written notice.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years which
will be automatically renewed for another term of three years subject
to compliance with the Articles of Association of the Company and
the Listing Rules until it is terminated pursuant to the terms of the
respective service contract. According to the respective service
contract, it may be terminated at any time by the Independent
Non-executive Director giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice.

Under the respective service contracts, each of the Executive
Directors is entitled to an annual discretionary management bonus
as the Remuneration Committee of the Board may approve, provided
that the aggregate amount of the discretionary management
bonuses payable to all Executive Directors in respect of any financial
year of the Group would not exceed 5% of the net profits of the
Group after taxation and minority interests and less the aggregate
amount of the discretionary management bonuses but before non-
recurring items for the relevant financial year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS’
AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company and subject
to the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
every Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director, auditor or
other officer of the Company, other than for any matter in respect of
any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any such persons. The
Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company
during the year in respect of any legal actions which may be taken
against the Directors and officers in the execution and discharge of
their duties or in relation thereto.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 8 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”
and “Continuing connected transactions” below and “Related party
transactions” in note 36 to the financial statements, no Director had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement and contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, none of the Directors of
the Company had any interest in any competing business with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND MEMBER OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors of the Company and
members of the Senior Management of the Group are set out on
pages 124 to 132.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which was taken or
deemed to be held by any such director or chief executive under
such provisions of the SFO) and were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (“Securities Trading Code”) contained in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

HERRATEBIT

£ M SOREZER RHEE RAEH 2 L (%)
Percentage of

the Issued Share

Capacity and Capital of

Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
BEEEE 1 NEIRER 700,808,750 46.62%
Mr. Ma Jianrong 1 Corporate interests 700,803,750 46.62%
B4 2 NEER 79,465,250 5.29%
Mr. Ma Renhe 2 Corporate interests 79,465,250 5.29%
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Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2018, 700,803,750 Shares were held by Keep
Glory Limited (“Keep Glory”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to
78.89% by Splendid Steed Investments Limited (“Splendid Steed”),
14.69% by BMX (HK) LTD. (“BMX”) and 6.42% by Super China
Enterprises Limited (“Super China”). Splendid Steed, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong. BMX, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Huang
Guanlin (brother-in-law of Mr. Ma Jianrong and son-in-law of Mr. Ma
Baoxing). Super China, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing (father
of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ma Jianrong is deemed
to be interested in the 700,803,750 Shares held by Keep Glory.

2. As at 31 December 2018, 79,465,250 Shares were held by Fairco
Group Limited (“Fairco”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to 77.08% by
MCC Group Ltd (“MCC”) and 22.92% by certain senior management
of the Group including Mr. Wang Cunbo and Ms. Chen Zhifen (all are
executive Directors). MCC, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Renhe,
an executive Director and a cousin of Mr. Ma Jianrong. By virtue of
the SFO, Mr. Ma Renhe is deemed to be interested in the 79,465,250
Shares held by Fairco.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO or which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Securities Trading Code.

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies, its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executive of the
Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years of age)
to hold any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated
corporation.
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FTERENEATRDHELZEN SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
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AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

RZIZE—NF+-A=+—H"  T¥ AL (A& At 31 December 2018, the following persons who held interests of
NAEBRIN EARBBIEFHFLEBEED 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company, other than
FE336IEFTTFE 2R EAMATRES(E AR RIE  Directors of the Company, were recorded in the register of members
BT AS %R A 2 RS

RAEQXFAEBRIPZHR

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

HARATRE BT

=x iz S REZER ROEE IRZA 8 2 ke (%)

Percentage of

the Issued Share

Capacity and Capital of

Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company

ISES 1 EREBA 700,803,750 46.62%

Keep Glory 1 Beneficial owner 700,803,750 46.62%

TES 1 NEIR £ 700,803,750 46.62%

Splendid Steed 1 Corporate interests 700,803,750 46.62%

E& 2 EnEEA 79,465,250 5.29%

Fairco 2 Beneficial owner 79,465,250 5.29%

MCC 2 NEIE £ 79,465,250 5.29%

MCC 2 Corporate interests 79,465,250 5.29%
B 5 Notes:

—_

R-E-NFE+-A=+—0 HE% (XK
NEBRABEEEMRAIZERAFEE
700,803,750 f% {5 - T 25 » BMX K& |
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8 2700,803,7500% B 15 A RS -

1. As at 31 December 2018, 700,803,750 Shares were held by Keep
Glory, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, which is owned as to 78.89% by Splendid Steed, 14.69%
by BMX and 6.42% by Super China. Splendid Steed, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong. BMX, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Huang
Guanlin. Super China, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing (father
of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the SFO, Splendid Steed is deemed to
be interested in the 700,803,750 Shares held by Keep Glory.
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2. As at 31 December 2018, 79,465,250 Shares were held by Fairco, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
which is owned as to 77.08% by MCC and 22.92% by certain senior
management of the Group including Mr. Wang Cunbo and Ms. Chen
Zhifen (all are executive Directors). MCC, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr.
Ma Renhe, an executive Director and a cousin of Mr. Ma Jianrong. By
virtue of the SFO, MCC is deemed to be interested in the 79,465,250
Shares held by Fairco.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the paragraph headed “Directors and Chief Executives’ interests and
short positions in the shares of the Company” above, had interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'’S INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”
and “Connected continuing transactions” below and “Related party
transactions” in note 36 to the financial statements, no controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a

party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of major suppliers and customers of the group
accounting for procurement and sales up to 31 December 2018 was
shown as following:

HERBEZ HEEEZ
B2 (%) B2 (%)
Accounting for Accounting for
of procurement of sales

Percentage (%) Percentage (%)

BARER TP The largest supplier/customer 15.78 29.87
hARHER,EPAF  Summation of five suppliers/customers 31.31 81.73
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Details of top four customers referred to Notes 4 of financial report.

At any time within the year, directors, their linkman or any
shareholders (holding more than 5% capital stock of the company
as directors had known) had no any interests from the suppliers or
customers.

RELATED TRANSACTIONS

According to regulations on disclosure in Article 14A of listing rules,
several related-party transaction disclosed in Notes 36 of financial
report also constituted continuous related transaction according
to listing rules. If following transactions between several affiliated
people (according to definition of listing rules) and the company had
been concluded and/or continuously carried on, and the company
had made related disclosure according to regulations on disclosure
in Article 14A of Listing Rules, other related party transaction would
not constitute related transaction of the company or continuous
related transaction.
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CONTINUOUS RELATED TRANSACTIONS

a.

Leasing some production properties and facilities

The wholly-owned subsidiary of the company, Ningbo
Shenzhou Knit Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Knit”) signed a leasing
agreement with Shenzhou Property Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou
Property”) on 16 December 2016. Hereby, Shenzhou Property
leased clothing production property to Shenzhou Knit with
tenancy term from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019.
Shenzhou Knit could perform the renewal rights to relet
another three years as per current or lower than current
market rent (“Leasing Agreement”). Shenzhou Knit would give
no less than 3-month notification to Shenzhou Property to
terminate the leasing agreement. The above rent collected
by Shenzhou Property should be determined by market
rent of leasing similar property and production facilities from
independent third parties according to common business
articles in daily business process of Ningbo City China. The
corporate management had complied with process approved
by board meetings to determine the market rent collected
by independent third parties on similar properties. Shenzhou
Property, whose 80% and 20% of equities were separately held
by the executive directors Mr. Ma Jianrong and linkman Ningbo
Rongrong Industry Investment Co., Ltd. (“Rongrong Industry”)
was affiliated person according to Article 14A.07(4) of listing
rules. Within the year, the group totally paid RMB9,624,000 to
Shenzhou Property for rent.
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Supplying packing materials

Shenzhou Knit signed a supply agreement (“Packing Material
Supply Agreement”) with Shaoxing County Huaxi Packing
Co., Ltd. ("Huaxi Packing Company”) on 16 December 2016.
Hereby, Huaxi Packing Company had agreed to supply
packing materials to the group from time to time according
to common business articles no less favorable than provided
by independent third parties. The term of packing material
supply agreement was from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2019. Mr. Huang Guanquan, brother of the executive director
Mr. Huang Guanglin, and Mr. Huang Fuchang, father of the
executive director Mr. Huang Guanglin, separately held 87.5%
and 12.5% of equities of Huaxi Packing Company, which was
an affiliate person according to Article 14A.07(4) of listing rules.
Within the year, the group totally paid RMB31,580,000 to Huaxi
Packing Company for procurement of packing materials.

Details of above continuous related transaction referred to the
announcement of the company on 16 December 2016.

The independent non-executive director had checked and
approved above continuous related transaction, and confirmed
the transaction: (1) being operated in common and daily
business operation of the group; (2) being operated according
to common commercial articles or articles obtainable or
provided by no less favorable to independent third parties for
the company; and (3) being operated according to articles
of related agreements of the transaction which were fair and
reasonable as well as meeting overall interests of shareholders
of the company.

According to the implemented work, the auditor of the
company also wrote to confirm and notice that no any matters
make they believe in the continuous related transaction: (1)
without approval of board meetings of the company; (2) in
no accordance with pricing policies of the group on all major
aspects; (3) in no accordance with agreement of regulations
on related transactions on all major aspects; and (4) exceeding
annual upper limits of the company announced on 16
December 2016.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have
significant impact on the Group, such as the Listing Rules and the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. The Board is responsible
for monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements and such policies are regularly
reviewed. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations
are brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units from time to time.

As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public for the
year ended 31 December 2018 and as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young has audited the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board

Ma Jianrong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2019
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22/F, CITIC Tower
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To the shareholders of

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhou
International Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 155 to 275, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
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BREBEITEHR

Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

BEBTESREETHROTEHH

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

JE M R 50 % 2 15 B 18 L

Impairment risks for trade and bills receivables

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had trade and
bills receivables of approximately RMB3,565 million,
which accounted for 12.9% of the Group’s total
assets.

RZB-NFFT_A=+—RH EEENEKREREE
BOARBIGBEETL HEEEBEEM12.9% °
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Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of trade
and bills receivables included, but are not limited to,
understood and evaluated the key controls that the Group
has implemented to manage and monitor its credit risk,
and tested the effectiveness on a sample basis; checked
the ageing of the trade receivables as at 31 December
2018 and subsequent settlements to bank receipts;
Inquired of management for the on-going business
relationship with the customers based on trade records;
assessed the appropriateness of the expected credit
loss provisioning methodology by examining the key data
inputs on a sample basis to assess their accuracy and
completeness, and challenging the assumptions, including
both historical and forward-looking information, used to
determine the expected credit losses.
EETHRYREREZERBRENEGTRTEE (BETRR)
BRI EREREIEREZEEE SRR M E i) 65
THIEN A RERMEREENABTRE  RE T —N\F
TZRA=ET—HRRBERRZERNERZKREE: MER
EAMAHAETFOREEKAR (EXNXFRHR) Fh
RERELERESFEZERABBIGEREEERRB R A
BB AN DARTE A EmE R B RERE (BERAR
ETEHEEEENELRABELEER) REERR -
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Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

RRBTSREFTHROFEHH

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

JEW AR R B EE e (&)
Impairment risks for trade and bills receivables
(continued)

Management performed periodic assessment on
the recoverability of the trade receivables and
the sufficiency of provision for impairment based
on information including credit profile of different
customers, ageing of the trade receivables,
historical settlement records, subsequent settlement
status, expected timing and amount of realisation
of outstanding balances, and on-going trading
relationships with the relevant customers. Management
also considered forward-looking information that may
impact the customers’ ability to repay the outstanding
balances, in order to estimate the expected credit
losses for the impairment assessment. No credit loss
allowance was provided based on management’s
impairment assessment.

EREEREN (BETRATFPEERRNERE B
BRARER BELEECHE REGERR REEER
SENRHSHEReEREEBEFNFEESIBER)
HEWER A AT 1 1T E AT - B IR E IR E B Al
RYERPERREESRNENHORELEER U
SARRNRER AN TEREEEE - REEEENRER
b WEFHR EEERRE -

A high level of management judgement was required
when assessing the impairment of trade and bills
receivables under the expected credit losses model.
RIEBHREEEERATERKERRERRERT
BEKTE AN -

The accounting policies and disclosures for trade and
bills receivables are included in notes 2.4 and 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.
FHERERLEBEN ST BRERBERNGESHH
WKW EE2.4%19 -
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Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

RRBTSREFTHROFEHH

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FREBFIREEFRERE

Inventory excess and obsolescence provisions

The balances of inventories and the related excess
and obsolescence provision as at 31 December 2018
amounted to RMB5,360 million and RMB123 million,
respectively. The gross inventory balances were
material to the consolidated financial statements and
significant management judgement was required when
assessing the adequacy of provision.

RZEBE-NFFT_A=+—R0 GFEREERFRRE
FEREBESRS I/ ARES3608ETRARK123
BEL FEARREHRSVBEBRRBEEZ T
HOREUEFTEEIREHE A -

The accounting policies and disclosures for inventories
and the related excess and obsolescence provision
are included in notes 2.4 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.
FBRFERERBNEREFERENS
BEHNGE T BREAMT2.4K%18 -

At BUR B3
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We assessed the processes, methods and assumptions
used to develop the provision for slow moving, excess or
obsolete items. This included comparing management’s
calculations for consistency against those used in the prior
year.

FEHBH BRNRERB A RBEMERNBIE 7
RERETIH HEEHREFMAZELRERENE
B — Bk -

We tested the reliability of the underlying data used by
management to calculate the inventory obsolescence
provision, typically the ageing analysis of inventories. We
also tested the accuracy of the calculation by assessing
the calculation criteria and recalculating the provision for
products on a sample basis.
EEFAHAEEEXRNAEREFTERGOEREUE (HI
MiFEREDIT) A EL-F Liﬂ%%ﬁ%‘ﬂ%ﬁi‘%iﬁwﬁﬁﬂ
BEEENIEERNERS PK RIS E e R -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS

FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee

in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters

that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lai Wing Kwong.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

HEZZ—-\F+ZA=+—HILFE VYear ended 31 December 2018

—E-NE —FT—+tF
2018 2017
B &E AR T ARBEF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
WA REVENUE 5 20,950,205 18,085,247
5 AR Cost of sales (14,336,181)  (12,413,947)
E7 Gross profit 6,614,024 5,671,300
EAb A R Wz Other income and gains 5 709,239 571,554
$HE o SRR Selling and distribution expenses (708,485) (469,833)
THAX Administrative expenses (1,449,696) (1,231,175)
HibF = Other expenses (18,808) (134,277)
B & AR Finance costs 7 (61,049) (123,016)
FEAG — R B 2 2 R B9 I Share of profit of an associate 17 5,121 3,678
RR %6 B0 R 8 PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 5,090,346 4,288,231
B Income tax expense 11 (597,803) (528,280)
FERNH PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 4,492,543 3,759,951
AT AT EEER: Attributable to:
ISUNEIE PN Owners of the parent 4,540,487 3,762,721
FE 12 1 R 2 Non-controlling interests (47,944) (2,770)
4,492,543 3,759,951
BAREBERRERSEEA EARNINGS PER SHARE
EESRER ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT 13
BN Basic
— F [ZFH — For profit for the year AR#3.02t ARM2587T
RMB3.02 RMB2.58
s Diluted
—FENE — For profit for the year ARM¥3.02t AR#¥2537T
RMB3.02 RMB2.53
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HEZZ—-\F+ZA=+—HILFE VYear ended 31 December 2018

—E-N\F —t
2018 2017
AR®BT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEFE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 4,492,543 3,759,951
Hie 2 H K& OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REZIBEAEEHTNDEZE  Other comprehensive income that
B J/}EE’JH\P@iﬁW may be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:
e =5 Exchange differences:
MEBINER ZIEN Z%  Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations 194,574 (130,313)
REZIBEEEFTNDIEZE  Net other comprehensive income that
BamHEmemks 8 may be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods 194,574 (130,313)
FEHM2MEWE  (FE) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
(BRBiR) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 194,574 (130,313)
FEXHWKEAE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 4,687,117 3,629,638
DMTATEMLERS: ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
BRAIER A Owners of the parent 4,735,048 3,642,824
3H il 1 2 Non-controlling interests (47,931) (13,186)
4,687,117 3,629,638
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—“E-N\E+=-HF=+—H 31 December 2018

—E-NF —E—+tF
2018 2017
B 5 AR TR ARBEF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
W BB M&E Property, plant and equipment 14 8,002,724 7,116,787
T T ERIE Prepaid land lease payments 15 1,200,501 956,908
BVEE Intangible assets 16 99,674 98,257
ERREBTHNRHEESHER  Long-term time deposits at banks 24 - 150,000
RHEATE B Long-term prepayments 20 82,667 44,291
R—EBERRZEE Investment in an associate 17 12,365 10,851
RIETRIBEE E Deferred tax assets 29(a) 13,696 9,632
EIRFR Pledged deposits 24 - 500,000
BIERBEE Total non-current assets 9,411,627 8,886,726
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
ra Inventories 18 5,237,432 4,477,489
FE U BR TR N = AR Trade and bills receivables 19 3,564,821 2,814,779
TEAT 3RIE N H b g W I8 Prepayments and other receivables 20 659,955 809,786
JE UR BEBSE A 58 Amounts due from related parties 36(c) 2,625 606
BAREFEAEHTA Financial assets at fair value through
BREzemEE/ profit or loss/available-for-sale
AHEERE investments 21 - 2,976,900
EemEE Other financial assets 22 1,480,000 -
HEBER Structured deposits 23 - 1,050,000
WIRF R Pledged deposits 24 500,000 -
TeFga=RAa2 Bank deposits with an initial term of
RITFER over three months 24 3,129,678 605,518
HeRIFAESEED Cash and cash equivalents 24 3,565,916 2,471,401
BRBEE Total current assets 18,140,427 15,206,479
RBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
JE - BR 3K Trade payables 25 812,687 873,106
AHEE Contract liabilities 26 24,161 -
T8 UL BR =X Advances from customers 26 - 26,225
H Ath & A /I8 & FEFT IR Other payables and accruals 27 1,181,676 944,649
S — 2 BB A T 20E Amount due to a related party 36(c) 1,882 -
FFERITEER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 28 2,434,391 2,130,409
J& A5 35 5K Tax payable 464,829 290,966
ErREaE Total current liabilities 4,919,626 4,265,355
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—“E-N\E+=-HF=+—H 31 December 2018

—E-NE —FT—+tF
2018 2017
B 7 AR¥ T AREF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FRABEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 13,220,801 10,941,124
HWEEBRRBEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 22,632,428 19,827,850
kRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FFEIRITEER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 28 82,358 -
RIEFIBEAE Deferred tax liabilities 29(b) 95,791 3,197
WIERBAE Total non-current liabilities 178,149 3,197
BEE NET ASSETS 22,454,279 19,824,653
s EQUITY
BAREE AEEER Equity attributable to owners of
the parent
% S Share capital 30 151,200 151,200
G Reserves 31 22,147,538 19,469,981
22,298,738 19,621,181
FEEHHER Non-controlling interests 155,541 203,472
4AE = Total equity 22,454,279 19,824,653
BEH EHEM
Ma Jianrong Huang Guanlin
TEFEHITEE TTIAR S FEHNITEE
Chairman and Executive Director Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-ZT-NF+-ZA=+—HIFE Yearended 31 December 2018
BRAREALES
Attributable to owners of the parent
EERH ES EERE I
Bx ROEER Mg FBEE EHEE EfthE REEH it fEs fEs
Employee
Share  component of Statutory Exchange equity Non-
Share premium convertible surplus fluctuation benefits Other Retained controling Total
capital account bonds reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
Wit ARBTR ARETR ARBTL  ARETR  ARETT  ARBTn  ARETR  AR#TRT  AR®TR  ARETR ARETT
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Ht3k30) (Hastg)  (Wisi)) (WiE31(i))
{note 30) (note 31()) (note 31ii) (note 31(i))
RZF-t5-A-R At 1 January 2017 142,106 661,648 197,140 1,171,416 187,080 48,191 148,333 12,637,031 15,092,944 216,658 15,309,602
FEHA Proft for the year - - - - - - - 3,762,721 3,762,721 2,770 3,759,951
FERNEBZESEE  Exchange diferences related to
foreign operations - - - - (119,897) - - - (119,897) (10,416) (130,313
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (119,897) - - 3,762,721 3,642,824 (13,186) 3,629,638
Conversion of convertible bonds 9,095 3,557,285 (197,140) - - - - - 3,369,240 - 3,369,240
Final 2016 dividend declared 12 - (700,787) - - - - - (894,500) (1,595,287) - (1,595,287)
t FRBRE Interim 2017 dividend 12 - (888,540) - - - - - - (888,540) - (888,540)
SREREEN Transfer from retained profts - - - 79471 - - - (79.471) - - -
At 31 December 2017 151,200 2,629,606 - 1,250,887 67,183" 48191* 148,333* 15,326,781 19,621,181 203,472 19,824,653
BATREALES
Attributable to owners of the parent
EEBR Ed EERE FEHE
Bk BGEER NEE ROGRE BARRE AR REBEF @it 3 s
Employee
Share Statutory Exchange equity Non-
Share premium surplus fluctuation benefits Other Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
lE  ARBTn  ARMTr  ARBTR  ARMTr  ARBTR  ARETr  ARETR  ARETr  ARETR  AR¥Tz
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(H3E30) (W&E31() (H&E31(i) (Wi&E31i))
(note 30) (note 31())  (note 31(ii) (note 31(iii))
RZZ-\5-A-H At 1 January 2018 151,200 2,629,606 1,250,887 67,183 48,191 148,333 15,325,781 19,621,181 203,472 19,824,653
FENE Profit for the year - - - - - - 4,540,487 4,540,487 (47,944) 4,492,543
BEENEHZELEE  Exchange differences related to
foreign operations - - - 194,561 - - - 194,561 13 194,574
FERENEESR Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 194,561 - - 4,540,487 4,735,048 (47,931) 4,687,117
Final 2017 dividend declared 12 - - - - - - (942,408) (942,408) - (942,408)
Interim 2018 dividend 12 - (1,115,083) - - - - - (1,115,083) - (1,115,083)
ERERER W Transfer from retained profits - - 32,095 - - - (32,995) - - -
RZZ-N At 31 December 2018
TZA=+-8 151,200 1,514,523* 1,283,882* 261,744* 48,191* 148,333 18,800,865 22,208,738 155,541 22,454,219

- RAaMBRRERPZ

19,469,981,0007T ) M &

HAMBARE -
22,147,538,000L (ZE—tF: AR

SRERAK -

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
RMB22,147,538,000 (2017: RMB19,469,981,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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HEBRERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEZZ—-\F+ZA=+—HILFE VYear ended 31 December 2018

—E-N\F e
2018 2017
Bt 5 AR T ARBTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
REXBABHRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
B 75 B A B Profit before tax 5,090,346 4,288,231
FE Adjustments for:
B & A Finance costs 7 61,049 123,016
FEAE — AR & R ) R Share of profit of an associate 17 (5,121) (3,678)
WA Interest income 5 (294,711) (211,436)
HEME - BWE K Loss on disposal of items of property,
RiBEIER 2 EE plant and equipment 6 8,880 26,350
ME - BMELIBEEERE Depreciation of items of property,
plant and equipment 6 838,683 751,125
FEAT Lt T & FRIE 5 Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments 6 30,870 24,447
B EE#H Amortisation of intangible assets 6 11,678 8,119
FEEETA Provision for impairment of
inventories 18 79,816 26,659
5,821,490 5,032,833
FEEM Increase in inventories (839,759) (805,058)
JE U BR 3 2 SRR AL AN Increase in trade and bills receivables (750,042) (162,072)
TE T RRIE B H A e U Decrease/(increase) in prepayments
RER D, (M) and other receivables 137,567 (81,787)
FE U BEESE A - 3RIB (Increase)/decrease in amounts due
(&), R from related parties (2,019) 220
JEMEBRR CR ) /42 (Decrease)/increase in trade payables (60,419) 114,889
EHEERBRER (Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities
(R A) /1 and advances from customers (2,064) 9,575
HAabfE B R EETERE N Increase in other payables and accruals 232,838 194,669
T — BB AT IEE I Increase in an amount due to
a related party 1,882 -
KEEFFBERS Cash generated from operations 4,539,474 4,303,269
EENEESS Interest paid (85,332) (80,942)
BEREAFEM Hong Kong profits tax paid (52,725) (35,132)
BEINEIER Overseas withholding tax paid (4,875) -
ERPEERSH PRC corporate income tax paid (277,810) (497,929)
REEBABHRLREFEE  NET CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 4,118,732 3,689,266

ER ) B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



FERERER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEZZ—-\F+ZA=+—HILFE VYear ended 31 December 2018

—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
Bt 5 AR® T ARBTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
EBEBBIRESMEFH  Net cash flows from operating activities 4,118,732 3,689,266
REXBFARESRE CASH FLOWS USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
2 A B Interest received 298,199 175,114
EEWME BERKEIEE Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment (1,647,824) (1,172,047)
HEME - BE R Proceeds from disposal of items of
HREBEB 2SR property, plant and equipment 33,051 76,930
TE T H A & FRIE Prepayments for land lease (268,363) (32,635)
REFTBATZRE (38 400) 84> (Increase)/decrease in long-term
prepayments (38,376) 2,647
s m & E Purchases of intangible assets (13,080) (1,417)
I BE — BB A A Acquisition of a subsidiary - (46,377)
WM ZEER Collection of entrusted loans - 150,000
HERHEERENMSHRIE  Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale investments - 143,100
HERAAESEBEZET A Net proceeds from disposal of
Bz emMEE TS F5I8 financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 2,976,900 -
EEEMERERE Acquisition of other financial assets (1,480,000) -
BREEFORD (38 m) Decrease/(increase) in
structured deposits 1,050,000 (1,050,000)
B FEFREBRER=EA 2 (Increase)/decrease in bank deposits
RITFR ()R with an initial term of
over three months (2,374,160) 27,934
REXKFMARESRETFE  NET CASH FLOWS USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,463,653) (1,726,751)
METBHFARERE CASH FLOWS USED IN
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
EIRITER New bank loans 32 1,847,235 1,437,032
EEETER Repayment of bank loans 32 (1,460,895) (548,056)
MR RHEE AR RS Dividends paid to owners of the parent (2,057,491) (2,483,827)
EENEESS Interest paid 32 - (1,363)
BMEEHMAE S MEFE  Net cash flows used in
financing activities (1,671,151) (1,596,214)
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FERERER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEZZ—-\F+ZA=+—HILFE VYear ended 31 December 2018

—E-N\EF —E—tF
2018 2017
Bt 5 AR® T AREET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ReRESEZEYIEMFE  NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 983,928 366,301
FUNReRBESEFEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 2,471,401 2,105,184
ERGe) w2 FHE Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net 110,587 (84)
FRASRAEEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 3,565,916 2,471,401
ReRESEEYHEHB I ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BHe RIRTT4 Cash and bank balances 24 2,815,916 2,079,349
REREERT PR =B EIH Time deposits with
2 TE BT original maturity of less than
three months when acquired 750,000 392,052
BBEHRRAREBERE Cash and cash equivalents as stated
FiolzBe RBSEEY in the statement of financial position
and the statement of cash flows 24 3,565,916 2,471,401

162 ER M BB 58 @142 R A BR /A A Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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RS ERAR AL

Notes to Financial Statements
—E—-N\F+=-A=+—H 31 December 2018

ARAIREEER
RMBEREEZERER AR ([RAAF])
R_EERENA_T=PEHS
SEMK L BEERRER A o 5P
= & 3 A& Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands ° 2" 2 & i%
ME_ZEEZRF T+ -A-T+THBERES
BHARSHARARER ([EIR])
e

ARAmREMBEAR (REIAEE])
TRREREREEHBREER ([§
EES AP

E=ZAR TESREERAA (R
REBREIES ([RBREZEHS])E
M2 A8 BARAZREERA
AlMRARAB (—RNEBE L
SEMKLZ AR BARFZFINE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 23 June 2005. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main
Board”) since 24 November 2005.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of knitwear products (the “Knitwear Business”).

In the opinion of the directors, Splendid Steed Investments
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI"), is the ultimate holding company of the Company.
Keep Glory Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI, is the
intermediate holding company of the Company.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

KRR E
EMAY/ EMEHR BEEDL TEEBR
A1 EAERZME ERTRE =§:3 M RKEH
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
Top Always Investments Ltd. BVI, limited US$30,002 100% - Investment holding in the BVI
(“Top Always”) liability company and property leasing in
Hong Kong
XRBRERRDA ([kF]) EERAES 30,002% T REBRIHSNERERK
BEREERAT EREREEME
Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd.  PRC, US$135,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
(“Shenzhou Knitting”) wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
EREANHEAR AR mECEEERE 135,000,000 7 REARRERHEE
(Teifstsl) HEREER
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R R RMEE
Notes to Financial Statements
—E—-N\F+=-A=+—H 31 December 2018

1. REIREBEER &) 1.

WEA TR ()

L]

Name

EMA L ERE R
EARRCME

Place of incorporation/
registration and nature
of legal entity

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

BRITRA

Issued
share capital

TEEBR
Rk

Principal activities and
place of operations

Ningbo Shixing Knitwear
Printing Co., Ltd.
(“Shixing Printing”)

Rt A A AR AT
(TEEsta])

Ningbo Yongmian Fashion
Garment Co., Ltd.
(“Yongmian Fashion”)

ERBREEERAT
(TBmEE])

Ningbo Shendie Fashion Co., Ltd.

(“Shendie Fashion”)

FRESBEARLT
(TRsH L))

Shenzhou (Cambodia) Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhou Cambodia”)

B (RER)BRAF
(TRMREZ])

Ningbo Dagian Knitwear Co., Ltd.

(“Dagian Knitting")

BERATHERERAA
(TRTH%])

Ningbo Linlin Knitting Co., Ltd.
(“Linlin Knitting”)

ERMAMSEERAR
(TAhstE])

PRC,
wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise

PEIEBELR

PRC,
foreign equity joint venture

PEIERELER

PRC,
foreign equity joint venture

PR MERELER

Kingdom of Cambodia,
wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise

REEIE IEBELRE

PRC,
wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise

PENEBELR

PRC,
wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise

PECNEBELR

ER ) B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

US$2,100,000

2,100,000t

US$10,000,000

10,000,000 1T

US$5,000,000

5,000,000% ¢

US$30,000,000

30,000,000% 7t

US$78,000,000

78,000,000 7t

US$1,050,000

1,050,000% 1T

KRR B
BEEDL
=§:3 M
Percentage of
equity attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect
- 100%
- 91%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

Printing and sale of
knitwear products in
Mainland China

REBEABEDRRHEE
HEREER

Manufacture and sale of
knitwear products in
Mainland China

RPEAREHERHEE
HEREER

Manufacture and sale of
knitwear products in
Mainland China

RPEAREHERHEE
HEREER

Manufacture and sale of
knitwear products in
Cambodia

RRERHERKE
HEREER

Manufacture and sale of
knitwear products in
Mainland China

RPEAREHERHEE
HEREER

Manufacture and processing
of knitwear products in
Mainland China

B AERERNT
HEREER



B 5 R 2R Y

Notes to Financial Statements
—E—-N\F+=-A=+—H 31 December 2018

1. RAREEER (&)

WEA TR ()

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

KRR B
AMRYL/ EMBER BEEDL TEEBR
A1 EAERZME ERTRE =§:3 M RKEwH
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
Tuton Textile (Ningbo) Co., Ltd. PRC, US$7,060,000 - 100% Manufacture and processing
(“Ningbo Tuton”) wholly-foreign-owned of knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
ERERRGHER A mECIEEARE 7,060,000% 7t R EABERERINT
(IZkEE]) HEREER
Shenzhou Knitting (Anhui) Co., Ltd.  PRC, US$15,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and processing
(“Shenzhou Anhui”) wholly-foreign-owned of knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
Bl (R BRAF RECIEEERE 15,000,000 1T R EABERERNT
(Teil=#]) HEREER
Shenzhou Knitting (Quzhou) PRC, US$8,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and processing
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Quzhou”) wholly-foreign- of knitwear products in
owned enterprise Mainland China
BN (BN BERR R RECIEEERE 8,000,000% 7t R EABERERINT
(TeifaEml) HEREER
Shanghai Maxwin Garments PRC, RMB2,000,000 - 51%  Trading in Mainland China
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Maxwin”) sole proprietorship
company
FEEERHER LA R BELERT AR #2,000,0007T REBEABERTE HEHK
(TEE5H])
Ningbo Dagian Import & Export PRC, RMB10,000,000 - 100% Import and export of
Co., Ltd. (“Dagian Import & limited liability company commodities in
Export”) Mainland China
ERATEHAERACAT mE EREERA AR #10,000,0007C R EAREE A A
(TRF#ELHO])
Shenzhou Trading Co., Ltd. Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Dormant
(“Shenzhou Trading”) limited liability company
BNESERAF BB BRALAHA 100 7T X

(THES])
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B 5 R 2R Y

Notes to Financial Statements
—E—-N\F+=-A=+—H 31 December 2018

1. RAREEER (2)

WEA TR ()

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

KRR B
AMRYL/ EMBER BEEDL TEEBR
A1 EAERZME ERTRE =§:3 M RKEwH
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
Top Always (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$100 - 100% Investment holding and
Investment Limited limited liability company import and export of
(“Top Always HK") commodities in Hong Kong
XE(BB)REBRDA BB BRALAHA 1007t REBREER &L OB
(kREE])
Ningbo Hengzhi Clothing Detection ~ PRC, RMB8,000,000 - 100%  Quality check of garments in
Co., Ltd. ("Hengzhi") limited liability company Mainland China
ERBERERUFRLA mE EREERA AR #8,000,0007T R EAREETRKE 2
([B%&])
Shenzhou Japan Co., Ltd. Japan, JPY5,000,000 - 100%  Trading in Japan
(“Shenzhou Japan’) limited liability company
BB AKA g BA BERALAH 5,000,0008 [E] REAETESEH
(TefRA])
Ningbo Maxwin Fashion Co., Ltd. PRC, RMB80,000,000 - 51%  Retail in Mainland China
(“Ningbo Maxwin”) limited liability company
ERBERGAER A mE EREERA AR #80,000,0007T REBEABEEITTEEHK
(IZR5H])
Anging Shenzhou Import & PRC, RMB5,000,000 - 100% Import and export of
Export Co., Ltd. limited liability company commodities in Mainland
(“Shenzhou Anging”) China
ZERMELEOFRAF HE EREERA AR #5,000,0007T R EAREEHAE S
(TeilzEl)
Shanghai Maxwin Industry PRC, RMB10,000,000 - 100% Property management in
Co., Ltd. (“Maxwin Industry”) limited liability company Mainland China
HESHEXERAR HE EREERA AR #10,000,0007C RHREAEETNEERER
(IEREZE])
Superior Enterprises BVI, US$10,000 100% - Investment holding in the BVI
Investments Limited limited liability company
(“Superior Investments”)
EHOCEREFRAR REBRAHE EREALA 10,000% T REBRIHSNERERK
([28%RE])
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Notes to Financial Statements
—E—-N\F+=-A=+—H 31 December 2018

1. RAREEER (&)

WEA TR ()

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

KRR B
AMRYL/ MG HR BEEDL TEEBR
A1 EAERZME ERTRE =§:3 M RKEwH
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and

Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations

Maxwin (BVI) Limited BVI, US$10,000 51% - Investment holding in the BVI
(“Maxwin BVI") limited liability company

BEB.VL)ERRAA RBRAHE EREALA 10,000% T REBRIHSNERERK
(IE@BvI)

Maxwin (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, HK$10,000 - 51% Investment holding in
(“Maxwin HK”) limited liability company Hong Kong

SE(ER)ERAA BB BRAEAHA 10,000 7t REBREREZR
(I5EAEE]

Maxwin (China) Limited PRC, US$50,000,000 - 51%  Trading in Mainland China
(“Maxwin China”) wholly-foreign-

owned enterprise

SE(TE)ERAF RECIEBEME 50,000,000 7 RPBAEETESEH
([SERE])

Huayao Textile Limited PRC, US$60,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
(*Huayao”) wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in

enterprise Mainland China

ERGBERDA RECIEEEARE 60,000,000% 7t RPEAREHERHEE
([#2]) HEREER

Buddies (Macao Commercial Macao, limited MOP100,000 - 100%  Trading in Macao
Offshore) Limited liability company
(“Buddies Macao”)

BEE (RMIBEFEERE) RFERAEAH 100,000%) WEFIETTE 5%
ERAA ([BEEERM])

Dagjian Textile (Cambodia) Kingdom of Cambodia, US$40,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
(“Dagian Cambodia”) enterprise Cambodia

AFo8 (REFE)BERAF RFRTE - IFBEERE  40,000,000F T RRERHERKE
([RFREHE]) HEREER
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Notes to Financial Statements
—E—-N\F+=-A=+—H 31 December 2018

1. RAREEER (2)

WEA TR ()

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

KRR B
AMRYL/ EMBER BEEDL TEEBR
A1 EAERZME ERTRE =§:3 M RKEwH
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
Buddies Group Limited BVI, Us$1 - 100% Investment holding in the BVI
(“Buddies Group”) limited liability company
BEEEEERRA RBRAEE EREALA e REBRIHSETRERK
(BFE5HE])
Dagian Textile (Anhui) Co., Ltd. PRC, US$8,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
(“Dagian Anhui”) wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
ATo8 (B BRAF mECIEEERE 8,000,000% 7t REEABEHERHEE
(TRF=#]) HEREER
Gain Lucky Co., Ltd. BVI, USs$1 100% - Investment holding in the BVI
(“Gain Lucky”) limited liability company
ERERAR ([EF]) RERAHE EREALA e REBRIHSETRERR
Gain Lucky (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. Vietnam, US$50,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
(“Gain Lucky Vietnam”) limited liability company knitwear products in
Vietnam
Gain Lucky (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. WE - BREEAA 50,000,000% 7T R RS R E
([EFHE]) FRE & m
Worldon (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. Vietnam, US$36,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and processing
(“Worldon Vietnam”) limited liability company of knitwear products in
Vietnam
Worldon (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. HE - BREEAT 36,000,000% 7T REREERMT
(Tt@ueEl) HEREER
Anhui Maxwin Fashion Co., Ltd. PRC, RMB5,000,000 - 51% Retail in Mainland China
(“Anhui Maxwin”) limited liability company
ZHERRHERDA HE - HBREAAF AR #5,000,0007T REBEABEEITTEEHK
(I=2B5H])
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Notes to Financial Statements
—E—-N\F+=-A=+—H 31 December 2018

1. RARAIREEEH &) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
MEARER (£) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
KRR B
AMRYL/ EMBER BEEDL TEEBR
A1 EAERZME ERTRE =§:3 M RKEwH
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
Ningbo Ruiding New Materials PRC, RMB44,932,428 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Ruiding”) limited liability company knitwear products in
Mainland China
TR S HERAT HE EREERA AR #44,932,4287C REARRERHEE
(IZkR&]) HEREER
Ningbo A&C Technology PRC, RMB28,653,010 - 100% Property management in
Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo A&C") limited liability company Mainland China
EREXWANRERRA HE EREERA AR #28,653,0107C RRE RS NEERER
(TEExMal)
Vogue Apparel Limited Malaysia, US$10,000 - 100% Pre-operating
(“Vogue Apparel”) limited liability company
B el AR & R 2 A EREL FREERF 10,000% T EEA
(B PR E61)
Fly Safety Limited BVI, US$10,000 - 100%  Aircraft leasing in Hong Kong
(“Fly Safety”) limited liability company
ZERTEBRAF EERAES EREEAR 10,000% T REBETREBEER
(I=2/7])
Rong Win Garment Co., Ltd. Kingdom of Cambodia, US$8,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(“Rong Win") wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Cambodia
Rong Win Garment Co., Ltd. RERTE IEBELE 8,000,000% 7t RREFEER
(1%2]) HEHBREER
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Notes to Financial Statements

—E-N%F+-F=+—H 31 December 2018

2.1 RRE%E 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

170

ZEMBHRRDBEBEELEFAMAE
(IEAEFEAg) B cBEMB
BEEA ([FEWBHREER ] BB
ERETRAMBHREER FEGtE
Al ([EAEGER]) k2E) FEAQ
REFRAREFBEQ TGP KERE
MRE o FITS ¥R IR IE L AN B BIA AR
MR AREHEREYAABEZ
EREERAAENERII -KRIESRE
A8 BRIMSMHREAARE (TA
R&]) 27 BEBEDEZENERAR

|
HEREREATA-

mEEE
BREMBRREEARARENBRR]
(B AEF)EE_T-—N\F+=
A=+—REFEZHBHRER-HEQ
RITTHARGEENMEEFN TS
(BEABEEER) EXAEEH2EE
BYEREEG 2 A # 0 5A S E sk
ZHEN BB ERAEHKREHRY
N EZELOFHRMEE N (B F A%
EESREAHRMEEEBRRE N 2R
EREF) RS BNRBAME BT A
MANREERHEERELONREHR
AREHRESELRFIMER - A A E
ERTHERSHEEEHREHRNEN
KEER—HEEEERER B

() BEREHREMERFAEANA
Bk

b) HMEHLHMEENET: &

) AKHZEERNEERZE-

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(*HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except for financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing

whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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Notes to Financial Statements

—E-N%F+-F=+—H 31 December 2018

21 REE%E (&) 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

mERE(F)
MEARIMMB®mREANER —BES:
B - WiRE A AT ERNRE BHER
BoWBARMERDAANEBIEE
HIEEERAAR UBEBESHES
ZERGIERIEEBRIE-

B35 R E b 2 EMGE S AR S5 8
BRAEESA ARG ARIEEH
WS S BB AR
2 (A S B B A FI S 5 A A Y
FEEmMANAFMEERAME B
WA B RIS R R A R
o

B EERBERBER EXHMB QB M
M =BT RS B —ERA L
BEH AAKESENFEEEIES
KREBER —FXWBEBRARZMEEER
HEEH (XEBREEHE)ZEAR
HAFR e

WMAREBREH —RMBAR ZEH
ERIEBEERNZNBRARIZEE
(BIEEE) RAE - ()T IEE s
W REE RN RN ReHR
BEE MERIITKREZARE:
(VTR EMIRE 2 A ABER(INERRE
AR E UL E £ 2 B E S - AT
Hiv 2 EKm R NERZ RN EE RN
- SREAEEEELEREEEN
BERTHEREESHHEABZK
RBEN (RAEBEE) -

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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22 S BREBRKE

AEBRAFE 2 M B HRERERERAA

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs

THETA] MR ERT BB M ISR E ZER -

BERBREENE2R KUROBERTHZ
CHIEN B MR E
EERBREENESR [EAE R FH#E
EHIEN EAIE95%
SHTAHE
BEBREER
B4 RE A
BERBREENESR SHIA
BERBREENEISH BEFE A
BERBREENEISHZ BB BHREEAE
CHIEN 165 5P &AM
B EE
BEGERBAON BIAR HEREYE
B8 (BRMBRE PEZE RFEITICE
REZEE) —RBERT
ZE-mER-F-NEEY HEANBREEL
ZEEH# EIRRBERG

ERIE285E 2 &
&l

for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

ER M BB 58 @142 R A BR /A A Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28
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22 BT HEEHRIEE »#) 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

BREBYBRELEMNER BN &
BB RELNEAR 2 EBIR BEE
SPERIFEA0R ZAERT AA R = F —F
BEF - NFARZ FRUEN BEF
EARBIA R B M AR AR #AT
REE BB HRELENZHEERY
AN

(a) EHYBRE LALLM TA
R=T—\F—A— ARz &R
2 E BB E S B AR
FORLWT A BERHE E
KSBIABEN=ANE: HH
REHE HERH @ -

RIBAEEFG ZERERLR =
E-N\E—A—BOFERAEL
M mEERFOHRE  WEEKX
RFAFE A HRENYEE
JIRREEREE BT ERSE

Except for Amendments to HKFRS 2, Amendments to HKFRS
4, Amendments to HKAS 40 and Annual Improvements 2014-

2016 Cycle, which are not relevant to the preparation of the

Group’s financial statements, the nature and the impact of the

new and revised HKFRSs are described below:

(a)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
bringing together all three aspects of the accounting for
financial instruments: classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting.

Based on the assessment by the Group, there was no
significant cumulative effect of the initial application
of HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018 in accordance with
the transition requirement. Therefore, the comparative
information was not restated and continues to be

39 TE 2 reported under HKAS 39.
TERE Classification and measurement

ATEMINRAT BT RS
ERFORHMBRANTE B
REAMBREENFORERE
EBB(BHEEEBE])BRRE
BEtELFEIREELFERE

KA ENPE-

The following information sets out the impacts of
adopting HKFRS 9 on the statement of financial position,
including the effect of replacing HKAS 39’s incurred credit
loss calculations with HKFRS 9’s expected credit losses
(“ECLS").

Annual Report 2018 £

173



R R RMEE
Notes to Financial Statements
—E—-N\F+=-A=+—H 31 December 2018

22 BT HEEHRIEE »#)

i

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(@ (&) (a)

—T—-N\FE—F—8 &g

R FIRBBIHNEMEREES

SRS LRI FREBE T 2R

|

(continued)

A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under
HKAS 39 and the balances reported under HKFRS 9 as
at 1 January 2018 is as follows:

174

HEeR 2 R T :
BBEERE0NHE BRMBREERESRTE
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
measurement measurement
=K 8 ENTE RUGEEE £ ] =K
Re-
Category Amount classification ECL Amount Category
(23 ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETR
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SRMEE Financial assets
R ERE Available-for-sale A E THEA
investments AFS' 2,976,900 (2,976,900) - - N/A
2R AMAEFER To: Financial assets at fair
EE PN E value through profit
LEBEE or loss i (2,976,900) - -
BANERE Financial assets at fair
AEEA value through profit @A FVPL?
BalemiE or loss N/A - 2,976,900 - 2,976,900 FVPL?
P AEHERE  From: Avallable-for-sale
investments (i) 2,976,900 - -
EREZREE Trade and bills receivables L8RS 2,814,779 - - 2,814,779 AC*
FABMETK Financial assets included
HivEKFEZ in prepayments and
CREE other receivables L&R 198,767 - - 198,767 AC
JELEEEE A L7 Amounts due from
related parties L&R 606 - - 606 AC
BEHERER Pledged deposits L&R 500,000 - - 500,000 AC
EREER Structured deposits L&R 1,050,000 - - 1,050,000 AC
MieHHHBR Bank deposits with an
=Rz initial term of
RITER over three months L&R 605,518 - - 605,518 AC
RITRATHES  Long-term time deposits
at banks L&R 150,000 - - 150,000 AC
HeRBE25EY  Cashand cash equivalents L&R 2,471,401 - - 2,471,401 AC
BEE Total assets 10,767,971 - - 10,767,971

ER ) B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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DISCLOSURES (continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

(a) (#& (a) (continued)
EREERS0RHE ERUBREENFRTE
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
measurement measurement
gl ¢ H ENNE RAGEFE k- Al
Re-
Category Amount classification ECL Amount Category
ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
tREE Financial liabilities
R Trade payables AC 873,106 - - 873,106 AC
SFAEMEMZIER Financial liabilities included
JEFt R in other payables and
SRER acoruals AC 317,907 - - 317,907 AC
FERITREE Interest-bearing bank
borrowings AC 2,130,409 - - 2,130,409 AC
BweE Total liabilities 3,321,422 - - 3,321,422
1 AFS - Al ER & 1 AFS: Available-for-sale investments
2 FVPL : AR EFE B E#E 2 FVPL: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
ANBHRZERMEE
8 L&R : B & fE U 5118 8 L&R: Loans and receivables
4 AC REENATHECERE 4 AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised cost
EXEmBE
Mo - Note:

() AEEEEELENSERAHLE
EZeREMDBRLRANERT
BEHEPABRZEREE
AR%ZEEREMNE B TR
SREAFORP I RBBE LR
RS EOIH -

(i) The Group has classified its financial products previously

classified as available-for-sale investments as financial
assets measured at fair value through profit or loss as
these financial products did not pass the contractual cash

flow characteristics test in HKFRS 9.
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22 BT HEEHRIEE »#)

(a)

ER ) B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

e
BREVBHRELENFERGELE
AHERIEIM R EEBER R
ABRA[EHMEEBR] ([E
HEREER]RR - AHEEEE
BEAZREETEESREEN
R EERR  FELEA T
aﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂ%%)@ﬂé@ﬁ%;‘%@ﬂﬁ
AIFERMEELEBBREFER
B -AKERFHEMEEER
BEARARNEERAFENE
BEE-

AEBEEETHADN  ZEM
BEaEL®HBEN (BIEAE R
=) UREFEVBEREELSE
ORMMEMTEEREENTAY
EEEE - FKRTEMBREER
FORVBEUAEENTREEM
ERKEATE MEEMEES
BREERIENEL R
BRZF-N\F—RB—BA¥Z
THREHRE-

YRERRESZAZEHE
BEERATBEREEREORE
RZE-—NF—A—HBZREHK
REB &I &

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Impairment

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39
with the “expected credit loss” (“ECL”) model. The ECL
model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises
ECLs earlier than under the “incurred loss” accounting
model in HKAS 39. The Group applies the new ECL
model to all financial assets measured at amortised cost.

The Group performed a detailed analysis which considers
all reasonable and supportable information, including
forward-looking elements, for estimation of ECL on its
financial assets in accordance with the requirements
of HKFRS 9. The adoption of HKFRS 9 has had no
significant impact on the impairment of the financial
assets of the Group. No additional credit loss allowance
has been recognised against accumulated profits as the

amounts involved were insignificant as at 1 January 2018.

Impact on reserves and retained profits
The transition to HKFRS 9 has had no impact on reserves
and retained profits as at 1 January 2018.
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22 BT HEEHRIEE »#) 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

BAMBRELERE16H R HEE
AIABRREBGTEAENRE
LK BRGTEF 18 Na
KiER=E B (BRADEHISMER
SMEERREFPERELXZME
Yeak - BB BB E ERF 15551
KEEFPAERZWAANRTEL —
EFESEN - RBEBBHMBHRE
HRHIZE1557 iR RE R E B TR
Higt & PR E YRS A %
ERXBRER 2R ESBETE
R BBV BHRE L E1RANR
ARt 8 R ERR S R E R
BACH TR - ZERITR S| AEIZ W
THERTEERERT BRI
HAE ERETET TRBME
ZHEAHEENARBREGHNE
BAREBHE RAEFTOER B
R BN ERKRMES - AR
FERMEBMBRELERF155 A
SEHORMBHRRMF242EER
PR R B AT UK -

RSB LAE R 3B B e AR IR
BBV BEREERF155R - RE U
TR ZRERERR A ERB
HHMARNREERNE B H
R EH) - AEBEZRZIRA
HHEAR T N\F—H—H
R R FEAHI & 4D

(b)

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11
Construction Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations and it applies, with limited exceptions,
to all revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services
to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The disclosures are included
in note 5 to the financial statements. As a result of the
application of HKFRS 15, the Group has changed the
accounting policy with respect to revenue recognition in
note 2.4 to the financial statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this method,
the standard can be applied either to all contracts at the
date of initial application or only to contracts that are not
completed at this date. The Group has elected to apply
the standard to contracts that are not completed as at 1
January 2018.
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FHHREEHREE &)

(b)

AREFE

RNE BV REERIE 1657 A] -
AEEERAKATPZEREP
RE-REFEWHERELENES
B ZREADBEREHERE

Bt - RABE B S RELERIFE15
Sk AEER=-Z—N\F—A—
HOBHREFPREKEPERA
R 26,225,000t EF HEE =
T-NF—A—HHNEHEE-

RZE—NE+=ZA=+—8"
BIEB B BHREF159 814
MEEEREREFRE AR
24,161,000 D EEE N BE -

Bk ESCPTtE SN - SRINF B T

LEBFEISRE AN EB 2550
MR ETMERFE-

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

[ £ W42 % 4 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

(continued)

Consideration received from customers in advance
Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group recognised
consideration received from customers in advances from
customers. Under HKFRS 15, the amount is classified as
contract liabilities.

Therefore, upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
reclassified RMB26,225,000 from advances from
customers to contract liabilities as at 1 January 2018 in
relation to the consideration received from customers in
advance as at 1 January 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, under HKFRS 15,
RMB24,161,000 was classified as contract liabilities in
relation to the consideration received from customers in
advance for the sale of products.

Except for those described above, the adoption of
HKFRS 15 does not have any material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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22 BT HEEHRIEE »#) 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c)

2R (BRMEHRERERE
g) —REBER2RAEEIUNE
YR X TR B R R IFE
HEEXREBENBRT  ERAE
Bt ERIFE215%E - I EE
X5 AHRMHES - ZRBES
IEERVTEREEEE X
A (SE ) P A O K
K X7 AHAERTSERREX
MR BBEMREMELENIE
BTUHEE (MBENRR)LFEEE
HERE (MEZERA) 2B - i#
REMBEERNFESZERANTRL
B BRBMRESERNRER
SN ERBEERSHEH -
s BB R BN R e B A R
EREATE REARASELE
EHEHEENFERAGBIS
il 72 T & PR A B 2% i) & R AR B2
AR E R E S — B

(c)

HK(FRIC)-Int 22 provides guidance on how to determine
the date of the transaction when applying HKAS 21 to
the situation where an entity receives or pays advance
consideration in a foreign currency and recognises a non-
monetary asset or liability. The interpretation clarifies that
the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it) is the date
on which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary
asset (such as a prepayment) or non-monetary liability
(such as deferred income) arising from the payment or
receipt of the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of recognising the
related item, the entity must determine the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. The interpretation has had no impact
on the Group’s financial statements as the Group’s
accounting policy for the determination of the exchange
rate applied for initial recognition of non-monetary assets
or non-monetary liabilities is consistent with the guidance
provided in the interpretation.
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23 EEMEEAERNNE BT 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HZEE L HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

REBWEA ST BHREPER TS The Group has not applied the following new and revised

EEME MR EBR I REIERT BB HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

B Fs R 42 R o these financial statements.

ERUBREEN  EFHTE? Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

XA HES

ERMBREEL EREAFMREFAE Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
EL L N Compensation'

ERUBREEN AREFHEEBELFRE Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between
F10F N ERES EREMEEHER HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
ERFER 2B FE Venture*

A(ZB——F)

AR BREEL  HE HKFRS 16 Leases'
£16%

ERUBREEN  RRAAP HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
F17%R

EREHENER EANTE Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material?

LRAEBEGTEL HKAS 8
XA HES

ERSHENEIR FILT FRAEE Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
ZIERTR Settlement'

ERGHERFENRE REFLGREELEZ Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
ZIERTR RAER Joint Ventures'

55 (BRUBRE FEHEENTETH HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'
REZEE) -

ABE23

—EF-fFEF HEBITSHE AR FE3 Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11
ZE—+FEH % BBUMKRERES 2015-2017 Cycle HKAS 12 and HKAS 23"

FRA#E 115 BB &L

F1RREBEE &L
E23% 2B

! RZZE-hF-HA—-—HBszE&RAEZ ! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
FEHEER

2 RZZE_ZTF-HA—Hsz&RABEZ 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
FEHBEER

8 RZZE_—F—-HA—Hsz&RABEZ 8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
FEHBEER

¢ M) AR T o AR 2 B HR - ME AT R 4 4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption
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2.3 CHEMEBEEAEMNEBEI 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

S X8| (&)

A=A

FRAZERREARAEEZBEMB
HEEA ZE—SERFBULOT
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EEUBBRELENFICERRELES
SAEAFATREE - FE (BERTH
BERBEZES) REREFIRETL
HEZBERAHE BE(ENREZE
) REFIGRILLEHE-FR]
kEE(EREZES) —REFR27
I LEREEZEEARLZZA
B BRI ER HE 2 EE
BHEZRA YERABARKEZ H
HERRBEEMBBE RENEBREET
EEAMBAHEERH L —EEEEE
HEMEHHEE - RNHEHEMIGBH &
HABERNEERAINRERH
BE(AEERE) RMAKREREERE
REzEE(AMEREEE) - BRIFE
REEENEBBGTEFIONAK
BMEZERKBEBAREGRA 2 —
BYE BMEEREER TAERE
BEERBRRAR R ITE REMBE
BERGAE-HEABRERENRREE
B EF B M0 & A 5 R E A TR
LA BAREADHEAEEREZN
ERAXhERBEEZIERS &AM
ANBARETEHRERENTEHE
BE PINEREEHETARANEE
AREMEFRIAZ —HIEHI L REEM
SIRZEREEE - AAANEEREHN
AENEABCCHERRA R ERESE
EZRAE BRMBREENFI6HEA
BUSRBEA SR EFI7THRALEAN
StRES A -HBEABEEERES
BERTERIF17TRAR & BB A AT
EHEETOE UKz OoRKEHRE
LEEHRE -BEWBREEAF165
ERFABARHBAELBREL G E
QISR ECE S WE - AHAT
BEREAEZEERERLESCEN LT
EER IR

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below:

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases - Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-
term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the
lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use
asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant
and equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The
lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on
the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees
will be required to separately recognise the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as
change in the lease term and change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS
17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires
lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than
under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard
using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach.
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2.3 CHEMEBEEAEMNEBEI 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
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A=A
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RN B B R EER F165 A RIER
i-%m%%mmiuw%ﬁ YEEININ
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m&%’M&TQEWmﬁﬁ% %%'
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EFSHENBI7TRMENAEENS
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EERENXFREFBHENKOEEAE
AEHERG-FAEEERLREES
EeEtE  WIREEVIHER A8
TE B B ik 2% T RR B 7 E AR R 0 (2 1]
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The
Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS
16 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1
January 2019 and will not restate the comparatives. In addition,
the Group plans to apply the new requirements to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
measure the lease liability at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The right-of-
use asset will be measured at the amount of the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the lease recognised in the statement
of financial position immediately before the date of initial
application. The Group plans to use the exemptions allowed
by the standard on lease contracts whose lease terms end
within 12 months as of the date of initial application. During
2018, the Group has performed a detailed assessment on the
impact of adoption of HKFRS 16. The Group has estimated
that right-of-use assets of RMB220,040,277 and lease liabilities
of RMB220,040,277 will be recognised at 1 January 2019.

HK(FRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes
(current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to
as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not
apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii)
the assumptions an entity makes about the examination
of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (i) how an entity
determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how
an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
The interpretation is to be applied retrospectively, either fully
retrospectively without the use of hindsight or retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment to
the opening equity at the date of initial application, without
the restatement of comparative information. The Group
expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 January 2019. The
interpretation is not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

[ £ W42 % 4 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



R R RMEE
Notes to Financial Statements
—ZT—N\F+-_A=+—H 31 December 2018

24 FESTHERE 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

REBERRAZRE
RERBR/AKRERETHRERYES
(=R DR20% A ZRE) - WA #5
HHETEEAFENZER -EA¥Y
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H R i

AEERBERARZRERBETG
- RASEEGEEFEREMARAE
BENEE BRI KSR TR A8
FEZEEGBREEREELFHEN
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AEBEEEBERRWBREALEM
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NAEDTHERR AEEENEREE
SEPHRTEREEERTAES (W0
HAR) AKRBEEEBZERNARNZIRS
PrEL 2 RERBa I RANEEREZ
REIZHEHH EEFBRERAMEE
BELBREREZRERERIIER® -
WL AR ELZAEFALEER

BEATZRA -

POLICIES

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of the associate is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
an associate is included as part of the Group’s investment in
an associate.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investment in an associate (continued)

If investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant
influence over the associate or joint control over the joint
venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit
or loss.

When investment in an associate is classified as held for sale,
it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

ER M BB 58 @142 R A BR /A A Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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POLICIES (continuea)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investments in financial products at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

F—H — ERNEREEXEERERE Level 1 -  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
M52 ME (REAE) markets for identical assets or liabilities

FoH - ERHERM ERERZ Level 2 -  based on valuation techniques for which the
HAnEEMEBERZ lowest level input that is significant to the
REEBERHABEEER fair value measurement is observable, either
S EEBRME directly or indirectly

E=H — ERHEREN - EMERZ Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the

HRAREFEMEBEAZ
RAKE s A BUR T T Al B

.
EN

R B HREANREEEEERRNE
ERBEMS AEERSHEHREZ
LHERBANEFENS BERNRER
B ABEHRFEDE UBEELR
BEERzHARE HBRERE-

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)

(i

(i)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(i

[ £ W42 % 4 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;
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POLICIES (continuea)
BEAL (&) Related parties (continued)
(o) (#&) (b)  (continued)

(i) ERX@AM#EHAALTZEH K (vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
AL RES person identified in (a);

(i) R@OFMFBNATEHERS (vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
ERAFENIBZER (X over the entity or is a member of the key
ZERNOAR)ETEEE management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
EKE: & of the entity); and

(vii) MAEEKAEEGRARE (viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
HIZEBAERBNZE part, provides key management personnel services
BE ol A AR X B B4 R (E AT A to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

ME BRERIRBEUARFTE Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

BRIEETRIN W BEREEIR Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
AR 2T E MERDBEE B AR - progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
ME - -WEREZHBEREE cKNEABIEHE any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
BEREMELESZERN R EHE and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
MERECEERIGRAE - attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition

and location for its intended use.

ME BB REBIRAEEERTEASK Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
BREEIH —BREEEBBALR equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
ERmEANBR -HMETEERLERN  —I8 and maintenance, is normally charged to the consolidated
FEREsTHBEER ERER statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
BEZEEHE - MOE - BEEEKEBEZ In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
BERLIBEHER AEERRZSE expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
HoRESERAFHREEEREAEE amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
WE- of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at

intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
useful lives of property, plant and equipment used for this
purpose are as follows:

et A RS FerEE

Estimated Residual

Al Category useful life value
BgF Buildings 20 - 25 years F 0% — 10%
5B N i 22 Plants and machinery 10 years 0% - 10%
BEHITA Vehicles 5 -7 years F 0% - 10%
BREEERE Furniture and fixtures 5 years & 0% — 10%

E-HEYE BERRBEETHNHES
MOBEAE TR BER - BIZIEERK
AEABRIBERMD MEBLBIKE
BEtRTE KR EE A BFEHRIF
EZ IR BMBERERR R #E S
TEH TR -

M BE RS EE R RIS MR ER
(BB EH M H B R B 4
R E T B A A R R L
BR-RAEKLBR FEEGAR
HRERZ B R ERIAR A
BEUEFEEERAERRENY 28
HE-

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery, vehicles, furniture and fixtures under construction
or pending installation, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be finite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives of intangible
assets are as follows:

HEA st Al A EH Category Estimated useful life
EgES 4ZE104F Software 4 - 10 years
FAKHE 20%F Water use right 20 years
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POLICIES (continuea)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Prepaid land lease payments

All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no individual
land ownership rights exist. The Group acquires the right to
use certain land and the considerations paid for such right are
recorded as prepaid land lease payments, which are amortised
over the lease terms of 30 to 50 years using the straight-line
method.

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade and bills receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade and bills receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable
from 1 January 2018)” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both
of the following conditions are met:

o The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

° The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair
value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the
near term. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to
be classified at amortised cost, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or
loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.

BEARBFERZET ARG SRME Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
EERAASERBBHRARIIE MAR the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
BEHFERERRPER in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under

—HAE )ﬂ ZEBETTEREINET 2 HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)
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All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. These net fair
value changes do not include any dividends or interest earned
on these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable
before 1 January 2018)” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The
loss arising from impairment is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in
other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.
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POLICIES (continuea)

REFHMWERMEE(ZFE—N\E—A Investments and other financial assets (policies under
—HRBEAZERAESTTEREET 2 HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)
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Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in other income, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in other gains
or losses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the
available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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POLICIES (continuea)

REREMESREE(ZZE—N\F—H Investments and other financial assets (policies under
—BAIEAZEBETEREINET 2 HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)
BE) (&)

HEE (&) Subsequent measurement (continued)

ARHEHBE (&) Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)
HESFH>BEEHEEERUIINZS For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
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sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity
is reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies under

HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial

—MBrk—HEEeREEL —H) asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
ETHBERGE LR (BB ARE derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
B4R a MR ZRNBR) ¢ statement of financial position) when:
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o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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POLICIES (continuea)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)
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FEHEEEE MERRER - olF ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
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which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
and bills receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.
Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal

to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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POLICIES (continuea)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continuea)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss — is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, financial

liabilities included in other payables and accruals and interest-
bearing bank borrowings.
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POLICIES (continuea)
Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the
Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods
to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group a
significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest

BREEBFEISHR A ITHEREEE S method. For a contract where the period between the payment
FEORGEBERIEREABREKD 2F by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods
BENFE- or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not

adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Sale of knitwear products

Revenue from the sale of knitwear products is recognised at
the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery or pick-up of the knitwear
products.

Other income
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) rental income is recognised on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms;
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POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)

(continued)

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received a
consideration (or an amount of consideration that is due) from
the customer. If a customer pays the consideration before
the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a
contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the

contract.
EEEF Employee benefits
BkE a2 Pension schemes
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The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes (continued)

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own presentation currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currency of the Company is the Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$"). The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries
located outside Mainland China are currencies other than RMB.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of the Company and certain overseas
subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year
are translated into RMB at the average exchange rates for the
year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material

BEEsEEHGERIMEAENER adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
R BBRER- within the next financial year, are described below.
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BEEgE4E (2)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
2T RERE (&) Estimation uncertainty (continued)
ERENREEANEEEREE Provision for expected credit losses on trade and bills
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receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
and bills receivables. The provision matrix is initially based
on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group
will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For instance,
if forecast economic conditions are expected to deteriorate
over the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group’s trade and bills receivables is
disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

Inventory excess and obsolescence provisions
Management of the Group reviews ageing analysis at the end
of the reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items identified that are not suitable
for use in current production. Management estimates the net
realisable value for such raw materials, work in progress and
finished goods based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and consequently related depreciation charges. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response to
the industry cycles. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write off or write down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. No deferred tax assets were
recognised for tax losses at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil). The
amount of accumulated tax losses at 31 December 2018 was
approximately RMB414,056,000 (2017: RMB392,180,000),
which will expire in one to five years for offsetting against
future taxable profits. Further details are given in note 29 to the
financial statements.
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4, REFEHER 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
BAEER AKBEREERES BT For management purposes, the Group is organised into
AEKE T HPRE—EA2HELED business units based on their products and there is one
HoREREEHEREER -EERE reportable operating segment: the manufacture and sale
NEREBELTA  BEMEBLEE of knitwear products. Management monitors the operating
B AEATERDE R ERIE - results of its business units as a whole for the purpose of

making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment.
ithEE & Geographical information
(a) SIEBEFYPA (a) Revenue from external customers
—E-NE —T—+F
2018 2017
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
o N 23 Mainland China 6,312,412 4,844,588
[Eg==] European Union 3,795,982 4,031,077
e United States of America 3,252,725 2,337,903
A7 Japan 3,236,002 3,129,042
H A [ 13 Other regions 4,353,084 3,742,637
20,950,205 18,085,247
g N E R TS iR EE G R AN Hb B The revenue information above is based on the delivery
gl o destinations of the products.
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4. REDIWER (&) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
WEER (£Z) Geographical information (continued)
(b) HREEE (b) Non-current assets
—E-N\EF —E L F
2018 2017
ARET T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B K fE Mainland China 5,087,674 5,005,773
o] Vietnam 3,883,814 3,066,377
RIS Cambodia 261,167 138,291
Hh[& 15 Other regions 152,911 5,802
9,385,566 8,216,243
FHiEREBEEER IR EEMN The non-current asset information above is based on the
EwE oy TABRREEEFER K locations of the assets and excludes pledged deposits,
HIE BRI R R —RHEE QR long-term time deposits at banks, investment in an
ZERENMBRLERIEEE - associate and deferred tax assets.
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4. RETWER (&) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
FEEFZ2ESR Information about major customers
RKEATEERE ZWAS BMLAEE Revenue from major customers which individually accounts for
W A10%3k BA £ 10% or more of the Group’s revenue is as follows:
—E-N\F T+
2018 2017
AR¥ T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
=P Customer A 6,258,783 5,256,058
BE L Customer B 3,989,895 3,609,402
®FPA Customer C 3,869,983 3,697,096
=PT Customer D 2,118,771 1,722,345
5. WA -Hw AR K= 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
WADHTIAT An analysis of revenue is as follows:
—E-N\EF —E—tF
2018 2017
AR¥ T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BFEEHBA Revenue from contracts with customers
HEMm—MNEERHEE  Sale of goods - at a point in time 20,950,205 18,085,247
EEESHWA Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) TRINTHRBEPRUFTAEGHEE (i) The following table shows the amounts of revenue
RARTRE B ERO A S8 recognised in the current reporting period that were

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

—E-N\F
2018
ARET
RMB’000
REE I A Revenue recognised that was included in
BHBED contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:
BRI A
HEME M Sales of goods 22,415
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5. WA -HWARKE &) 5.

BEFAHWA (£)
(i) BHEMF

REBZRBOETEHBREE
BES IR ER - mBE R
B XA EF30E180H N R e

(continued)

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(ii) Performance obligations

The Group’s performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery or pick-up of the knitwear products and payment
is generally due within 30 to 180 days from delivery.

—E-N\F T+
2018 2017
AR®B T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
Hug A Other income
BT B Government grants 335,572 341,436
SRITFBIA Bank interest income 209,195 180,961
REZFXERZ Other interest income from
E R B A entrusted loans 15,253 5,590
REEASEFER Other interest income from FVPL/
B ABwm available-for-sale investments
AHEEREY
H i A B A 55,500 24,885
KEBEMEREEZ Other interest income from
HAth F1) B U other financial assets 14,763 -
HaHBA Rental income 17,378 18,682
647,661 571,554
g Gains
PE 5 e 2 5 ER Exchange gains, net 61,578 -
709,239 571,554
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6. FRBiATRIHE 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
REBZBRBATFEDIR 7 (FTA) The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
—E-N\EF —E—tF
2018 2017
BT 5 AR T ARET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
EHEFEKA Cost of inventories sold 14,323,652 12,388,106
Y RE REEBEBITE Depreciation of items of property,
plant and equipment 14 838,683 751,125
TEA £ 3 FH & FRIE 8 Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments 15 30,870 24,447
B EEHH Amortisation of intangible assets 16 11,678 8,119
BIEKLEHERN 2 Minimum lease payments under
&I € A operating leases 171,228 150,364
EEHAN BN & Auditor’s remuneration 3,120 2,983
EEBRNAXZ Employee benefit expense (including
(BIEEER directors’ and chief executive’s
TR AEME remuneration (note 8)):
(HfzE8) ) :
IBEkF® Wages and salaries 4,842,575 4,385,206
RRET IR K Pension scheme contributions 435,922 382,511
HAtv 18 A Other benefits 171,699 148,774
5,450,196 4,916,491
MEH &= REF R Foreign exchange differences, net* (61,578) 98,041
WRFEZER B FE Write-down of inventories to
net realisable value 79,816 26,659
HRITH BUWA Bank interest income (209,195) (180,961)
RKEZFXERZ Other interest income from
H Ath TS A entrusted loans (15,253) (5,590)
RERAFEFAEZ, Other interest income from FVPL/
AfHERE Y available-for-sale investments
H b F) 2 YA (55,500) (24,885)
REEMEMEEZ Other interest income from
H b F) 2 YA other financial assets (14,763) -
HEWE - -HEX Loss on disposal of items of
HEBEE 2 BB property, plant and equipment 8,880 26,350
* Hze-_Z2—N\F+-_A=+—8EK= * The net foreign exchange differences for the years ended 31

T Lt AST-ALFEZE
HERFER B AR BHRL
[E A U ) R (AR ) e
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7. BERAEK 7. FINANCE COSTS

BEKAR DT An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
—E-N\EF —E—EF
2018 2017
AR TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ES 2 E Interest on convertible bonds = 42,074
RITEEZFE Interest on bank borrowings 61,049 80,942
61,049 123,016

8. EENEETHAEZME 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

REMUNERATION
RiE E R AR EE D FEHIZE383(1) Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
@~ (o) () RMiEMRERAF (HEE disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
ERZER)BOIFE2HBRE AEFEE (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
ERESTBRABEZHESRENT of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

—E-N\F —TtF

2018 2017

AR®T T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

we Fees 96 96
e R REYI S Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 6,281 6,420
IRRET B3R Pension scheme contributions 105 103
6,386 6,523

6,482 6,619
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(#&)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

HITES (BERSTRAB)REY Executive directors (including the chief executive) and
FHITESE independent non-executive directors
e EZHR BIRGTE
e BEYA & HER [k
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
ARET R ARBT R ARBT R ARBT R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E-N\E 2018
WITES: Executive directors:
BEREE Mr. Ma Jianrong - 1,498 27 1,525
HEEMEE Mr. Huang Guanlin
(1TEAEE) (Chief executive) - 1,378 27 1,405
BEMEE Mr. Ma Renhe - 1,085 27 1,112
ITEREE Mr. Wang Cunbo - 1,058 12 1,070
REHLL Ms. Chen Zhifen - 1,125 12 1,137
- 6,144 105 6,249
BUIERITESE: Independent non-executive
directors:
BEmEE Mr. Jiang Xianpin 96 39 - 135
KRB EAE Mr. Qiu Weiguo - 39 - 39
BRIBEHE Mr. Chen Xu - 39 - 39
R KA Mr. Zhang Bingsheng
(R=ZF—N1F (appointed on
NA—HEZ(E) 1 September 2018) 32 20 - 52
128 137 - 265
128 6,281 105 6,514

ER ) B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



R zTMIEE
Notes to Financial Statements
—E—-N\F+=-A=+—H 31 December 2018

8. EENESTHAEZME 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

(%) REMUNERATION (continued)
HITES (BRERSTHRAB)REY Executive directors (including the chief executive) and
FHITESE (£ independent non-executive directors (continued)

FEoRMR N

e B & MewE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind  contributions  remuneration
ARBFT AR®FT AR®FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E—+F 2017
WITES: Executive directors:
BEREE Mr. Ma Jianrong - 1,540 27 1,567
HEEMEE Mr. Huang Guanlin
(7TB 4% ) (Chief executive) - 1,423 27 1,450
FCMESE Mr. Ma Renhe - 1,141 27 1,168
FTHERESE Mr. Wang Cunbo - 1,051 11 1,062
REHLL Ms. Chen Zhifen - 1,139 11 1,150
- 6,294 103 6,397
BYIERITESE: Independent non-executive
directors:
BEmEE Mr. Jiang Xianpin 96 39 - 135
KRB EE Mr. Qiu Weiguo - 39 - 39
BRB 4 Mr. Chen Xu - 39 - 39
RGR K E Mr. Xu Changcheng
(R=ZF—+4F (appointed on
MA—HEZER 1 April 2017 and
RZFE—+4F resigned on
NAZAEHF) 2 June 2017) - 9 - 9
96 126 - 222
96 6,420 103 6,619
FR WERBEBEXHESTHABRES There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
RAENREEMNMNE 2 25 - executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year.
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9. TEEREFMES 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
FARB(ZE—EF :ARB)IFART Details of the remuneration for the year of the five (2017: five)
EEAERTBRABE=FMES 2 M highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
SEIBWNT executive of the Company are as follows:

—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
ARE T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
e REREMA S Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 13,285 9,697
IRRET B 3K Pension scheme contributions 51 42
13,336 9,739
MeENFUTERNZFESRERITH The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
AEESFNEE AS: paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following

bands is as follows:

EEAH"
Number of employees

—E-N\EF —E—+F

2018 2017
1,500,001 T2 HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

2,000,000/ 7T - 2
2,000,001 T E HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

2,500,000/ 7T - 2
2,500,001 L= HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

3,000,000/ 7T 2 1
3,000,001 8T E HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

3,500,0007% 7T 3 -

5 5
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10. RIKEF

10. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
AR®B T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
RERE B R Mk Charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss
— IR R A8 F 51 — Retirement benefit contributions 435,922 382,511

AEBRHBEAREz 2BEE 2 RIKE
M2 ZBEHBTE B < RKEF8IF&
[F RERZEFE AKEAFLZR
pENENEFZEEFCEBZIET
BOLAE YRAEEFT ERAAE:
W AEBERTE BB -

AREBE TR B R B ATE 2 5 BIRHIR
EERARERZERESHEZEES
H—IERERFBRES S - HR IR
BEEAFH ZXEBD LM AR
ERESFERIEAINTEREAR
SmEMR - BB EETFABL
BRZEGN BAKENEED R
B-AEEZEEHFNABE S E
FHERR 2B ES -

A SR I 28 T B o i e 57 2 22 B Y
JB A B BN - KTRIFER - RE
TR & R R B AR R R R E
B < T B B & FR AR I A 8
R CRERFK) -

The retirement benefits of full-time employees of the Group in
Mainland China are covered by various government-sponsored
pension plans under which the premiums and welfare benefit
contributions that should be borne by the Group are calculated
based on percentages of the total salaries of employees,
subject to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the relevant
government authorities.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution, the MPF
Scheme in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Shenzhou Cambodia, Dagian Cambodia, Rong Win, Gain
Lucky Vietnam and Worldon Vietnam, wholly-owned
subsidiaries incorporated in the Kingdom of Cambodia
and Vietnam, are required to contribute amounts based on
employees’ salaries (defined contribution) to the retirement
benefit schemes as stipulated by the relevant local authorities.
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10. BIK\EHR (#)

11.

RRFEMRZIZ 2 EMBARAEE
MRPT - BIRE W AE R B PT AR E AR K AR
MEFBELE T2 ke

B b XAtz RN - AN SR B B R A
HitRAKEENXEEABEE2EE-

R
HE_ 22— \Ek-_Z—+F+=-H
T HLEFEZHGERIETEND

10. RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continuea)

11.

Buddies Macao, a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated
in Macao, is required to contribute a certain amount to the
retirement benefit scheme as stipulated by the relevant local
authority.

The Group has no further obligation for post-retirement benefits
or housing funds beyond contributions in respect of the above.

INCOME TAX

The major components of income tax expense for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 are:

—E-NF —E—+tF

2018 2017

AR®B T ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

HEZE TGN Current Hong Kong profits tax 34,247 45,883

AN & BRTE AR Current overseas withholding tax 5,105 -
SNETN] - RS Current Mainland China corporate

Frig® ([ZFEHI)  income tax (“CIT”) 469,921 487,036

R IE (M5E29) Deferred taxation (note 29) 88,530 (4,639)

597,803 528,280

REREFEVRBEEE (—ANANEF
ERTR)E N ARAEEREEHS
BESRITRBEAR REFBLEE
PIS AR DB SR EXBASFIE - A
Yo o S IR E BT ©

- N\FEBNEBBERFAMG

s FERRER FJE 2,000,000 7T1%8.25%
ZTE—+F:16.5%) MR EEIL16.5%
TE—+F: 16.5%)EH

Pursuant to section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (1999
Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the Company has obtained an
undertaking from the Governor-in-Council that no law enacted
in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax to be levied on profits,
income, gain or appreciation shall apply to the Company or its
operations.

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax for 2018 is calculated
at 8.25% (2017: 16.5%) of the first HK$2,000,000 and 16.5%
(2017: 16.5%) of the remaining estimated assessable profits for
the year.
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11. Fr8 % (&) 11. INCOME TAX (continued)

REBRZEFSTMALZ B RRH
BEMMEN REASZEMNERRR
RERABESUELENE (RAEM
M=)

R E ML 2 B AR AR
20% (ZZ—+tF 1 20% ) TR BANFTIS
- BEBERBRETIRHZEZRRO B
T B B8~ B 89 B PO R JE ) T2 R A e 4K
MPTIST - ARG AT R R R R
RESEMERRAENER 2T -
B R T RIS TS B AT IR o

RAREMKZ 2K EABRER AR
MG RBEPIEHBRI0% (ZF—+
F:30% )N B ARELE 2 BRBAE
BARE - -BRFAFARLERAR
J=ga e S CI 7 3 D @ A N
SRR E -

AR R A S22 B B A RHR B R 20%
BMFAENR - REBBEREERZLER &
THE R B AR BE R R10% B AT
Bopsh BETHBARANERREN
FREBRNFAIBRE0%TEN - AR
FAMBEFRARER 2R I &
MR PTG T AT TR B 45

R R BORFIARRR A - BORFIRE A
M2 MY A RV EER AR P RS A -
B AR X A DR P RS B B4

RIBHFEARKMBEEEMSTE ([F
EEMBIA])  &FBENBRRNF
P78 B B BRI W A $225% 2 T R TR
(REBEMEEMEBREAEE) - —HH B
RAEIFF AR (SRt
XER BHABB-_T—R"F—A—
FE=ZFZH15%IMEHEEHR X -

The subsidiaries incorporated in the BVI are not subject to
income tax as these subsidiaries do not have a place of
business (but only a registered office) or carry on any business
in the BVI.

The subsidiaries incorporated in the Kingdom of Cambodia,
are subject to income tax at a rate of 20% (2017: 20%). Under
the laws and regulations of Cambodia, certain subsidiaries
are entitled to an exemption from income tax for the first four
profit-making years. No provision for Cambodia income tax has
been made as the subsidiaries either had no assessable profits
arising in Cambodia or was entitled to an exemption from
income tax during the year.

The subsidiary incorporated in Japan, under the Law of
Taxation in Japan, is subject to income tax at a rate of 30%
(2017: 30%) of the assessable profits arising in Japan. No
provision for income tax has been made as the subsidiary had
no assessable profits arising in Japan during the year.

The subsidiaries incorporated in Vietnam, are subject to
income tax at a rate of 20%. Under the laws and regulations
of Vietnam, certain subsidiaries are entitled to enjoy a lower
profits tax rate of 10%. Furthermore, certain subsidiaries are
entitled to an exemption from income tax for four years and a
50% reduction for the nine years thereafter. No provision for
Vietnam income tax has been made as the two subsidiaries
were entitled to an exemption from income tax for the year.

No provision for Macao Complementary Tax has been made
during the year, as the subsidiary incorporated in Macao
is exempted from Macao Complementary Tax pursuant to
Macao’s relevant tax legislations.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (the “New CIT Law”), the PRC subsidiaries
as determined for the year in accordance with the New CIT
Law are subject to a tax rate of 25% on their assessable
income. A subsidiary is qualified as a High-New Technology
Enterprise (“HNTE”), and is entitled to a concessionary rate
of income tax at 15% for three years commencing 1 January
2016.
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11. Fr8 % (&) 11. INCOME TAX (continued)
BENTESHFEREABE N\
ER-—T—+&E+ A= +—HIEH
FETHRBEERBR Y HENT

A reconciliation between the tax expense and the product of
accounting profit multiplied by the PRC’s domestic tax rate
for the tax years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 is as

234

follows:

—E-NE —T—+F
2018 2017
ARBT T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5% AT A1) Profit before tax 5,090,346 4,288,231
BASE TE R E25% Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25%
—E—+F:25%) (2017: 25%)
AEZHE 1,272,587 1,072,058
B alAER S T 8P  Lower tax rates for specific jurisdictions or
B2 BRH R enacted by local authorities (698,618) (531,354)
H LART B & BRI IE /Y Adjustments in respect of current tax of
PR previous periods (13,975) (5,516)
FEAL —E1EE & A =) A1 Profits attributable to an associate (1,280) (920)
HARTWA Income not subject to tax (387) (2,583)
AR S Expenses not deductible for tax 2,257 17,050
AINEIIR Overseas withholding tax 5,105 -
FRRBERZHIEBEE Tax losses not recognised during the year 33,191 14,026
FI A LART R FE R Y Utilisation of previously unrecognised
HIaEE tax losses (1,077) (34,481)
597,803 528,280
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12. R E 12. DIVIDENDS
—E-N\EF —E—tF
2018 2017
ARE T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FRH— A% E B AR0.8578 T Interim — HK$0.85 (2017: HK$0.70)
—ZE—+F:070%7C) per ordinary share 1,115,083 888,540
R R EARR B — Proposed final - HK$0.90
G IR & iE0.90% T (2017: HK$0.75) per ordinary share
(ZZF—+F:0.75%87T) 1,185,411 942,408
2,300,494 1,830,948

REE 2 R RIS AR ARRBRR
RIEE R RBF RS -

13. B A REBRRERSRE AENL
BREF

FREARZGFTHIRE QA E) L EAR IR E
BEANEBEFAFBARFNEEITYE
FRR hNHE 81 503,222, 397/% (==&
—+ % :1,456,223,0000% ) 5+ & -

13.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,503,222,397 (2017: 1,456,223,000) in
issue during the year.
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13

1|

BAREERKRESE AEWN
BREF &)

E-FT-NF+-_A=+—BHItHF
CAEBUEAEBTHEEYEZ B
LA -

i i

“ELFE - BRESRENEEIR
BEEABEBREERSE AREFEAR
A E WRHABRURBRATRRESZ
ME -HAERARANDHTEBR
INHEF 5 BB St H S AR E A & F PR
PSR E BT BB INEFHEBIA K
REMALBEHELE 2L BERD
RESEBTEXERSEBEMRT
RETARBETZEBBENEFSH-

BREALREERNZFTEWT

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT (continued)

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

For the year of 2017, the calculation of the diluted earnings per
share amount is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent, adjusted to reflect
the interest on the convertible bonds. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise
or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are

based on:
& F Earnings
—E-N\F —T—+F
2018 2017
AR TR AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEEREREF Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
e Az &R a) & @R of the parent used in the basic earnings
AR+ B A FEAG A per share calculation 4,540,487 3,762,721
AMRESZFE Interest on convertible bonds = 42,074
MBI AR E % 2 FIERT  Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
[SNSIE-SE) L § of the parent before interest on
A ARENE convertible bonds 4,540,487 3,804,795
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13. B RIEERIKREIFE AE{ 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

BRERN #) TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT (continued)
&) Shares
& E
Number of Shares
—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
HEERERERN Weighted average number of ordinary shares
A 2 FAE 1T in issue during the year used in the basic
A A T 1 B earnings per share calculation 1,503,222,397 1,456,223,000
WEoVE— Effect of dilution — weighted average
58 A% N #E P AR B number of ordinary shares:
AJ IR 1E 55 Convertible bonds - 46,999,397
FTEEREERT Weighted average number of ordinary shares
iR Az EiBiR used in the diluted earnings per share
It 19 8 calculation 1,503,222,397 1,503,222,397
BRER Earnings per share
—E-—N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
AR AR
RMB RMB
AR Basic 3.02 2.58
o] Diluted 3.02 2.53

Annual Report 2018 4 237



238

RS ERAR AL

Notes to Financial Statements

—“E-N\E+=-HF=+—H 31 December 2018

14. ¥ -BERRZE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
BER BHRE
BF HE EHIR BEfE ERIR @t
Furniture
Plant and and Construction
Buildings ~ machinery Vehicles fixtures  in progress Total
ARET  ARBTn ARETT AR®Tn AREBFn ARET:
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
EEFE: Net book value:
RZZ—tF+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2017 3,408,552 3,205,888 56,756 128,159 317,432 7,116,787
AR Cost:
RZE-N\¥—-A—H At 1 January 2018 4,591,390 5,754,538 149,415 361,059 317,432 11,173,834
"E Additions 18,017 463,280 174,734 48,037 956,721 1,660,789
HE Disposals (57,512) (148,483) (3,824) (43,509) - (253,328)
ELb Transfers 508,983 330,429 1,835 1,641 (860,660) (17,772)
BREBMEE Transfers to
intangible assets - - - - (1,622) (1,622)
AR Exchange realignment 41,053 51,030 1,158 2,696 14,130 110,067
WZZ—N\E+-A=+—H At 31 December 2018 5,101,931 6,450,794 323,318 369,924 426,001 12,671,968
BiHFE: Accumulated depreciation:
WZE-N\E—-A—H At 1 January 2018 1,182,838 2,548,650 92,659 232,900 - 4,057,047
FENERE Depreciation provided during the year 300,132 464,212 26,990 47,349 - 838,683
e Disposals (54975)  (127,443) (3,470) (43,269) - (229,157)
@ Transfers (1,570) (16,202) - - - (17,772)
AR Exchange realignment 5,191 13,280 492 1,480 - 20,443
W-Z—N\E+-A=+—H At 31 December 2018 1,431,616 2,882,497 116,671 238,460 - 4,669,244
FRFE: Net book value:
WZE-N\E+=A=F+—H At 31 December 2018 3,670,315 3,568,297 206,647 131,464 426,001 8,002,724
FHFE: Net book value:
RZE-R"FE+-A=+—H  At31 December 2016 3,455,277 3,018,825 60,686 133,489 344,760 7,013,037
A Cost:
RZE—t%-A—H At 1 January 2017 4,412,175 5,404,661 139,290 344,297 344,760 10,645,183
RE Additions 11,402 419,748 13,277 51,597 628,398 1,124,422
e Disposals (34,984)  (336,008) (3,322) (30,905) - (405,219)
BH Transfers 292,206 348,892 2,120 2,422 (645,640) -
EH % Exchange realignment (89,409) (82,755) (1,950) (6,352) (10,086)  (190,552)
W-Z—+F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2017 4,591,390 5,754,538 149,415 361,059 317,432 11,173,834
BiTE: Accumulated depreciation:
WZE-+F-A—H At 1 January 2017 956,898 2,385,836 78,604 210,808 - 3,632,146
FENERE Depreciation provided during the year 265,519 412,189 17,870 55,547 - 751,125
& Disposals (33,233)  (234909) (3,169) (30,628) - (301,939)
5% AR Exchange realignment (6,346) (14,466) (646) (2,827) - (24,285)
WZE—+F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2017 1,182,838 2,548,650 92,659 232,900 - 4,057,047
FHFE: Net book value:
RZE—+F+-A=F+—H At 31 December 2017 3408552 3,205,888 56,756 128,159 317432 7,116,787
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14.

15.

ME- -BERSE 2

R-ZE—N\F+-_A=+—H8 K£EH
ZEF BERRBILEZB-R=F
—tF+ZA=+—8 AEEEEF
BE# B ANR856,765,0000T 2 & T 12
FBERBEECERIFELRREEM
BEETIRITERZER (K5E28) -

RAREAE AEBEAHE TE
FHEMAEEZS R_ZT—N\F+=
A=+ BEREFELBOARE
1,651,660,0007C (ZZE —+F: AR
1,217,677,0007C) - AR A ZEER AR
SEERAFELERIEE RER LilE
FoARREEFNRARLAETETSY
REBR-ZZE-NF+_A=1+—8HK
MR BERTE-

EN Lt EHERE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continueq)

As at 31 December 2018, there were no mortgages over
buildings, plant and machinery of the Group. As at 31
December 2017, certain of the Group’s buildings, plant
and machinery with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB856,765,000 were pledged to secured certain bank loans
granted to the Group (note 28).

As at the date of this report, the Group was in the process
of applying for the title certificates of certain of its buildings
with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
RMB1,651,660,000 (2017: RMB1,217,677,000) as at 31
December 2018. The directors of the Company are of the view
that the Group is entitled to lawfully and validly occupy and use
the above-mentioned buildings. The directors of the Company
are also of the opinion that the aforesaid matters will not have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial position as at 31
December 2018.

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
AR¥ T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Cost:
mw—H—H At 1 January 1,100,904 1,043,511
NE Additions 268,363 72,970
ME 3, o 2 Exchange realignment 6,583 (15,577)
R+Z—HA=+—8H At 31 December 1,375,850 1,100,904
RETEEE Accumulated amortisation:
n—H—H At 1 January 143,996 120,339
F R Amortisation during the year 30,870 24,447
ME 3 o B Exchange realignment 483 (790)
w+—-—A=+—8H At 31 December 175,349 143,996
BREFE Net book value:
R+—_A=+—H At 31 December 1,200,501 956,908
®n—A—H At 1 January 956,908 923,172
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16. BV EE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

nH Rk st
Water Use
Software Right” Total
ARETR AR¥T ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZE-N\F 31 December 2018
+=ZR=+—H
WZZE—NFE—HF—Hz Costat1January 2018, net of
B - B0 R AT 8 accumulated amortisation 31,069 67,188 98,257
NE Additions 11,458 - 11,458
BRerRrIE Transfers from construction in progress 1,622 - 1,622
FEHHERE Amortisation provided during the year (5,228) (6,450) (11,678)
BE 3, R 28 Exchange realignment 15 - 15
RZZE-N\F At 31 December 2018
+=-ZA=+—H 38,936 60,738 99,674
RZE-)N\F At 31 December 2018:
+ZA=+—H:
BRI Cost 59,261 129,000 188,261
R E Accumulated amortisation (20,325) (68,262) (88,587)
REFE Net carrying amount 38,936 60,738 99,674
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16. B EE (&)

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

EERFHATZBEARAEE -
BT @ EKF B EE R 8 KK
BRARRZZEENFIALZ=NER
i ALBECREAE MR TA
R #129,000,0007T * LR E A BEE
FEEBKEREIE - B EI20F ([H
KE]) RZT—NF+ZA=+—
A X&EEE X ARS53,000,000
T (ZZ—+F: AR%53,000,000
JT) c MEEE A R#76,000,0007t 2 5
A E Ath FE - 308 o

1t Rk et
Water Use
Software Right* Total
ARBT T ARBF T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZE—+F 31 December 2017
+-A=+—8
WZZE—+F—HF—Hz Costat1January 2017, net of
BN BV R 5t 8 accumulated amortisation 31,590 73,638 105,228
NE Additions 1,417 - 1,417
FREEHEEE Amortisation provided during the year (1,669) (6,450) (8,119)
BE 3, 2 Exchange realignment (269) - (269)
RZE—+F At 31 December 2017
+-—A=+—8H 31,069 67,188 98,257
RZZE—+F At 31 December 2017:
+ZA=+—H:
AR Cost 46,142 129,000 175,142
2t Accumulated amortisation (15,073) (61,812) (76,885)
EEFE Net carrying amount 31,069 67,188 98,257
* BEAEBEHETEMIt®EBETRZ * Pursuant to an agreement entered into by the Group and the

Government of Beilun District, Ningbo City, in April 2006 and
three supplementary agreements entered into by the Group,
Ningbo Beilun Water Conservancy Bureau and Ningbo Water
Supply General Company in 2008, the Group has agreed to pay
the local government an amount of RMB129 million in exchange
for a guaranteed constant water supply with a favourable price
for a period of 20 years (“Water Use Right”). As at 31 December
2018, the Group has paid an amount of RMB53,000,000 (2017:
RMB53,000,000), and the remaining amount of RMB76,000,000
was included in other payables.
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17.

NE+ZHA=+—H 31 December 2018
R—EBEQATZRE 17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
—EB-N\#F —+F
2018 2017
AR®T T ARMETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BhEEFR Share of net assets 12,365 10,851

BRI R RN EETERR AR ([ZR
NA]) mALE - E R F - WHEE
f’E$§%IZ%§ wE"

AEBRZBE AR ZEREEBEBA
NA—EEEWNERAHHE Z30%H#E
&5 ©

Ningbo Avery Dennison Shenzhou Knitting and Printing Co.,
Ltd. (“Ningbo Avery”) is an associate of the Group and is
considered to be a related party of the Group.

The Group’s shareholding in the associate represents the 30%
equity shares held through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

TREMAEEBERATZGFUBKE The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
# information of the Group’s associate:
Year ended 31 December
TZA=+t—HLEE
—E-N\F —t4F
2018 2017
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
n—H—H At 1 January 10,851 7,173
JEMGEEE AR EAMFIE & Share of the associate’s profit
Hap 2w and other comprehensive income
for the period 5,121 3,678
B A AIEIMIE IR AIAR B Dividends declared by the associate
for the period (3,607) -
REBREE NG E 2  Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
IREEERE investment in the associate 12,365 10,851
ER ) B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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18. F & 18. INVENTORIES

—E-N\EF e
2018 2017
ARET T ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R K Raw materials 1,179,985 994,954
£ 3 Work in progress 2,075,322 1,677,620
2R SR Finished goods 2,104,700 1,847,674
5,360,007 4,520,248
B Provision (122,575) (42,759)
5,237,432 4,477,489

19. ERRFR KR EE 19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
—E-N\EF —E—+F
2018 2017
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE W BR 3 & R AR Trade and bills receivables 3,564,821 2,814,779

AEBRZEFPZESERTEUNEETY
ANET FEEHONEAUR-SRE
EESTEHRABRRM S NEE
3 8 Bt H U R R M R IR RIS A
B ot E AR EEE =8
JEU R A S RIE A FHFLB

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit with credit terms of within six months. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade and bills receivable balances. Trade and bills receivables
are non-interest-bearing.
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—“E-N\E+=-HF=+—H 31 December 2018

19. BEWEEFIREE &)

Rk RBHER W ERING
THERE RNERRERES ST
W :

. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net
of nil loss allowance, is as follows:

—E-N\F e

2018 2017

ARE T ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB’000

=@AR Within three months 3,339,865 2,709,033
=@AMNE Over three months 224,956 105,746
3,564,821 2,814,779

3 8 5 E S R AR A B R E 2 FE YR
RARBRZERINAOT

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are

not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

follows:
—E-N\F e
2018 2017
AR T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RiE HA g (B Neither past due nor impaired 3,547,595 2,801,177
B H R = (A A Less than three months past due 8,544 6,747
BEI =&AL E Over three months past due 8,682 6,855
3,564,821 2,814,779

R ERSORE 2 & Wk IR ST HAND SR e
REBEZEFER-

ERRERBE BEFARE TIBL
EFAM ZEEFAAKENRZE
BRI -RBBELBNATELEER
REH BZFEAR DR/ 28K
B WEANZEERIIRAMEES
BEE-

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to
a number of independent customers that had a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience and forward-
looking information, the directors of the Company were of
the opinion that no provision for expected credit losses was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered fully recoverable.
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19. EWEEFIREE &)

RTZA=+—8 BEEIAEZEIA

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

At 31 December, the trade and bills receivables were

THEHETE denominated in the following currencies:
—E-N\F —T—+F
2018 2017

R HEARY Rt HeARE
Original RMB Original RVB
currency  equivalent currency equivalent
T AR¥Trx T ARETR
in thousand RMB’000 in thousand RMB’000
e US$ 342,505 2,350,679 255,432 1,669,042
AR RMB 1,214,142 1,145,737
3,564,821 2,814,779

EUEREREZREEREEAAER

go

approximate to their fair values.

The carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivables
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20. A RERHEMWERKIE 20. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES
—E-\F Tt F
2018 2017
AR¥ T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B &R Current
AR FRIBE MR e Prepayments and deposits
—BERME — Purchase of raw materials 108,961 130,460
—BEME BWE X - Purchase of items of property,
®#EIER plant and equipment 95,447 104,223
—JENEERIES — Prepaid rental fee and deposits 110,636 106,432
—E A - Others 20,422 13,900
FEU K AT U B 2 {E R 3R T VAT refund receivable and recoverable 112,988 256,004
JFE Y 1| B Interest receivable 102,631 106,119
E h fE W 5k IE Other receivables 108,870 92,648
659,955 809,786
E=R:t Non-current
RHETE A B Long-term prepayments* 82,667 44,291
T EESEAHSORE AR None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
BEZeMmEEMRTHAYBRRGEHEZ The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
JEWGRIA B/ receivables for which there was no recent history of default.
AR RIEREMEWIE Z FAERE The carrying amounts of the prepayments and other
RNABERA- receivables approximate to their fair values.
* RHENFIER T FEREZBRNK * Long-term prepayments represent the prepayments for land use
I8 e right.
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21. BAREFERE BT AERE 21.

ZERMEE MHHERE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/AVAILABLE-
FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
ARET AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEmEEETN Financial products issued
D EEm by financial institutions - 2,976,900

ttemERZFHRIN—FAEHF
CHREHZEL% - FHBEZST T
BEMNBREARRAIAERHER
5% BMMZFEEHRAETEBHAR
ZMARRAAES EMRA([LEWR
AN ETHOEBTRAMOR S ZHTE -
RZE-NF-—A—H RERKBEY
BREENFORIKL ZFETRERER
HED BRI AAREFERE S AR
BZEREE FHEANRASRELIF
ERARE KA BMAHK-

s

The above financial products have terms of less than one year
and have expected annual rates of return up to 5.5%. The
applicable size test results in respect of the purchases of these
financial products are all below 5% and thus, these purchases
are not subject to the notifiable transaction requirements under
Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). On 1 January 2018, upon adoption of HKFRS 9, they
were mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows were not
solely payments of principal and interest.
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22,

23.

HittEmEE 22, OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
—E-N\EF e
2018 2017
ARE T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HemEEETH Financial products issued
SRUE M by financial institutions 1,480,000 -

RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H0 @™
CREEBIETETEEEAARYE
1,480,000,0007C ( — B —+F: )&
CRERDIREENAAR - BHEE
ZECRERMEREARENRER
HIERE% Mz S EEDEET LM
RAUETHEBATFRABORZZHTE -
CREMZFHIR—FBERETFER
REZEAZ% (ZE—+F ) - RE
HEEHSBN ZEE2RERARAE
RARFWZ -

As at 31 December 2018, certain of the financial products
issued by financial institutions with a carrying amount of
RMB1,480,000,000 (2017: Nil) were stated at amortised cost.
The applicable size test results in respect of the purchases
of these financial products are all below 5% and thus, these
purchases are not subject to the notifiable transaction
requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. The
financial products have terms of less than one year and have
fixed annual rates of return up to 4.3% (2017: Nil). Pursuant to
the underlying contracts or notices, these financial products are
capital and return guaranteed.

BBEX 23. STRUCTURED DEPOSITS
—E-N\EF —E—tF
2018 2017
ARE T ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FIR R B REER1THY Structured deposits in licensed
HEREFER WEBHEK AT  banks in the PRC, at amortised cost = 1,050,000

R-B—+tF+-_A=+—RH &B7F
RHARIR—F BEFERERS
4.65% - RIFABENHBE KXFH
BERRABRE RS-

As at 31 December 2017, the structured deposits had terms
of less than one year with fixed annual rates of return up to
4.65%. Pursuant to the underlying contracts or notices, these
structured deposits are capital and return guaranteed.
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24. BERBITEBREHER  24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND TIME

DEPOSITS

—E-N\EF —E—tF

2018 2017

AR¥ T ARBET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

R RIBITHEER Cash and bank balances 2,815,916 2,079,349

EHFR Time deposits 4,379,678 1,647,570

7,195,594 3,726,919

B ARTE R Less: Pledged deposits (500,000) (500,000)
st R R = 18 A Bank deposits with
ZIRITE an initial term of

over three months (3,129,678) (605,518)

RITREAE Long-term time deposits at banks - (150,000)

BeRREZEY Cash and cash equivalents 3,565,916 2,471,401

RBEBR ZEBUARKEEZR
& RIRITHE A AR 753,020,000
T(ZE—+F+-A=+—H: AR
#352,935,0007T) - ARBERATBH K
BMEHEMER -AmM BEFERNEZ
HNE B IR0 R AETE - EME R HEE
RE AEERME S BERE S
TEHEBZRITHARELRAEHM

RN RIT 2R RRIT 2T BEFHRA
TP B R EREUK B o FE B SROA—
BE3BEATFE 2 TRAHPETE KT
AEBEZERRSFRME LREE
REIEHRANERBRAE - RITEHREF
ARIW BB EBRIFRIT
RekReSEBYREEEEQR

GEESR

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB753,020,000 (31 December 2017: RMB352,935,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and 36 months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest
at the respective short-term time deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash
equivalents approximate to their fair values.
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24 BEeRBITEBRREHRER 24,

(%)

RZTE—NFE+ZA=+—8 " &FF

7N & B 7F 8517 A R 500,000,000
(ZBE—+tF+_A=+—H: ARE
500,000,00070) Bt FA S @2 &
HIRRITE REE R - & AT KRB
B—F BETFLERREARIS% -HRF
—NFE+ZA=+—R8 ZEEZER
—FRE 8-

25. FEEER® 25,
RIMERF BIERZ A EAHER
EE®ARMT :

CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND TIME
DEPOSITS (continuead)

At 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s time deposits
with an amount of RMB500,000,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB500,000,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted
to the Group. The time deposits have initial terms of more than
one year and have fixed annual rates of return at 3.5%. As at
31 December 2018, these deposits will mature within one year.

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

—E-N\EF —E—tF
2018 2017
ARE TR AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
~ME AR Within six months 789,836 847,695
NEAZE—F Six months to one year 6,647 7,761
—FEMF One year to two years 5,891 7,630
GES NS Over two years 10,313 10,020
812,687 873,106
FERBRRATE B - ERRF ZREESR The trade payables are non-interest-bearing. The carrying
HEARERESE- amounts of the trade payables approximate to their fair values.
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26.

27.

EHERE TAWERER 26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES/ADVANCES FROM
CUSTOMERS
—E-N\EF —E—tF
2018 2017
AR T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AMaE Contract liabilities 24,161 -
T8 UL BR X Advances from customers = 26,225
24,161 26,225

BHEE/TARERTIE R H R
KEmMmMBBROEHERER - R -F
—NF-A—B REATEHBHRS
ERHE165R R BRERARETDER
BMAaE-

Hitt B FOEREFTRKE

Contract liabilities/advances from customers represent short-
term advances received for knitwear products. On 1 January
2018, upon adoption of HKFRS 15, advances from customers

were reclassified as contract liabilities.

27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

—E-N\F —E—LF

2018 2017

AR TR ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

FEETR X Accrued expenses 769,732 626,742

FAK#E FEAT 7008 (KHisE16)  Payable for Water Use Right (note 16) 76,000 76,000

BEWE BEL Payables for purchase of property,

B2 BT RE plant and equipment 23,143 18,954
BHEEETIREZ Payables and guarantee deposits related to

ERNFERRES construction projects 62,361 52,371

HEZS Rental deposits 12,286 10,640

H b & 1 #5438 Other taxes payable 150,588 100,732

Hity Others 87,566 59,210

1,181,676 944,649

Lt B 5RIB N A RRE 2 BRE (R B K
SERE - EMENKETTE -

\|

5

The carrying amounts of other payables and accruals
approximate to their fair values. Other payables are non-

interest-bearing.
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28. ;T ERRITEE

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

ZE-N\§ “E—tf
2018 2017
BRAE YR
(E) HEA ARETR (E) HHA  ARETR
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
wE Current
BOER-BER Bank loans - unsecured HIBOR
(REREHR) (due for repayment +0.55
on demand) -0.90/
1M-LIBOR
+1.2/
3M-LIBOR
+2.40/
6M-LIBOR 2019 - HIBOR
+0.5-0.75 2022¢ 1,934,391 +0.55-0.72 2018 1,170,260
BOER-BHER Bank loans - secured
(RERER) (due for repayment
on demand) 2.65 2019 500,000 2.65 2019 500,000
BOER-BHER Bank loans - secured 6M-LIBOR
(REREF) (due for repayment +0.75/
on demand) 3M-LIBOR 2018 -
- - - +2.40 2022* 460,149
2,434,391 2,130,409
E ik | Non-current
BOER-EER Bank loans - unsecured 1M-LIBOR
+1.8 2023 82,358 - - -
2,516,749 2,130,409

: ZERTEEFARDEER RER
IRITHBREE N IR ZRURS

sao =y
B

ER ) B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

These bank borrowings are included in current liabilities as the

banks have an overriding right to call for cash repayment on

demand at any time.
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28. ;TEHRTEE (&)

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

(continued)
—E-N\F —T—+F
2018 2017
AR® T AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
iR Analysed into:
AR THEBEEE Bank loans and overdrafts repayable:
HITERRBEY :
—FARIREK Within one year or on demand 2,434,391 2,130,409
—&FEpPF Beyond one year 82,358 -
2,516,749 2,130,409
@ RZZE-—NF+ZA=1+—8"if (a) As at 31 December 2018, bank borrowing balances of
TIE B H ARET02,449,000 approximately RMB702,449,000 (31 December 2017:
T(ZE—+F+-_A=+—8: RMB460,149,000) were denominated in United States
AR #460,149,0007T) A ETT dollars, approximately RMB1,314,300,000 (31 December
FT{E - #) A R #1,314,300,0007T 2017: RMB1,170,260,000) were denominated in Hong
(ZZE—+FE+-_A=+—H:' A Kong dollars, and approximately RMB500,000,000 (31
R #1,170,260,0007T ) LA 7T &t December 2017: RMB500,000,000) were denominated in
8 & 4 A R #500,000,0007T (= RMB, respectively.
T—+tF+-_A=+—H8: ARK
500,000,0007T ) LA A R ¥ EH(E -
by RZE—+F+-_A=+—H =K (b) As at 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s bank

SEETRITERDIUAAERE S
IR E A R #856,765,00070 2 &
FBERBEZIRBERR RN
ZE-N\F+ZA=1+—H &*&
BB TROTBERIIAEAEESET
+ %A A R #500,000,0007T (=
E—+F+-A=1+—H: ARK
500,000,0007T ) 2 & B3 17 X BT 1
o EREE R -

loans were secured by mortgages over the Group’s
buildings, plant and machinery, which had an aggregate
carrying value of RMB856,765,000. As at 31 December
2018, certain of the Group’s bank loans were secured
by the pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits
amounting to RMB500,000,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB500,000,000).
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29. IEAEB R 29. DEFERRED TAX
BEEHBEEERBGERNFANZEE): The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

year are as follows:

(a) EEHEEE (a) Deferred tax assets
—E-N\F —ET—+F
2018 2017
ARE TR AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Provisions
n—H—H At 1 January 9,632 3,629
RAFEERKITALZ Deferred tax credited to the statement of
EERIE profit or loss during the year 4,064 6,003
W+Z—HA=+—8 At 31 December 13,696 9,632
RZZE—-NF+-_A=+—H K As at 31 December 2018, the Group had accumulated
SEBENFEARE REELTEK tax losses of approximately RMB414,056,000 (31
MrEELSC REBBEROARE December 2017: RMB392,180,000) arising in Mainland
414,056,0007T (—Z T —+tF+ = China, the Kingdom of Cambodia and Vietnam, which
A=+—H: AK#392,180,000 will expire in one to five years for offsetting against
TR —ERFRHE - K future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not been
SHARRFER B FE « REE W AR recognised in respect of these deductible temporary
BEANRE R EmERELTER differences as it is not considered probable that taxable
HEE RAABERABT KL profits will be available against which the deductible
FE SR B IR DA (4 8 AT 0 B T temporary differences can be utilised.

EE-
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29, IRIERIE (&)
(b) EEHEEME

29. DEFERRED TAX (continuea)
(b) Deferred tax liabilities

—E-N\F —ET—+F
2018 2017
ARE TR ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERGBELER Depreciation allowance in excess of
ENSE related depreciation
n—HA—H At 1 January 3,197 1,833
RAFERIZRNBZ Deferred tax charged to the statement of
EIER IR profit or loss during the year 92,594 1,364
R+-—A=+—H At 31 December 95,791 3,197

BEABECEMESHE RZTT
NF-—HA—HRIUEBAR-_ZZE
t&+-_A=+—BBZAEF"
AR BERRER S 2 BINEE
FTE k2 IR BABBA0% BT -
fin o B K B 1,8 SR & & BB A
FEREABBRBE A ERARE
ZEMHER -RAEEMES EA
MEREE% -HFHEARZTZEN
F - A=+ - HEMIE(2008)5
158 AR T+ F+ - A
=+ —HMRBAENE IR &E L
PR R BER R BTN

RZZE—NF+=-_A=+—H8 %
42 k7 S B A R B K B S 2 B B
NEIABRBIRZAEL AT
ZETEIR MR T T -
ERE ZEWB QRN RiEK
DIRZERF Z A REET K R =
T-N\E+-_A=+—10 HEE
B R B K BE B B A 7] A B8 1) ok T
REEHEAGBE 2GR EZEEH
#- AR #16,384,258,0007T ( =
T—+EFE+-A=Z+—H: AR
14,129,494,0007T ) °

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. On 22
February 2008, Caishui (2008) No. 1 was promulgated by
the tax authorities to specify that dividends declared and
remitted out of the PRC from the retained profits as at 31
December 2007 are exempted from withholding tax.

At 31 December 2018, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings
in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB16,384,258,000 at 31 December 2018 (31
December 2017: RMB14,129,494,000).
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30. A& 30. SHARE CAPITAL
vy Shares
—g2-N\%¥ —FF
2018 2017
TELT AR%®TxR THET ARETRL
HK$’000 RMB’000 HK$'000 RMB’000
BETRAR: Issued and fully paid:
1,503,222,397 f% 1,503,222,397 (2017:
(ZZ2—+%: 1,503,222,397) ordinary
1,508,222,397 1% ) F % shares of HK$0.10 each
HE0.10B T BBk 150,322 151,200 150,322 151,200

ARBWAEBEHEZMT

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as
follows:

BRTRAHE B A
Number of
shares in
issue Share capital
BT AREFT
HK$ RMB’000
RZE—t§—A—H At 1 January 2017 1,399,000,000 139,900,000 142,105
BHAARESR Conversion of convertible bonds 104,222,397 10,422,240 9,095
RZF—tF+ZA=F—HAK At31December 2017 and
—E2-N\F+ZRA=+—H 31 December 2018 1,503,222,397 150,322,240 151,200

RZE—+tFR R_ZE—NFXAT
H A% * 2N$ %8 43,900,000,000% 7T 2
AR E S ER B A S BIR TR T &
B%37.50% 7T R B AR & @ AR37.018 T2
BIRE D R85 104,222,397 %
RRABEREECI0E T L@ 3
BUAR AN 38 hn A R #59,095,0007T ©

ER ) B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

During the year of 2017, the convertible bonds in the principal
amount of HK$3,900,000,000 together with accrued interest
were converted into a total of 104,222,397 shares of the
Company of HK$0.10 each at a conversion price of HK$37.50
per ordinary share and of HK$37.01 per ordinary share for
conversions that took place before and after 10 June 2018
respectively, resulting in the increase of share capital amounting
to RMB9,095,000.
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31. &
AEBRBNRBEEE Y HESEL

H

XX

(ii)

(iii)

HEEINRH B RRFIG90AELEA

REEDE-

ZEBSBABES ([EERBLE
£1)

BE B R RE R B KRB
NRZEBERMA - SHBE KR
MEBARERERIEARE:
JRAVEE 2 BB AE10% AR
EERBAES EEBBEAESR
FEREMAR AR Z250% 4 1E o #05k
EREBABS I AR MR’
N EEREZBETEORE
AR 2 25% °

B 5K
bE R Bt e MR E B IN B 2
AZHMBRREEZELZ®E -

HAitb & &
HAit#HE TR IEFIENIBR
T BOHENBARMESHR
BEEBENX 5 BHFEHEER
REER D

31. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 159 of

the financial statements.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”)

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the
articles of association of the Mainland China subsidiaries,
each of the Mainland China subsidiaries is required to
allocate 10% of their profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with the PRC generally accepted accounting
principles, to the SSR until the reserve reaches 50% of
its registered capital. Part of the SSR may be converted
to increase paid-up capital, provided that the remaining
balance after the capitalisation is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve represents exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the foreign subsidiaries.

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the excess of the
consideration received for partial disposal of a subsidiary
without loss of control, over the carrying amount of the
non-controlling interests as at the transaction date.

Annual Report 2018 £

257



B 5 R 2R Y

Notes to Financial Statements
—E—-N\F+=-A=+—H 31 December 2018

32.

RERTRERMEE

32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RMETBHEHRCEERE Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
—E-N\F 2018
RITER
Bank loans
AR T
RMB’000
R_ZE—-—NF—HA—H At 1 January 2018 2,130,409
MEREMEEZF Changes from financing cash flows 386,340
FMERX Interest expense 61,049
NERKEREREZENFE Interest paid classified as operating cash flows (61,049)
RZE—NF+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2018 2,516,749
—T—+F 2017
|ITE R AT AR (R 5
Convertible
Bank loans bonds
ARBFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R_ZE—+tF—H—H At 1 January 2017 1,241,433 3,410,145
MERESREEZF Changes from financing cash flows 888,976 (1,363)
L3NNI i gl Converted to shares of the Company - (3,369,240)
B 5,8 & Foreign exchange movement - (81,616)
BRI X Interest expense 80,942 42,074
DHERKEREREZ Interest paid classified as operating
=ENEESS cash flows (80,942) -
RZZE—+tF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2017 2,130,409 -

ER ) B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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33. RAEE 33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
RZE—NF+_A=+—H *5%£E As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no significant
WEEAKAEE- contingent liabilities.

34. EEHEH 34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
REAEERTEFRBER2AEEEE Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the Group’s bank
ZHBORERBEHRENTE14 24K loans are included in notes 14, 24 and 28 to the financial
28 ° statements.

35. &If 35. COMMITMENTS
(a) KEHEAE (a) Operating lease commitments

REBIRBE T ITHBECEREL The Group leases certain of its office premises and plants
HEEETHAEZMEREE - under non-cancellable operating lease arrangements.
RZE—-NFE+_A=+—H" K At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
EEREBETATRMECEHERN minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
ZARKEHEESWT : operating leases as follows:
—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
ARE TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FR Within one year 104,543 110,173
FEFERF In the second to fifth years, inclusive
(BRIEERMF) 296,607 322,883
hEE After five years 130,891 84,494
532,041 517,550
(b) EXEE (b) Capital commitments
—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
SHESIEE 3K Contracted, but not provided for:
BEVE BELEE Acquisition of property,
plant and equipment 718,614 577,922
BE L AR Acquisition of land use right 70,420 105,130
789,034 683,052
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36. BEEA LR F 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) AEEFTEEBAEZHE (a) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group
—E-N\F —E—LF
2018 2017
ARBT R ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

0

EELOREEAEME Remuneration of directors and

senior management 28,753 26,986
BHRZEERESTTHRAEH 2 Further details of the directors’ and chief executive’s
E—THABIERYHHmEMES - emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial
statements.
(b) HEBATZEERS (b) Continuing transactions with related parties
BRANB Rk M el 2 & In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
SO0 REERFN D EEER A+ financial statements, the Group had the following material
EITTIERRS transactions with related parties during the year:
—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
ARE T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

EERFMNEEER AT Lease of apparel production properties

(reeMzEz])~ from Ningbo Shenzhou Properties

FHERKEEAEME Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Properties”) * 9,624 9,624
BEEN i) Purchase of packaging materials from

BERERAA Shaoxing County Huaxi Packaging

(TEmRERAAE]) Materials Company Limited

KESEDR (“Huaxi Packaging Company”) ** 31,580 43,861

B FR L ENFEPRFS  Printing service provided by
Ningbo Avery *** 108,987 65,533

B2 R 2 £ 84E & Sales and marketing services and
BB AR — BT IR general support services provided
PR 7% to Ningbo Avery*** 5,451 3,821
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36. BEEANTRRF (&) 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuead)
(b) EHEBEBALZEERS ( (b) Continuing transactions with related parties
(continued)

* BNEERARR —RBRITES * Shenzhou Properties is controlled by one of the
P o Company’s executive directors.

** EFRBEMAFTBAARRR—EH o Huaxi Packaging Company is controlled by the relatives of
TEFZHREBES - one of the Company’s executive directors.

o BEVRARNERY ﬁﬁ%’& =+ Ningbo Avery is an associate of the Group and is
REAEBZBABALT -ZR 5 considered to be a related party of the Group. This
jﬁ*%ﬁtﬁ%ﬁﬁ'l%MA%ﬁi transaction does not constitute continuing connected
MR ERERS - transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MR A TIR M2 R & The services provided to and purchase and lease from

AT ZEREREEDNRESEA the related parties were made according to the published

AIMEFrZEXFREZARAER prices and conditions offered by the related companies to

M AT their major customers.

(c) EBEBALZREEZER (c) Outstanding balances with related parties

NEEEABEA T BT & The Group had the following balances with its related

parties:
—E-N\F —E—+tF
2018 2017
AR® T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEMZF@ FKIA Amounts due from related parties
BHE 5 ﬁ Eﬁ — trade related:
BN E % Shenzhou Properties 949 444
BRI Ningbo Avery 1,676 162
2,625 606
FERT — B B A L RUIE Amount due to a related party
—HE5EH - - trade related:
EEBAELAT Huaxi Packaging Company 1,882 -
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37. ZERE s z2EMIT A 37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
REmESHR SR TAZREE The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
N instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
TREE Financial assets
—E-N\F 2018

R

rtEZ

CE: 3.8t

Financial

assets at

amortised

cost

AR TR

RMB’000

JE W BR 3 2 AR Trade and bills receivables 3,564,821
ST ATEAT RIB K B b FE U GRIE 2 Financial assets included in prepayments

SREE and other receivables 211,501

JiE W B BsE A\ =3B Amounts due from related parties 2,625

EmemEE Other financial assets 1,480,000

BB Pledged deposits 500,000

MeFrfa=—EA Bank deposits with an initial term of

RITHER over three months 3,129,678

ReEkBREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 3,565,916

12,454,541
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37.

RERB D 2E€MI A (£  37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
CREE (&) Financial assets (continued)
—EF—LtF 2017
XK AHEE
FE W KB CRAEE st
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
ARETT ARBFT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments - 2,976,900 2,976,900
JE s BR TR e E Trade and bills receivables 2,814,779 - 2,814,779
FPATBRNREREM Financial assets included in prepayments
EWREBEzEBEE and other receivables 198,767 - 198,767
e BB A T 3RIA Amounts due from related parties 606 - 606
EBER Structured deposits 1,050,000 - 1,050,000
EEAFR Pledged deposits 500,000 - 500,000
MEpEREa=MAz Bank deposits with an initial term
RITFER of over three months 605,518 - 605,518
RITRBEHER Long-term time deposits at banks 150,000 - 150,000
RehBReEFEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,471,401 - 2,471,401
7,791,071 2,976,900 10,767,971
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37. RERNE S 2EMI AR (&) 37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
TRER Financial liabilities
—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
AR®ET ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REBERTTEZ Financial liabilities at amortised cost
cHMEE
FERTBR 3K Trade payables 812,687 873,106
AT AHE At B A SR IR K Financial liabilities included in
BErREzSRAE other payables and accruals 261,356 317,907
JET— B B A T RUE Amount due to a related party 1,882 -
FHERTEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 2,516,749 2,130,409
3,592,674 3,321,422

38. eI TEZAAEBERAAEE 38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

AN OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AEBZeMTAREAMERAE (H The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
FHEREAALESEMBEE RN WA instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
N reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:
RHEE ARE
Carrying amounts Fair values
—E-N\§g —T—+tF ZEB-NE —T—LF
2018 2017 2018 2017

ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETRL
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

SHREE: Financial assets:
EEARBEER Long-term time pledged deposits - 500,000 - 498,739
BORATHER Long-term time deposits at banks - 150,000 - 150,250
- 650,000 - 648,989
tRERE: Financial liabilities:
TEBAEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 2,516,749 2,130,409 2,483,528 2,107,387
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38.

39.

EMIACZARERAAEE
o)

BEEENG ReLREEFEY VK
TR EEB = A 2 RITFE R Z BN B
o EEERER BRER EARE
FFEgEF AERzeMEE A HE
ERE HMeMEE BUREALE
B EAERR GHABRMNREREME
WHREZEBEE St AEMENRIEA
MEFFAEZEBRAE BKEEAL
FIEAREN — R AT RENRTT
BEEAFREERE T2RA/ZET
AEREHREIHE -

TREENBBRZARENZIARE
R 57 (MIERBIFRIFE)EA
RBTHARZEEBAR TIITTER
SR ARNEEARE:

BITRMEMER CERRRERE
HERTEEZ ARETERAE R
B EEARESTHHAZTAR
B ARG FIRBEREAR KR 2R E

Mgt -
MERBEEEEREE

AEEZFESHITABRERITERR
BeUMRTER - ZEEMITATR
EERAKEZEESEMFTES A%
BrAEZEEGSREERAE W0
HEENEEEEZBRERREERUR
R RR AN

AEESRIAEAZIERRAN X
R SNERR FEERBEABES
R EFe&ZMMABETRRNAEERS
HRER B BEBERRN X -

38.

39.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, the current portion of bank deposits with an
initial term of over three months, short-term pledged deposits,
structured deposits, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss/available-for-sale investments, other financial assets,
trade and bills receivables, trade payables, financial assets
included in prepayments and other receivables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, amounts
due from related parties and an amount due to a related party
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of long-term time deposits at banks, long-term
pledged deposits and interest-bearing bank borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments on similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
loans and cash and bank deposits. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.
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39. BiEMEREBERBXK 39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(%) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
F = @ B Interest rate risk
AEEMEY TS REE R S 0 The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
AEERYERPEBET (BEHER rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations
EREBEFENBER —FRIBAEE Y (including the bank borrowings due to repayment after one year
RITEE) BB - which contain a repayment on demand clause) with floating
interest rates.
R-ZZE—NF+_A=+—H A&£H At 31 December 2018, approximately 20% (2017: 23%) of
#4920% (ZE—+F :23% ) NFTEEE the Group's interest-bearing borrowings bore interest at fixed
LEEMEGE rates.
TRINTABEMESRAZEZIFERT The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
REBBRBAFBBAREEEENTE possible change in interest rate, with all other variables held
HARGERESH T HREDIT - constant, of the Group’s profit before tax through the impact
on floating rate borrowings.
KRB AT
=) REE
(THEEEH O 2)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax
ARBTT
RMB’000
—EB-N\F 2018
AR -5 If interest rate increases 50 (1,259)
INF E TR If interest rate decreases (50) 1,259
—T—+F 2017
AR 2 -5 If interest rate increases 50 (1,309)
AR =T If interest rate decreases (50) 1,309
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3. iIEREEEEREEK 39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(%) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
S E [ Bz
AEEEYERHEEER  ZZEB K
BT ERZEE TS 2 BT
ST ET Y HE RE@MPAZ% (- F
— 4 1 36% ) S E LLSMNEEHE - T IEL
EITHE Y QB BRI A S -

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 43%
(2017: 36%) of the Group’s sales were denominated in foreign
currencies other than the functional currencies of the operating
units making the sales.

TRIFREER EFERME
TEZERT A& K ER BB E
TERETEXAIRA LY QLD
i (MRERAERBEZ AR ERE

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
the US$ and HK$ exchange rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in

FrE) ° the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).
AEER HEHANEZ B EH/
R/ (TH®) LR/ (TH%) (T&%)*
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in Increase/
foreign profit (decrease) in
currency rate before tax equity*
ARETT ARBTR
% RMB’000 RMB’000
—E-N\E 2018
AR LETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5 (99,697) (85,986)
MARBHETRE If RMB weakens against US$ (5) 99,697 85,986
—T—tF 2017
MARBRETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5 (58,088) (72,697)
WARBHLETLE If RMB weakens against US$ (5) 58,088 72,697
—E-N\F 2018
WARELETHE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5 8,673 56,786
MARBLETEE If RMB weakens against HK$ (5) (8,673) (56,786)
Tt F 2017
MARBERBTIHE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5 8,327 50,066
MARBLETEE If RMB weakens against HK$ (5) (8,327) (50,066)

* RE B AR N

*

Excluding retained profits
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3. IERBEEEERBEE 39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

268

(#&)

FERR
AEBERNAREERFZF=THE
TR -AEEZBRRMERZER
HETRGZEP VEAKBEERE
TR o Mo 7 5% B 455 4B B 5% B IROR
ey EASEEH ZERRRY &
x o

AEBEEMEREE (BRREERE
FEY NnERRB=EAZRTHF
o BREFEHR AN RBEBFR
BAREFEREHFABR ISR
BE/AHRLERE HttemEE-
FRATRNRBEREMEERIEZ SR E
2 AR A T30R) 2 EERBRKE
RHHFEL FAXKZSEBRESZFR
ZETHZEREE

HRAEERENGEAEERTZE=
FETRS ARBEERR-FES
HREBEREF/RZEFEE NS
HR AEBEETEESETRE B
RNEE39% (ZF—+F:82%) %91%
ZE—EF 2% ) BRERREES
FREAEBZBEAERFRARES -
HRAEEZFERFPHAERERLR
AR HEASECEYRPELH
B Et AEEAZEEREESEY
[ e

BRAAEEREREEREREZER
Rk — P EAEE  RUBRRWME
198 5 -

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuead)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits with an
initial term of over three months, pledged deposits, structured
deposits, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss/
available-for-sale investments, other financial assets, financial
assets included in prepayments and other receivables,
amounts due from related parties, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty. At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
certain concentrations of credit risk as 39% (2017: 32%) and
91% (2017: 92%) of the Group’s trade and bills receivables
were due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers, respectively. As the major customers of
the Group are all world-famous brand companies, which have
established long-term business relationships with the Group,
concentrations of credit risk are well managed by the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables are disclosed
in note 19 to the financial statements.
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39.

MREREEBFERBE 39.

(#&)

REESER
AEBBBBERAPESHE TAEE
ExlmEkR R IAZEHESRT
BENemEE (PImEERANER) 2
AHBEUARKEEERB AR RE-

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuead)
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
and bills receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.

RS ER  RRE T4 EA IR G The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
E AEESRmEBEBEZHBABRN the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
™ undiscounted payments, was as follows:
ZE-)\F
2018
AMIRE
REX  SWAEA SRTZEA -EWE MELNL @it
6to
Less than less than 1t02 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total
AR®TR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ERER Trade payables 22,851 789,836 - - - 812,687
HibERRE Other payables 261,356 - - - - 261,356
Ef-2EBALIE Amount due 1o a related party 1,882 - - - - 1,882
HEROEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 1285677 1,048,304 121,942 154,770 2,580,693

286,089 2045518 1,048,304 121,942 154,770 3,656,618

Annual Report 2018 £

269



270

I TE AR MIEE

Notes to Financial Statements
—E—-N\F+=-A=+—H 31 December 2018

3. IXEREEEERKE 39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(#&)
RBEESRAR (£)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

“E-tE
2017

nGLES
BEk  JPRAER ORTZEA —ZME AEN L @it

6to

Less than less than 1102 Over

On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total
ARBTR  ARETT  AR%®Tn  ARETR ARETn  ARETR
RMB'0OO  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
EER Trade payables 25411 847,695 - - - 873,106
AbEATE Other payables 317,907 - - - - 317,907
HERAEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 973,642 430,759 517,622 273000 2,195,023
343,318 1,821,387 430,759 517,622 273000 3,386,036
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3. IERBEEEERBEE 39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(#&)

EXERE
AEBEEAEBEZTZEABRERGER
SEFBEEZRNRBERRITFEARL
T PUFHEEB RSB RFERKE
'

AEERBEERAZSHERRARA
BARERE REFIFABRERNERE K
EEAEAZRARTREN KRS MK
REEBERYEFETTR - B2 —N
F+-_A=+—BRZZE—tF+=
A=+—BIL5E BHEERELXNE
B BRREFTEEE-

TEERBEAAGBLEE (AEHFR
BREHBEEARNERFR)EZEEAR
ERFEREAERITEE BAERR
DA R E At & SRR R B TR BR &
RBEEEEY BEXREARKERE
EEMO M RAREE ARERED RNT
TR BABELERNT:

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuead)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2017.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. Net debt
includes interest-bearing bank borrowings, trade payables and
other payables and accruals, less cash and cash equivalents.
Capital includes the liability component of convertible bonds
and equity attributable to owners of the parent. The gearing
ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:
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0. iIKEAREEEEREE 39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(%) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
EXRER (&) Capital management (continued)
—E-NE T —+F
2018 2017
AR T ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
SFRRITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 2,516,749 2,130,409
FETER 3K Trade payables 812,687 873,106
Ef e ZIE N EETFRIE  Other payables and accruals 261,356 944,649
JET— Bl A T 3E Amount due to a related party 1,882 -
BoReNRAESEFEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (8,565,916) (2,471,401)
B F5E Net debt 26,758 1,476,763
SRBIHAE AELERE Equity attributable to owners of the parent 22,298,738 19,621,181
ERHEEAR Adjusted capital 22,298,738 19,621,181
BARKNERS 5 Capital and net debt 22,325,496 21,097,944
EARABFELEX Gearing ratio 0.1% 7.0%
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40. &2 B B AR R & 40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

RRBRARERR 2 M BARRK 25

BT Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
—E-NE —T—+F
2018 2017
ARET T ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
kRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Y% BB k& E Property, plant and equipment 6 7
RB AR ZEE Investments in subsidiaries 883,681 883,681
BTWBARIZER Loans to subsidiaries 3,126,063 3,296,007
FRBEELE Total non-current assets 4,009,750 4,179,695
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
JFE L BR 3R Trade receivables 216,076 181,861
H U R 3 Other receivables 3,661,420 2,623,543
BB AR ZER Loans to subsidiaries 1,034,930 1,082,260
JE U B B A Rl 3k I8 Amounts due from subsidiaries 377,716 602,029
HekBEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 123,247 109,022
WREEE Total current assets 5,413,389 4,598,715
RBas CURRENT LIABILITIES
Hih e IBE N ESTFIE  Other payables and accruals 1,762,958 1,303
FFERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 1,139,060 1,003,080
JE S B A B FE Amount due to a subsidiary 226,291 3,180,587
FES TR IR Tax payable 775 18,952
rRBAE Total current liabilities 3,129,084 4,208,922
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40. KRB B BEMRRFT () 40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continuead)
—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
ARE TR AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRBEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,284,305 394,793
MEERRBAS TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 6,294,055 4,574,488
kFBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
KEMHEARER Loans from subsidiaries 1,235,373 -
FEE Net assets 5,058,682 4,574,488
X EQUITY
& A< Share capital 151,200 151,200
w1 (M 3E) Reserves (note) 4,907,482 4,423,288
B Total equity 5,058,682 4,574,488
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40. AR BB AR R K (&)

41.

40.

THE COMPANY (continuead)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

B 5 Note:
RABKREHEHEEZNT A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
ki TRRES EXRS
ER RaBH REHRG 1 REEN @it
Equity
component
Share of Exchange
premium Capital  convertible  fluctuation Retained
account surplus bonds reserve profits Total
ARBTRE  ARETT ARETT ARETr ARETR ARBT:R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZ—t5-fA-H At 1 January 2017 661,648 727,430 197,140 (306,714 952,262 2,231,766
FERENREE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (175,246) 1,490,450 1,315,204
BRuRES Conversion of convertible bonds 3,557,285 - (197,140) - - 3,360,145
ERZZ-RERBRE Final 2016 dividend declared (700,787) - - - (894,500)  (1,595,287)
“E-LEFERE Interim 2017 dividend (888,540) - - - - (888,540)
RZE—+FFTZA=+—H  At31 December 2017 2,629,606 727,430 - (481,960) 1,548,212 4,423,288
FERENREE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 183,539 2,358,146 2,541,685
ERZT-EERBRE Final 2017 dividend declared - - - - (942,408) (942,408)
ZE-\FHERE Interim 2018 dividend (1,115,083) - - - - (1,115,083)
RZE-NF+ZA=1-H  At31 December 2018 1,514,523 727,430 - (298421) 2963950 4,007,482

BEMBRR

EEgN_T-AF=ZA-_THAH#E
354 T3 A K

41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2019.
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HBERBE
Financial Information Summary
(BRBEFHEIN FTBESEAARETTIR)

(Amounts expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

AEERBEAMBHRERAMBEERFRAER
BAMBRFREICAGREAREE BER

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and

minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years,

VERESBEHNWT prepared on the basis as set out herein, is set out below:
BE+-A=+-HLFE W+=-A=+-H
For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December
—E-N\EF —tF ZZE—RF —AhF —mEF
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ARBTRE ARETRT ARBTI ARBTRT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
| Results
KA Revenue 20,950,205 18,085,247 15,099,076 12,639,332 11,131,532
BB AR Finance costs (61,049) (123,016) (119,834) (98,733) (46,442)
B B A1 Profit before tax 5,090,346 4,288,231 3,642,947 2,886,901 2,543,347
FTE R X Income tax expense (597,803) (528,280) (695,267) (532,059) (476,717)
FE Profit for the year 4,492,543 3,759,951 2,947,680 2,354,842 2,066,630
IATRA TG #EE: Attributable to:
NEER A Owners of the parent 4,540,487 3,762,721 2,947,673 2,354,664 2,065,867
FEPE 1 A Non-controlling interests (47,944) (2,770) 7 178 763
4,492,543 3,759,951 2,947,680 2,354,842 2,066,630
EE-BER Assets, Liabilities and
FEHItER Non-controlling
Interests
BEE Total assets 27,552,054 24,093,205 21,816,062 18,361,614 15,943,028
BEE Total liabilities (5,097,775) (4,268,552)  (6,506,460) (5,271,778)  (4,131,702)
SR M 2 Non-controlling interests (155,541) (203,472) (216,658) (15,716) (15,757)
22,298,738 19,621,181 15,092,944 13,074,120 11,795,569
et REBMEE -—ZT—+FR-Z—/)\FF+-H  Note: The consolidated results of the Group for each of the two years ended

=+— Eﬁﬁﬁli&%ii%mmiéﬁuﬁ

#—xftiﬁ:%fﬂi+—ﬂf+fa
IREEE - BERIEZEHIERE B R

%%155Ei%z7sﬁﬁﬁﬁ%‘

31 December 2017 and 2018 and the consolidated assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group as at 31 December 2017
and 2018 are those set out on pages 155 to 275 of the financial
statements.
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